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Chairman’s Statement
FHEEE

To our Shareholders

In 2013, the Group reported a profit attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$97,238,000, a 52.86%
decrease from the HK$206,258,000 recorded a year
ago. This significant decrease in profit is mainly
attributable the absence of the gain arising on change
in fair value of the Group’s investment properties (the
“Kwun Tong Properties”) located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong of HK$168,000,000 recorded in
2012. The Kwun Tong Properties was disposed of in
July 2013.

In January 2012, we expanded into money lending
business in Hong Kong by acquiring the entire issued
shares in and the sale loan due by Hong Kong
Builders Finance Limited, a Hong Kong company
engaged in money lending business. In 2013, we
allocated more resources to our money lending
business in order to improve our performance. Interest
income on loans increased from HK$9,785,000
in 2012 to HK$24,101,000 in 2013. This 146.31%
increase in interest income on loans was led by our
efforts in expanding our money lending business
in 2013. The average monthly balance of loans
receivables increased from HK$41,244,000 in 2012
to HK$248,124,000 in 2013. In expanding our money
lending business, we granted loans to high net-worth
businessmen on referral basis to fulfill their short to
medium term business needs. As this money lending
business model worked well in 2013, we continue to
adopt this business model in developing our money
lending business in future. In addition to high net-
worth businessmen, we successfully diversify our
customer base into Hong Kong listed companies in
the first quarter of 2014.

During the year, we disposed of the Kwun Tong
Properties at a consideration of HK$586,000,000 and
the two three-storey New Territories Small Houses
located in Ma Yau Tong, Sai Kung, New Territories,
Hong Kong at a total consideration of HK$24,995,000.
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We disposed of all our investment properties in
response to the implementation of Government’s
stamp duty measures for cooling property prices
in Hong Kong. Sentiment in the investment market
dropped noticeably after the Government raised
stamp duty rates for property purchases. The sales
transaction volume is now lower than during the SARS
period in 2003. Investors have remained cautious
about entering Hong Kong’s property market. Some
investors, such as those from Mainland China, have
shifted their focus onto overseas markets considering
their higher opportunistic returns. In view of a slow
sale market, the Government’s stamp duty measures
remaining in place and the Federal Reserve tapering
of its monthly bond purchase programme, we
believe property prices will continue to consolidate
in 2014. Accordingly, we have adopted a wait-and-
see approach in revitalising our property investment
business.

In his 2014 annual budget speech, the Financial
Secretary, Mr. John Tsang Chun-wah, warned that
the global outlook is uncertain as there is uncertainty
over Federal Reserve Board’s exist strategy and
interest policy. Possible market fluctuations and the
risk of reversal of capital flows will cast shadows over
global economic growth this year. We concur with
Mr. Tsang’s view. Given the uncertain backdrop, we
will continue to solidify our fundamentals by refining
our business operations and developing our existing
businesses in a cautious manner. However, we
recognise that continued uncertainty often coincides
with a good opportunity to invest. That is why we are
actively looking at possible business investments in
order to diversify our businesses and broaden our
revenue base. To manage risk conservatively, we
will invest in businesses with predictable, consistent
cashflows and simple, understandable business
models
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Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to extend

our appreciation to all fellow directors and employees
for their invaluable efforts, dedication and commitment
to the Group and to thank all shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$26,305,000, a 61.00%
decrease from HK$67,442,000 for the previous year.
The decrease in turnover was mainly attributable to
the termination of management services agreement
with Dore Entretenimento Sociedade Unipessoal
Limitada (“Dore”), a licensed gaming promoter
for Wynn Macau, on 12 September 2012. Of the
total turnover, HK$24,101,000 was generated from
money lending, HK$3,402,000 was generated from
property investment, HK$512,000 was generated
from provision of management services and a loss of
HK$1,710,000 was generated from sale of financial
assets. Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to HK$97,238,000, a 52.86%
decrease from HK$206,259,000 for the previous year.
The decrease in profit was mainly attributable to the
absence of the gain arising on change in fair value of
the Group’s investment properties (the “Kwun Tong
Properties”) located in Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong of HK$168,000,000 recorded in the year ended
31 December 2012. The Kwun Tong Properties was
disposed of in July 2013.

Investment and other income increased by 1,551.48%
from HK$2,601,000 in the year ended 31 December
2012 to HK$42,955,000 in the current financial
year. This increase was attributable to the dividend
income of HK$36,479,000 received from China Star
Entertainment Limited (“China Star”, stock code:
326).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWE S

Other gains and losses represent items of income and
expenses, which are material and/or extraordinary
in nature. Major items of other gains and losses
recorded by the Group during the year are as follows:

(@) in September 2013, the Group converted the
entire principal amount of the bonus convertible
notes, which were accounted for available-
for-sale financial assets, into 607,980,676 new
shares in China Star at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share and recognised cumulative
gains reclassified from equity to profit or loss
upon derecognition of available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$4,849,000, which represents the
difference between fair value at conversion
of HK$82,949,000 and carrying amount of
HK$86,333,000 (a loss of HK$3,384,000) and the
recycling to profit or loss of HK$8,233,000 gain
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income. The Group disposed of 303,990,338
shares in China Star, which were accounted
for available-for-sale financial assets, at an
average selling price of HK$0.1358 per share
and recognised another cumulative gains
reclassified from equity to profit or loss upon
derecognition of available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$2,230,000, which represents the
difference between proceeds of HK$41,281,000
and carrying amount of HK$43,167,000 (a loss of
HK$1,886,000) and the recycling to profit or loss
of HK$4,116,000 gain previously recognised in
other comprehensive income;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

the carrying amount of the conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivables was
reassessed at the end of the reporting period
with reference to the valuation performed by an
Given that the
adjusted conversion price of the 8% convertible

independent professional valuer.

notes receivable from China Star was further
adjusted from HK$0.12 per share to HK$0.11
per share on 7 May 2013 and the share price of
China Star was closed at HK$0.119 per share
on 31 December 2013, a gain arising on change
in fair value of conversion options embedded in
convertible notes receivables of HK$29,836,000
was recognised;

on 2 October 2013, the Group converted
HK$125,000,000 of the 8% convertible notes
receivable from China Star into 1,136,363,636
new shares in China Star at the adjusted
conversion price of HK$0.11 per share and
recognised a gain arising on change in fair value
upon conversion of convertible notes receivables
of HK$16,446,000;

the convertible notes receivable from China
Star and Koffman Corporate Service Limited
(“Koffman Corporate”), a Hong Kong private
company, generated imputed interest income
of HK$38,233,000 to the Group. The imputed
interest income decreased from HK$50,086,000
in the year ended 31 December 2012 to
HK$38,233,000 in the year ended 31 December
2013, which was attributable to the conversion
of HK$125,000,000 of the 8% convertible notes
receivable from China Star into 1,136,363,636
new shares in China Star on 2 October 2013;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWE S

() the Group revalued its equity portfolio to market
prices at the end of the reporting period and
recognised a loss arising on change in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$5,307,000; and

() a reversal of impairment loss recognised
in respect of interests in associates of
HK$6,137,000 was recognised as the share
price of China Media and Films Holdings Limited
(“China Media”, stock code: 8172), an associate
company of the Group, surged from HK$0.295
per share on 31 December 2012 to HK$0.32 per
share on 31 December 20183.

Administrative expenses (before depreciation)
amounted to HK$49,927,000 for the year ended
31 December 2013, a 112.35% increase from
HK$23,512,000 for the previous year. This increase
was mainly attributable to the payment of commission
relating to the disposal of Kwun Tong Properties of
HK$5,860,000, a HK$5,951,000 increase in directors’
emoluments and a loss on disposal of investment
properties of HK$13,000,000. The loss on disposal
of investment properties is discussed in details in
“Operations Review” section below.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, China
Media and its subsidiaries reported a consolidated
loss of HK$12,829,000 and contributed a loss of
HK$3,720,000 to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, Spark
Concept Group Limited (“Spark Concept”), an
associate company of the Group, and its subsidiaries
reported a consolidated loss of HK$1,820,000. As the
Group’s share of post-acquisition losses equals to its
interests in Spark Concept, no further share of loss
was recognised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group funded its operations
through a combination of cash generated from
operations, equity attributable to owners of
the Company and issue of new shares. Equity
attributable to owners of the Company increased
from HK$1,521,954,000 at 31 December 2012 to
HK$1,825,372,000 at 31 December 2013.

At 31 December 2013, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to HK$662,153,000 (2012:
HK$297,967,000).

At 31 December 2013, the Group had no borrowings
(2012: Nil).

Net current assets and current ratio

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s net current
assets and current ratio were HK$1,146,744,000
(2012: HK$1,000,231,000) and 44.94 (2012: 13.61),
respectively.

Capital structure

During the year, the capital structure of the Company
had the following changes:

(@) on 24 January 2013, the Company allotted
and issued 47,000,000 new shares at a price
of HK$0.645 per share by way of placing of
new shares under general mandate raising
HK$29,931,000 (net of expenses) for acquiring
investment property in Hong Kong in order
to enrich the Group’s investment properties
portfolio; and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEFWE S

(b) on 26 April 2013, the Company allotted and
issued 152,224,414 new shares at a subscription
price of HK$1.20 per share by way of open
offer to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company on the basis of one new share for
every two existing shares held on 5 April 2013
raising HK$180,277,000 (net of expenses), of
which HK$40,000,000 is intended to be used
for financing the proposed subscription of the
convertible notes to be issued by EDS Wellness
Holdings Limited (“EDS Wellness”, stock code:
8176 and formerly known as China AU Group
Holdings Limited), HK$40,000,000 is intended
to be used for financing the proposed granting
of an unsecured loan to EDS Wellness and the
remaining balance of HK$100,277,000 is intended
to be used for financing the development
and expansion of the Group’s money lending
business.

Material acquisitions

During the year, the Group had the following material
acquisitions:

(@) in September 2013, the Group exercised
the conversion rights attaching to the bonus
convertible notes receivable from China Star
to convert the entire principal amount of
HK$6,079,806.76 into 607,980,676 new shares
in China Star at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.01 per share. The conversion of the
bonus convertible notes was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s special general
meeting held on 28 June 2013; and

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% EBRAR]

R-ZE—Z=FMA=+XxHA: ' x2AXN
AEBREREARBER-_ZE—Z=ZFMAER
EFEREMBRRERMER —RIBRH
ZEEZRABESRKR1.20BTEAARAQF
BERB R R 31T152,224,414 %
AR 0 LLE 5%£180,277,00078 Jt (30
BRBE %) - H#40,000,00078 5T A 1E
BSEZRIBEDS Wellness Holdings
Limited ((EDS Wellness] ' & % £
8% :8176 AIBHAEHSEEBEIZERER
AR BITZHRKRES > 40,000,0005%
JoiE AER S B EDS Wellness % H
I EN > MEREZE100,277,00038 T
BRAERBIRZEREZASBZEEX
7}% °

EARWE

FR - AREBTHERWE :

R-ZBE—Z=ZFhA AEETHFEENR
FEEZANTEREEMT 2BRRK
B UV TERESROIETHE
% B AR & %86,079,806.768 T KA A
607,980,676 R F El £ F AR 4 ° AL R 7]
BREECHBREEORAQIEZ
—ZERAZTNBETZREERIK
SLERRH#E R

Annual Report 2013 —Z —=FF#f




Management Discussion and Analysis

(o) on 2 October 2013, the Group exercised the
conversion rights attaching to the 8% convertible
notes receivable from China Star to convert
the principal amount of HK$125,000,000 into
1,136,363,636 new shares in China Star at the
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.
The conversion of the 8% convertible notes was
approved by the shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 30 June 2011.

Material disposals

During the year, the Group had the following material
disposals:

(@) on 4 July 2013, Rexdale Investment Limited
(“Rexdale”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, disposed of the Kwun Tong Properties
at a consideration of HK$586,000,000 pursuant
to the preliminary sale and purchase agreement
dated 20 November 2012 (as amended by the
supplemental agreement dated 4 July 2013) and
entered into between Rexdale and Grand Reward
Limited. The disposal was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s special meeting
held on 9 January 2013; and

(b) in September and October 2013, the Group
disposed of 2,048,334,650 shares in China
Star at an average price of HK$0.135 per share
pursuant to the 12-month mandate granted to the
directors by the shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 28 June 2013.

Pledge of assets

At 31 December 2013, no assets of the Group were
pledged.
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Material commitments

At 31 December 2013, the Group had a total
commitment of HK$408,852,000 relating to:

(@) the subscription of the second tranche of
convertible notes to be issued by China Star in
the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 pursuant
to the conditional subscription agreement
dated 21 January 2011 (as amended by the
supplemental agreements dated 29 June 2012
and 31 December 2013). The subscription of the
second tranche of convertible notes is conditional
upon the fulfillment of the conditions precedent
set out in the conditional subscription agreement,
including the availability of sufficient fund by
the Company. On 29 June 2012, the completion
date of subscription was extended from 30 June
2012 to 31 December 2013. On 31 December
2013, the completion date of subscription was
further extended from 31 December 2013 to 31
December 2015;

(b) the subscription of the convertible notes to be
issued by EDS Wellness in the principal amount
of HK$40,000,000 pursuant to the conditional
subscription agreement dated 21 March
2013 (as amended by the letter of extension
dated 30 October 2013). The subscription of
the convertible notes is conditional upon the
fulfillment of the conditions precedent set out
in the conditional subscription agreement.
On 30 October 2013, the completion date of
subscription was extended from 31 October 2013
to 30 June 2014;
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(c) the granting of an unsecured loan in the principal
amount of HK$40,000,000 to EDS Wellness
pursuant to the conditional loan agreement dated
21 March 2013 (as amended by the letter of
extension dated 30 October 2013). The granting
of the unsecured loan is conditional upon the
fulfilment of the conditions precedent set out in
the conditional loan agreement. On 30 October
2013, the completion date of granting of loan
was extended from 31 October 2013 to 30 June
2014; and

(d) loans commitment in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$28,852,000 pursuant to the
building mortgages and the loan agreements
entered into between the Group and its
customers.

Exchange risk and hedging

During the year, all of the Group’s transactions, assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Accordingly, no financial instruments for hedging
purposes have been used by the Group.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2013, the Group had a claim brought
by China Finance & Assets Management Limited
(“China Finance”) in High Court Action No. 526 of
2010 against Rexdale for failing to pay a service fee
in the sum of HK$25,000,000 to China Finance. No
provision for the claim was made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 as Lafe Corporation Limited has
undertaken to indemnify and keep indemnified the
Group against any and all losses, claims, damages,
penalties, actions, demands, proceeding, judgment
and costs arising from or in connection with the claim.
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Employees and remuneration policy

At 31 December 2013, the headcount of the Group
was 13 (2012: 12). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$18,384,000 (2012:
HK$10,656,000). In addition to basic salaries and
other allowances, provident fund and discretionary
bonus, staff benefits include medical scheme and
share options.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the year, no revenue was generated from
the Group’s film distribution business as the Group
was not able to secure quality films at reasonable
prices for distribution. In addition, no film has yet
been produced by China Media for distribution by the
Group during the year.

During the year, the Group acquired equities with
market value of HK$36,714,000. The Group’s
sale of financial assets business recorded a loss
of HK$1,710,000, which consists of a gain of
HK$955,000 arising from the disposal of equities
with market value of HK$8,545,000 and a loss
of HK$2,665,000 arising from the disposal of
1,744,344,312 new shares in China Star converted
from the bonus convertible notes of HK$6,079,806.76
and the HK$125,000,000 of 8% convertible notes
receivable from China Star. The loss of HK$2,665,000
from disposal of 1,744,344,312 shares in China Star
represents the difference between the net proceeds
received and the fair values of 1,744,344,312 shares
in China Star on the dates of conversion. Upon
conversion of the bonus convertible notes, the Group
recognised cumulative gains reclassified from equity
to profit or loss upon derecognition of available-
for-sale financial assets of HK$4,849,000 under
“other gains and losses”. Upon the conversion of the
HK$125,000,000 of 8% convertible notes, the Group
recognised a gain arising on change in fair value
upon conversion of convertible notes receivables of
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HK$16,446,000 under “other gains and losses”. At
31 December 2013, the Group revalued its equities
portfolio to market prices of HK$49,046,000 and
recorded a loss arising on change in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$5,307,000.

During the year, the Group’s provision of management
services business generated services fee income
amounted to HK$512,000, a 99.00% decrease from
HK$51,078,000 for the previous year. This significant
decrease was mainly attributable to the termination
of management services agreement with Dore on 12
September 2012. In addition, the services fee income
generated from the Group’s remaining management
services agreement decreased from HK$1,166,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2012 to HK$512,000 in
the year ended 31 December 2013. Such decrease
reflects the gaming promoter has adopted a
tightening credit policy towards its Mainland Chinese
VIP customers in response to the slowdown of the
Mainland Chinese economy. The directors reassessed
the carrying amount of the management services
agreement held by the Group at 31 December 2013
with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer and an impairment
loss on intangible assets of HK$3,793,000 was
recognised.

During the year, the Group’s property investment
business generated a rental income of HK$3,402,000.
On 2 January 2013, Rexdale served three-month
prior written notices to the tenants of the Kwun Tong
Properties to terminate their tenancies for delivering
vacant possession of all units of the Kwun Tong
Properties to Grand Reward Limited upon completion
pursuant to the preliminary sale and purchase
agreement dated 20 November 2012 and entered
into between Rexdale and Grand Reward Limited.
Subsequently, as requested by certain tenants of the
Kwun Tong Properties and having discussed with
Grand Reward Limited, on 27 June 2013, Rexdale
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and the tenants entered into tenancy agreements for
a term commencing on 2 April 2013 and ending on
4 July 2013, being the expected completion date,
in respect of the 10th, 11th and 12th floors and six
car parking spaces of the Kwun Tong Properties.
On 4 July 2013, Rexdale and Grand Reward Limited
entered into a supplemental agreement to amend
certain terms of the preliminary sale and purchase
agreement to effect that Rexdale shall no longer be
required to deliver vacant possession of all units of
the Kwun Tong Properties on completion and the
sale and purchase of the Kwun Tong Properties
was completed on that date. Upon the signing of
the preliminary sale and purchase agreement on
20 November 2012, the Kwun Tong Properties was
accounted for assets classified as held for sale and
its fair value surged from HK$469,000,000 at 30 June
2012, being the interim financial reporting period
immediately prior to the date of the preliminary sale
and purchase agreement, to HK$603,000,000 at 31
December 2012. Such gain arising on change in fair
value of investment properties of HK$134,000,000
was directly credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the second half of 2012. However,
the fair value of the Kwun Tong Properties decreased
from HK$603,000,000 at 31 December 2012 to
HK$599,000,000 at 4 July 2013. Accordingly, a
loss arising on change in fair value of investment
properties of HK$4,000,000 was recognised in the
year ended 31 December 2013. Given that the fair
value of the Kwun Tong Properties at 4 July 2013
exceeded the consideration of HK$586,000,000 by
HK$13,000,000, a loss on disposal of the Kwun Tong
Properties of HK$13,000,000 was recorded. In view
of the deteriorating market conditions following the
introduction of new measures by the Hong Kong
Government and Hong Kong Monetary Authority
for stabilising property prices in February 2013, the
Group disposed of and took profit from its two three-
storey New Territories Small Houses located in Ma
Yau Tong, Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong Kong by
selling the entire issued share capital of East Legend
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Properties Limited (“East Legend”) and Goway
Properties Limited (“Goway”), both of them were
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$24,995,000 on 6
June 2013. Immediately prior to their disposal, each
of the two three-storey New Territories Small Houses
was revalued to market price of HK$12,000,000 with
reference to the property valuations performed by
an independent professional valuer appointed by
the Group. The considerations were determined with
reference to the market value of the two three-storey
New Territories Small Houses and adjusted for the
net assets value of each of East Legend and Goway
at 31 May 2013. As a result, the Group recorded a
gain arising on change in fair value of investment
properties of HK$2,060,000 and a gain on disposal of
subsidiaries of HK$588,000.

During the year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans of HK$24,101,000,
a 146.31% increase from HK$9,785,000 for the
previous year. This increase was attributable to
the active expansion of the Group’s money lending
business during the year. The average monthly
balance of loans receivables increased from
HK$41,244,000 in the year ended 31 December 2012
to HK$248,124,000 in the year ended 31 December
2013. During the year, the Group made new loans in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$789,500,000
to its customers and received loans repayment of
HK$64,955,000 from its customers. At 31 December
2013, the Group’s loans receivables together
with accrued interest receivables amounted to
HK$773,624,000.
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For participating in the development of EDS
Wellness, the Group and EDS Wellness entered into a
conditional subscription agreement on 21 March 2013,
pursuant to which EDS Wellness has conditionally
agreed to issue and the Group has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for the convertible notes in the
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 at their face value.
The convertible notes are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and maturing on the date falling 30 months
from the date of their issue. Subject to the compliance
of the public float requirement by EDS Wellness, the
convertible notes carry rights entitling the holders
hereof to convert their principal amount into new
shares in EDS Wellness at an initial conversion price
of HK$1.00 per share (subject to adjustment) during
their term. Unless previously redeemed, repurchased
and cancelled or converted, any outstanding
convertible notes shall be redeemed at par on the
maturity date. On 21 March 2013, the Group also
entered into a conditional loan agreement with EDS
Wellness relating to the grant of an unsecured loan
in the principal amount of HK$40,000,000 for a
term of three years commencing from the date of
drawdown. On 30 October 2013, the long stop dates
of the conditional subscription agreement and the
conditional loan agreement were extended from 31
October 2013 to 30 June 2014 as additional time is
required for the fulfillment of the conditions precedent
of these two agreements.

On 18 February 2013, the directors proposed to seek
approvals from its shareholders for (i) exercising the
conversion rights attaching to the bonus convertible
notes issued by China Star in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$6,079,806.76 to convert their principal
amount into 607,980,676 new shares in China Star
(the “Conversion”) and (ii) granting a mandate to the
Company for disposing of the 303,990,338 shares in
China Star that already held by the Group and the
new shares in China Star to be allotted and issued to
the Group pursuant to the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the bonus convertible notes and
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the 8% convertible notes receivable from China Star
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$350,000,000
(the “Disposal”) for realising the Group’s investments
in China Star. The Conversion and the Disposal were
approved by the shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2013. In
September 2013, the Group converted the entire
principal amount of the bonus convertible notes into
607,980,676 new shares in China Star at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.01 per share and recorded
cumulative gains reclassified from equity to profit or
loss upon derecognition of available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$4,849,000. In September 2013, the
Group disposed of 303,990,338 shares in China Star,
which were accounted for available-for-sale financial
assets, at an average selling price of HK$0.1358 per
share and recognised cumulative gains reclassified
from equity to profit or loss upon derecognition of
available-for-sale financial assets of HK$2,230,000. On
2 October 2013, the Group converted HK$125,000,000
of the 8% convertible notes of HK$350,000,000
into 1,136,363,636 new shares in China Star at the
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.
The partial conversion of the 8% convertible notes
resulted in a gain arising on change in fair value
upon conversion of convertible notes receivables of
HK$16,446,000. In September and October 2013, the
Group disposed of 1,744,344,312 new shares in China
Star converted from the bonus convertible notes and
the 8% convertible notes at an average selling price
of HK$0.1349 per share and recognised a loss of
HK$2,665,000. At 31 December 2013, the remaining
8% convertible notes held by the Group amounted
to HK$225,000,000. As the adjusted conversion price
of the 8% convertible notes receivable from China
Star was further adjusted from HK$0.12 per share to
HK$0.11 per share on 7 May 2013 and the share price
of China Star was closed at HK$0.119 per share on
31 December 2013, a gain arising on change in fair
value of conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables of HK$29,836,000 was recognised.
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During the year, the Group’s fixed income portfolio
generated imputed interest income of HK$38,233,000,
a 23.67% decrease from HK$50,086,000 for the
previous year. Such decrease was attributable to
the partial conversion of the 8% convertible notes
as discussed above. During the year, the cash
interest income received by the Group amounted to
HK$30,384,000. At 31 December 2013, the face value
of the Group’s fixed income portfolio amounted to
HK$252,000,000, comprising the 8% convertible notes
receivable from China Star of HK$225,000,000 and the
convertible note receivable from Koffman Corporate of
HK$27,000,000.

In April 2013, Spark Concept and its subsidiaries (the
“Spark Concept Group”) expanded their operations
by opening a Japanese noodle shop in Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong. On 1 July 20183, the landlord of the
European cuisine restaurant in Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong served a written notice to the Spark Concept
Group to terminate its tenancy with the Spark
Concept Group on 1 August 2013 with a payment of
three-month rental as compensation. Accordingly, the
European cuisine restaurant was closed on 1 August
2013. On 31 August 2013, the major shareholder
of Spark Concept disposed of her 51% interests in
Spark Concept to an independent third party, who has
extensive business experience in running Japanese
restaurants in Hong Kong. The Group remains holding
49% interests in Spark Concept. Following the change
of the major shareholder, a restructuring of the Spark
Concept Group’s business was undertaken, involving
the disposal of the fine dining restaurant and the
wine trading company for concentrating its resources
in Japanese noodle shops. In December 2013, the
Japanese noodle shops, namely Shugetsu Ramen
(et m&E A A ), were selected in the Michelin
Guide Hong Kong & Macau 2014 as BIB Gourmand
Restaurants (Michelin inspectors’ favorites for
good value). Since the publication of the guide, the
performance of Spark Concept Group has improved
and is currently at cash-flow breakeven situation.
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During the year, no further cash was advanced to
the Spark Concept Group by its shareholders. At 31
December 2013, the Spark Concept Group owed the
Group an amount of HK$7,393,000 (before impairment
loss of HK$3,865,000), which is unsecured,
free and repayable on demand. Due to the rising in
food and labour costs, the Spark Concept Group
reported a loss of HK$1,820,000 for the year. As the

Group’s share of post-acquisition losses equals to its

interest-

interests in Spark Concept, no further share of losses
was recognised for the year.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

A number of central banks around the world tightened
monetary policy during the last week of January 2014,
but the rationale for their policy decisions varied
significantly. In the United States, the Federal Reserve
continued its tapering of monthly bond purchase
programme to reflect the strong economic growth
prospects, while certain emerging markets tightened
policy in an attempt to prevent an exodus of foreign
capital from their countries. Although the situation
in the Eurozone continues to improve with forward
looking survey data suggesting continued economic
expansion, unemployment is still at extremely high
levels and the rate of private sector credit growth
remains very low. The directors expect the global
outlook for 2014 remains uncertain. However, the
directors recognise that an uncertainty outlook can
often coincide with a good opportunity to invest. As
such, the Group continues to adopt a conservative
investment approach in investing towards the Group’s
sale of financial assets business in 2014.
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In 2013, the gaming promoter of the management
services agreement held by the Group adopted a
tightening credit policy towards its Mainland Chinese
VIP customers in response to the slowdown of the
Mainland Chinese economy. With worries over the
Mainland Chinese economic growth and excessive
growth in the Mainland China’s so-called shadow
banking sector, the gaming promoter has unveiled to
the Group that a tightening credit policy towards its
Mainland Chinese VIP customers is likely to remain
in place for 2014. Accordingly, the directors do
not expect any growth in the Group’s provision of
management services business in 2014.

Following the disposal of its two three-storey
New Territories Houses located in Ma Yau Tong,
Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong Kong on 6 June
2013 and the Kwun Tong Properties on 4 July
2013, the Group does not hold any investment
properties. The implementation of Special Stamp
Duty in November 2010, Buyer’'s Stamp Duty in
October 2012 and Doubling Stamp Duty in February
2013 measures, along with the lowered loan-to-
value ratio, has effectively suppressed demand by
increasing transaction costs and they have essentially
stopped speculation. The sales market for properties
experienced a substantial contraction in 2013. In view
of a slow sale market, the Government’s stamp duty
measures remaining in place and the Federal Reserve
tapering of its monthly bond purchase programme,
potential price corrections are expected. The Group
adopts a wait-and-see approach in revitalising its
property investment business in 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group actively expanded its money lending
business in 2013 and the money lending business
has become the main driver of the Group’s earnings.
The directors will allocate more resources to further
expand the money lending business in 2014 in order
to enhance the Group’s earnings. In addition, as most
of the loans granted in 2013 were drawn in the fourth
quarter of 2013, it is expected that a growth will be
recorded in the Group’s money lending business in
2014. Despite the determination for further expanding
its money lending business, the Group adopts a
cautious approach towards its assessment and
approval of loans in order to reduce its credit risk.

In 2014, the directors will continue to cautiously
monitor the business environment and continue
to strengthen the Group’s business foundation by
focusing the Group’s existing businesses. In addition
to focusing on the Group’s existing businesses, the
directors will continue to cautiously identify suitable
investment opportunities for the Group to diversify its
businesses and broaden its revenue.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) On 4 March 2014, the Company allotted and
issued 91,000,000 new shares at a price
of HK$0.78 per share by way of placing of
new shares under general mandate raising
HK$70,140,000 (net of expenses) for financing
the Group’s money lending business.
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(b)

On 20 March 2014, the Board announced that it
came to the attention of the Company that a writ
(the “Writ”) of summons in High Court Action No.
9 of 2014 was issued by The Grande Holdings
Limited (in liquidation), Roderick John Sutton (as
joint and several provisional liquidator of The
Grande Holdings Limited), Fok Hei Yu (as joint
and several provisional liquidator of The Grande
Holdings Limited) and 65 other companies listed
as plaintiffs against 25 defendants inclusive of
One Synergy Limited (“One Synergy”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company. One Synergy
has, as at the date of the annual report, not been
served with the Writ.

The action alleges, inter alia, that One Synergy
is liable to the plaintiffs as a constructive trustee
and/or by way of equitable compensation and/
or an accounts of profits and/or restitution and/
or damages as a knowing recipient and/or by
reason of the knowing or dishonest assistance in
the breaches of trust and/or breaches of fiduciary
duties by various of the defendants and/or by
reason of dealings between One Synergy and the
plaintiffs otherwise being voidable (and avoided),
void, unlawful or illegal, in respect of its receipt
of the shares in The Grande Properties Ltd (now
known as Rexdale).
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Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, acquired the entire issued share
capital of Adelio Holdings Limited, which is the
holding company of One Synergy, from Vartan
Holdings Limited, an independent third party,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy acquired the
entire issued share capital of Rexdale from Lafe
Corporation Limited, being one of the defendants,
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement
dated 31 December 2010 (the “Agreement”).
The entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being one
of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited to Lafe
Corporation Limited on or about 29 June 2007.
The principal assets of Rexdale were the Kwun
Tong Properties. The Kwun Tong Properties was
sold by Rexdale to Grand Reward Limited, an
independent third party, in July 2013.

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on
the Writ and has been advised to defend the
plaintiffs’ claim in the said action. Counsel has
advised that, based upon available evidence,
there is nothing unusual in the Agreement and
One Synergy would not have any express or
constructive notice of the plaintiffs’ alleged
irregularities and/or fraudulent acts of the former
directors and/or management officers of the
plaintiffs and One Synergy should not be held
liable to any part of the plaintiffs’ claim and has
good and valid defence thereto.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, in line with the principles of
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied
with the Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2013, except for:

(a) the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are not segregated and are exercised by
the same individual; and

(b) the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant
to the Company’s bye-laws.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties. The Board
periodically reviews and improves the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company
with a view to continuously improve the Company’s
corporate governance practices by assessing their
effectiveness with evolving standards to meet
changing circumstances and needs.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules for securities transactions by the
directors of the Company. All the members of the
Board have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the
Company’s annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibilities for preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and ensure that the
financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The directors also ensure that the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made
all reasonable enquires, they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors
of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
pages 60 to 62.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic direction and financial
performance. The management, consisting of
executive directors along with other senior executives,
is delegated the authority and responsibility by the
Board for the management of the Group. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the four committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Finance Committee, to assist
the Board in discharging its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s activities.

Decisions on important matters are specifically
reserved to the Board while decisions on the Group’s
general operations are delegated to the management.
Important matters include those affecting the Group’s
strategic policies, major investment and funding
decisions and major commitments relating to the
Group’s operations.

The day-to-day management of the Group is
delegated to the management. This delegation of
authority includes responsibility for developing and
formulating business plans and budgets of the Group
for the Board’s approval, operating the Group’s
businesses within the parameters set by the Board,
keeping the Board informed of material developments
of the Group’s businesses, identifying and managing
operation and other risk and implementing the policies
and processes approved by the Board.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in
decision-making.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai

(Chairman and Chief Executive Office)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy

Non-executive director:
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Biographical details of the directors as at the date
of this report are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 56 to 59.

Save and except for (a) Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan are brothers and (b) each
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan beneficially owns 50%,
25% and 25% respectively in the issued share capital
of Twin Success International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
there is no relationship between members of the
Board.

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =%}

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k1E ZEH

ERELIHRE

FARBEARERY  ARAEBEE

HITES :

FHERE
(EEFRTEHABE)

SREIE S AE

PR EE o

FHTES:
REIBEE
BAFHTES

FRELE
RE-%E
BEERELE

RABEAM2ESBEEFBHNES6E59
B ESEEFE &R -

BR(a) REIEEERREIEEE B RBR (b)ZF
HWELE REEEERREELE D BIRAR
RAIZEERR(ERREFFRBEMKRBIZEXV
#B8) Twin Success International Limited 2
ERITRAEREFS50% ~ 25% & 25% Ih
REESHNEMERR -




Corporate Governance Report
ERERESE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The company secretary is responsible to keep minutes
of all Board and committee meetings. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to the directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the
final version is open for directors’ inspection.

The directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. The
Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the directors to
assist the relevant directors to discharge their duties.

The Company prepares a monthly update on the
Group’s performance and position to all directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board
at all times met the requirements Rules 3.10(1) and
(2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors (representing not less than one-
third of the Board) with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent. No independent non-executive director
has served the Company for more than nine years.

The directors are fully insured under the directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance policy for indemnification
against costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
that may be incurred by them in the execution and
discharge of their duties.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The directors are committed to complying with code

provision A.6.5 on directors’ training. All directors

have participated in continuous p
provided a record of training they

rofessional and
received for the

year ended 31 December 2013 to Company.

A summary of training received by the directors during

the year ended 31 December 2013 is

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy

Non-executive director:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

Note 1:

1: Relevant reading, video or audio
2: Courses, seminars or workshops

Note 2:

A: Corporate governance and regulatory
B: Business and management

as follows:

HITES :
ZEELEE
REIELEE
PREEZE ST
FHITESE :
REE E4E
BIFHITES:
FRELE

REZERE
BEHEE

On 12 December 2013, the Chairman of the Board
held meeting with the non-executive directors,

including the independent non-executive directors,

without the presence of the executive
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company considers diversity of board
members can be achieved through consideration of
a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code requires that the
role of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year ended 31 December
2013, Mr. Lei Hong Wai has taken up the roles of
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei possesses essential
leadership skills and has extensive experience in
corporate management and business development.
The Board is of the view that currently vesting
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective and efficient business planning and decisions
as well as execution of long-term business strategies.
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TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that
non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s bye-laws. At each annual
general meeting, one-third of the directors for the time
being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objective of this code provision.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with
clearly defined written terms of reference. The main
roles and responsibilities of these committees,
including all authorities delegated to them by
the Board, as set out in the terms of reference,
are published on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The independent views and
recommendations of the four committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high corporate governance
standards expected of a listed company. The
chairman of each committee reports the outcome of
the committee’s meetings to the Board for further
discussions and approvals.

The majority of the members of each board
committees are independent non-executive directors.
The board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at

the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng
Heung Yan and Mr. Wan Shing Chi and one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai. Mr. Ng Heung Yan
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy and ensuring that
no director or any of his associates will involve in
deciding his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, of
individual executive directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policy, structure and packages for directors.
Recommendations regarding the remuneration
packages of executive directors were made by the
Remuneration Committee to the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Lei Hong Wai, and two
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wan
Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, identifying potential directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Nomination Committee leads the process and
makes recommendations for appointments to the
Board, whether as additional appointment or to fill
up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in light of challenges and opportunities
facing the Company, as well as business development
and requirements of the Company. In evaluating and
selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the Nomination
Committee considers the character and integrity,
skill and expertise, professional and educational
background, potential time commitment for the Board
and/or committee responsibilities, and the elements
of the Board Diversity Policy etc. The Nomination
Committee makes recommendation to the Board to
appoint the appropriate person among the candidates
nominated for directorship. Suitable candidate(s) shall
be appointed by the Board in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board.

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee comprises one executive
director, namely Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, and one
independent non-executive director, namely Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen. Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy is the chairman
of the Finance Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Finance Committee (Continued)

The Finance Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and approving banking facilities and
financial instruments to be granted or issued by the
Company for the Group’s needs and the provision
of corporate guarantees by the Company for its
subsidiaries and associates.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no Finance
Committee meeting was held.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Wan Shing Chi and Mr. Ng Heung Yan. Mr. Wong
Tak Chuen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to monitor the financial reporting process of the
Company and to review the Company’s financial
control, internal control and risk management
systems. It also governs the engagement of external
auditors and its performance. The Audit Committee
meets regularly with at least two meetings annually.
It also has separate meeting with the Company’s
external auditors at least once a year with the
absence of the management.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit
Committee reviewed with the external auditors the
annual report for 2012, the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2012, the interim report for 2013 and
the unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2013 before their submission to the Board
for approval. It also reviewed the reports on internal
control system of the Group and discussed with the
management and the external auditors the accounting
policies and practices which might affect the Group
and financial reporting matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

At the meeting held on 20 March 2014, the Audit
Committee concluded that it was satisfied with its
review of the audit fee, process and effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. The Audit Committee has therefore
recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the Company’s
external auditors at the annual general meeting in
2014.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each director at the various
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out as below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy has been the Company
Secretary of the Company since 31 January 2005.
He is also an executive director of the Company. The
biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on
page 57. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited to perform audit
services and non-audit services and incurred audit
services fees of HK$680,000 and non-audit services
fees of HK$1,076,000. The non-audit services
consist of taxation services, interim review and
reporting accountant services in relation to notifiable
transactions and fund raising activity.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
internal control system and to ensure that a sound
and effective internal control system is maintained.
The Board is responsible for approving and reviewing
internal control policy while the responsibility of
day-to-day management of operational risks and
implementation of mitigation measures lies with
the management. As the internal control system is
designed to manage the Group’s risks within an
acceptable risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk
of failure, and to achieve the business objectives of
the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide reasonable
assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control
system are as follows:

° segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the Group;

° monitoring the strategic plan and performance;

° designing an effective accounting and information
system; and

° controlling inside information.

The Board has established an on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the internal control manual when there
are changes to business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance as well as risk management. Besides
the Group has also engaged BMS Corporate Services
Limited (the “Consultant”) to conduct review and
make recommendations for the improvement and
strengthening of the internal control system.

The review conducted by the Consultant covers
the major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as
risk management. Any material non-compliance or
failures in internal controls maintained by the Group’s
management and relevant recommendations for
improvements are reported to the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant,
the Audit Committee and the Board consider that the
key areas of the Group’s internal control system are
properly implemented.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company reports to its shareholders twice a
year. Interim and annual results are announced
to keep shareholders informed of the Group’s
performance and operations. The general meetings
of the Company provide an opportunity for direct
communication between the shareholders and
the Board. Shareholders are welcomed to raise
any query in relation to the Group’s businesses
at the general meetings. The Chairman of the
Board as well as chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Finance Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board Committee,
are available to answer questions at the general
meetings. Our corporate website which contains
corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars issued by the Company,
enables the Company’s shareholders to access
information on the Group on a timely basis.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Any number of shareholders representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders of the Company or not less than 100
shareholders can put forward any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at general meetings
of the Company by depositing a requisition in writing
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s relevant expenses at the registered office
of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The requisition must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Unit 3811, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong.

Fax: (852) 2369 0981

Email: billy@eternityinv.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s bye-laws
during the year. The Company’s bye-laws is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 33 and 19 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 63.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: Nil). No interim dividend was paid during the
year (2012: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 228 of the annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group are set out in notes 16 and 17
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2013.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves
of the Group and of the Company are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 68 and in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 December 2013 amounted to
HK$469,582,000 (2012: HK$479,761,000).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy

Non-executive director:
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan
Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wan Shing Chi
Mr. Ng Heung Yan
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, Mr. Cheung
Kwok Fan and Mr. Ng Heung Yan retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in information of directors as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)

are set out below:

(@)

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =%}

the monthly salary of Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the
Chairman of the Board and an executive director,
has been revised to HK$550,000 with effect from
1 January 2014;

a discretionary bonus of HK$2,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Lei Hong Wai on 6 December 2013;

the monthly salary of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai,
Elton, an executive director, has been revised to
HK$550,000 with effect from 1 January 2014;

a discretionary bonus of HK$2,000,000 was paid
to Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton on 6 December
2013; and

the monthly salary of Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy
has been revised to HK$96,000 with effect from
1 February 2014.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERFIETBRAERBRORBREZ
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE s

OPTIONS
At 31 December 2013, the interests of the directors R-ZB—=F+=-A=+—H ' BEAXLATR
and chief executive of the Company and their ERAERBEEHEIIREE 2B

% RBRARAREBHARIFERAT

associates in the shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the

((BEXANDBBLEHTRITAESETIESFR
SNRETAMERA  ALAESREET
BAEBRKEZHBEALRAR T RABEE

Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise Bkt HEROREESTHEE 2ERN
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of T

Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:
Long positions o=

a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company a. AAFREBREEBEOIBIZEER

Percentage of

Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of the
shares held Company
Name of director Note  Capacity BEZE BT EARQATE BT
ESHE Wz BH EEREE AT D
Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1 Held by controlled 105,708,000 23.15%
TR EEE corporations
SR AT 2R
Mr. Cheung Kwok 1 Held by controlled 105,708,000 23.15%
Wai, Elton corporations
REIESEE ZEFAR 2R
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1 Held by controlled 105,708,000 23.15%
REIESEAE corporations
ZIEH AT ZEE
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 2,449,500 0.54%

PRIEEE L BERERA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE
OPTIONS (Continued)

Report of the Directors
EFEERE

EERFETBRAERROEEREZ
W (E)

Long positions (Continued) HE(E)
b. Share options b. Bk
Number of Number of
share options underlying
Name of director Capacity held shares
EEpA g0 BEZBREZE HER OB E
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 950 950
THERE BEREEA
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Beneficial owner 2,962,391 2,962,391
PREZZE B4 BER#REA
Note: Htat -
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 1. Twin Success International Limited 7

50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited. Silver
Pacific International Limited is wholly owned by Mr.
Lei Hong Wai. Silver Pacific Development Limited is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton
and as to 50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

Other than the holdings disclosed above, none of the
directors, chief executive and their associates had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations at 31 December 2013.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTIONS BT E

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme RNBERETZFBEHRGS BRI T
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial 390

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the TREBELAQARARFAZBRESE !

Company’s share options during the year:

Number of share options
BhREsA
Outstanding
Outstanding Adjusted at 31
at 1 January for December
2013 Granted Exercised Lapsed open offer 2013
Share option R-E-=F during during during (Note) ~ R=B-=F
type -B-H the year the year theyear HAMBERE T-R=1-H
ERERR HATE RERRH RERTE RERXH (i) HATE
Directors and chief executive
ESRIEAMAR
Mr. Lei Hong Wai
BT 2007B 933 - - - 17 950
933 - - - 17 950
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy 2004 1,416 - - - 25 1,441
{5k 20078 933 - - - 17 950
2013 - 2,960,000 - - - 2,960,000
2,349 2,960,000 - - 42 2,962,391
Total directors and chief executive
EERIEAMABRS 3,282 2,960,000 - - 59 2,963,341
Employees and consultants 2004 6,803 - - - 122 6,925
EERER 2007A 4,507 - - - 81 4,588
20078 21,723 - - - 390 2,113
2012 380,000 - - (386,840) 6,840 -
2013 - 20,840,000 - - - 20,840,000
Total employees and consultants
EERE™AT 413,033 20,840,000 - (386,840) 7433 20,873,626
Total
it 416,315 23,800,000 - (386,840) 7492 23,836,967
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Note: The exercise prices and number of outstanding share
options are adjusted for the open offer of the Company
as completed on 26 April 2013.

The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 24 May 2013, the date of grant of
the 2013 share options, was HK$1.20.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which
are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT EEEYN
No contracts concerning the management and RERNLEET L FEBBEAQ BB M
administration of the whole or any substantial part BEABNEBRZ2EBRITHEY °

of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

At 31 December 2013, the register of substantial R-ZB—=F4+="A=+—10 ' KATIREF
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to SFREERHIZEI6IHKREFEZETERRELM
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance R THRREHREEALASHITREAZ
shows that the following shareholders had notified EERZANEARNT -

the Company of relevant interests in the issued share
capital of the Company.

Long positions L3
a. Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company a. AAFRBREEBEOIBIZEER

Percentage of

Number of  the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

shares held Company

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity BEZBERA ERDARAERT

RRE® i3 4 EERYA REBAL

Twin Success International Limited 1 Beneﬂcial owner 105,708,000 23.15%

BRAAA

Silver Pacific International Limited 1and 2 Held by controlled corporation 105,708,000 23.15%
1k2 SEHDA RS

Silver Pacific Development Limited 1and 3 Held by controlled corporation 105,708,000 23.15%
1k3 TEHARZES

Mr. Lei Hong Wai 1and 2 Held by cor]trglled corporations 105,708,000 23.15%
FHERE 1k2 SEHNRz RS

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton 1and 3 Held by controlled corporations 105,708,000 23.15%
RERLE 1R3 A UNCIPA §

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan 1and 3 Held by controlled corporations 105,708,000 23.15%
REBLE k3 ZEHARZER

Asia Vest Partners VIl Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%
SEHRR RS

Asia Vest Partners X Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%
TEHARZ RS

Asia Vest Partners Limited 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%
TEHNRz RS

Mr. Andrew Nam Sherrill 4 Held by controlled corporations 32,373 9.95%

AR ZEHARZER
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued) FERFR(E)
b. Share options b. HEiR#E
Number of Number of
share options underlying
Name of shareholder Capacity held shares
BRERERB 54 BEZEREHE HERGHE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 950 950
TIEESEE BEREBA
Notes: Mt
1. Twin Success International Limited is owned as to 1. Twin Success International Limited

50% by Silver Pacific International Limited and as to
50% by Silver Pacific Development Limited.

2. Silver Pacific International Limited is wholly owned
by Mr. Lei Hong Wai.

3. Silver Pacific Development Limited is owned as to
50% by Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton and as to 50%
by Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan.

4. The number of issued shares held was adjusted
for the capital reorganisations of the Company that
became effective on 2 May 2008, 23 April 2009 and
9 May 2012.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
positions in the issued share capital of the Company
at 31 December 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

None of the directors or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) has any
interest in a business that competed or was likely to
compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy for the employees of the
Group is set up by the directors of the Company on
the basis of their individual performance, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as
an incentive to directors and eligible persons, details
of the share option scheme is set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
directors of the Company as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In 2013, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for 22.20% (2012: 74.01%) and
69.23% (2012: 83.72%) of its turnover respectively.

In 2013, there was no supplier to the Group.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of a director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events occurring after
the reporting period are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as auditors of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Lei Hong Wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Biographical Details of Directors
ESBEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, aged 45, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board on 18 January 2010 and 1 February
2010, respectively. He is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lei is responsible for
the development of the overall strategic planning
and management of the Group. He has over 15 years
of extensive experience in corporate management,
investment and business development. He was
a director of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Limited, which promotes interaction
amongst its members which are listed companies in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China, in
2002. He also holds directorships in the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lei is also a director of Twin
Success International Limited, the substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton, aged 48, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1
February 2011. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the
business development of the Group. He has over 22
years of experience in the area of corporate finance
and securities industries. He holds a Master Degree
in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries and the unlisted
associated companies of the Company. Mr. Cheung is
also a director of Twin Success International Limited,
the substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is the elder brother of Mr.
Cheung Kwok Fan, the non-executive director of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy, aged 50, was appointed as
an executive director of the Company on 18 January
2010. Mr. Chan is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. He has over 25 years of
experience in accounting and financial control. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a CPA member of CPA Australia
and a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor
of Administration Degree from the University of
Ottawa in Canada and a Master of Commerce Degree
in Professional Accounting from the University of
New South Wales in Australia. Mr. Chan also holds
a directorship in a subsidiary of the Company. He is
the company secretary of the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He was an independent
non-executive director of Eternite International
Company Limited (stock code: 8351, now known
as Larry Jewelry International Company Limited),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
operated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), during the period
from 21 September 2009 to 22 February 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EFEEFR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan, aged 46, has over 20 years of
working experience in the field of architecture. He is
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects, a
member of The Royal Australian Institute of Architects,
Registered Architect in Hong Kong and an Authorised
Person in the list of architects. He obtained his
Bachelor Degree of Arts in Architectural Studies from
The University of Hong Kong in 1989 and a Bachelor
Degree in Architectural from The University of Hong
Kong in 1991. He was selected as an awardee of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons Selection organised
by Junior Chamber of International Hong Kong in
2005. He is the younger brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok
Wai, Elton, an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as the non-executive director
of the Company on 31 August 2011.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Shing Chi, aged 43, has over 19 years of
experience in the field of construction engineering
and is currently a site coordinator of a reputable
construction company in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering with honours from
University of Melbourne, Australia and is a member
of the Asia Institute of Building. Mr. Wan joined the
Company in May 2010.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Ng Heung Yan, aged 43, has over 9 years of
experience in metal work engineering design and
currently works as a design manager in a private
engineering company in Hong Kong. He was
graduated from Monash University in Australia with
a Bachelor Degree of Engineering (Industrial and
Computing) in 1993. He was an independent non-
executive director of Eternite International Company
Limited (stock code: 8351, now know as Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited), a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market operated by the Stock
Exchange, during the period from 21 September 2009
to 22 February 2011. Mr. Ng joined the Company in
August 2011.

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 49, is a fellow member
of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance
related positions in an international accounting firm
in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong Kong and a
company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong joined the Company in
November 2011.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WIABEESE

By M7 & 3t 0 F % 51 A R oo 4
HL Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Eternity Investment Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 227, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
I ZNENER S

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ

FeiRaR

—E—ZFEf_HA=+—HULFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E-CF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Vi FET FET
Turnover SRR 7 26,305 67,442
Cost of sales SHERA - —
Gross profit ER 26,305 67,442
Investment and other income BRERHEMUWA 8 42,955 2,601
Other gains and losses HthBEREE 9 87,279 163,131
Administrative expenses THAX (50,022) (28,752)
Share of results of associates NG 19 (3,720) (1,928)
Profit from operations RS 10 102,797 207,494
Finance costs mEE R - =
Profit before taxation KREL AR A 102,797 207,494
Income tax expense FRrSHRA X 13 (5,560) (1,236)
Profit for the year REERF 97,237 206,258
Profit for the year attributable to: LU~ A TGS EHEF :
Owners of the Company AATEB A 97,238 206,259
Non-controlling interests R ER (1) (1)
97,237 206,258
Earnings per share BREF 14
Basic B=WiN HK24.00 cents &l HK92.38 centsj&fll
Diluted e HK24.00 cents&fl  HK92.34 cents &l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =% F#f

BER 2 P EE B R AN AR B R B 3R 2 — 8B40 o

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB REEH% BB R AF]




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GERsREMZEIERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

2013 2012
—8-=f —Z-—=F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
Profit for the year REERF 97,237 206,258
Other comprehensive income for ZAFEHMEEWE
the year, net of income tax BRETEBIEHB R
Items that may be reclassified BN EERERZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HE
Net (loss)/gain arising on ENftETHEESRERE
revaluation of available-for-sale EEZ(FE) W FEE
financial assets 21 (5,270) 57,129
Reclassification adjustments EECHETHEESR
relating to available-for-sale EEZENDERAE
financial assets disposed of (7,079) —
Total comprehensive income for Z<&E#A2EHKH
the year 84,888 263,387
Total comprehensive income for L TFNATEEEEEHA
the year attributable to: ZHEWE :
Owners of the Company RDFEE A 84,889 263,388
Non-controlling interests IR ER (1) (1)
84,888 263,387

The accompanying notes form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMBEKXAE

At 31 December 2013 R=ZF—=#F#+=-F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F -
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Btat FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BERKE 16 89 301
Investment properties REWE 17 - 21,940
Intangible assets BEEE 18 1,929 5,722
Interests in associates REEE N F 2 s 19 46,916 43,259
Convertible notes receivables FEW AT 2 AR 2 15 20 24,602 323,160
Available-for-sale financial assets HBMHEESREE 21 172 129,671
Loans receivables EWER 23 605,148 =
678,856 524,053
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables g 5 ERE 22 37 41
Loans receivables EWRER 23 168,476 60,753
Deposits, prepayments and RE - ANRIERHEM
other receivables FE U FRI8E 24 11,191 14,815
Amount due from an associate FE U B & N B SRR 25 3,528 3,528
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTABRERZ
through profit or loss SREE 26 49,046 25,199
Convertible notes receivables FEUR T2 iR E i 20 200,840 =
Conversion options embedded in EWAIBRREERE 2
convertible notes receivables HiRERE 27 77,572 74,256
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEEY 28 662,153 297,967
1,172,843 476,559
Assets classified as held for sale HDEAFEHEZEE 29 - 603,000
1,172,843 1,079,559
Total assets EEHE 1,851,699 1,603,612
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable 7~ F#EA A {5 R A
to owners of the Company & f#E
Share capital [ 30 4,567 2,574
Reserves f#%E 1,820,805 1,519,380
Equity attributable to owners of Z<2 T#EH AFE(G
the Company R 1,825,372 1,521,954
Non-controlling interests FIERER (3) (2)
Total equity B 1,825,369 1,521,952
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FeMBERXALE

At 31 December 2013 R=ZF—=#F+=-F=+—H

2013 2012
—_EB—-=F —E—_—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HraE FET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals, deposit received and EstER - 2WiEE R
other payables Hh B RIE 31 10,056 68,200
Rental deposits received glhiEERE - 1,595
Tax payable P& 1 B 18 16,043 9,533
26,099 79,328
Non-current liability FRBEME
Deferred taxation IR FE TR 18 32 231 2,332
Total liabilities BEHAE 26,330 81,660
Total equity and liabilities EELEERE 1,851,699 1,603,612
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,146,744 1,000,231
Total assets less current EEABRME
liabilities =K 1,825,600 1,524,284
The consolidated financial statements were approved AR ECN-E—NE=A=-_+FHELK
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEEMERRETE  WAHTIALREKRSE
25 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: =
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
TIEE FRigEE
Director Director
== ZZE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of BEMT 2 MisE R AN S B &R KR 2 — 34 o
these consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
MEKXKAER

At 31 December 2013 R=ZF—=#F#+=-F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—= —E—-F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN P £ 33 1,034,377 820,056
Current assets REEE
Prepayment FETFRIE 24 59 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeEREBEEEEY 28 565 7,339
624 7,339
Total assets EEHAE 1,035,001 827,395
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable Z~2 T#H A FE{L
to owners of the Company BAR #E
Share capital &N 30 4,567 2,574
Reserves & 34 936,774 731,693
Total equity AR 941,341 734,267
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals FEstE R 31 3,011 2,604
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN NG E ] 35 90,649 90,524
93,660 93,128
Total liabilities EEARE 93,660 93,128
Total equity and liabilities EERaERE 1,035,001 827,395
Net current liabilities BB EEHE (93,036) (85,789)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERBABERE 941,341 734,267
The financial statements were approved and B ROR=E—NE=A=1+HHEES
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 S EREETZ  YHTHIALTRRER .
March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:
Lei Hong Wai Chan Kin Wah, Billy
iR FRigEE
Director Director
EE EE
The accompanying notes form an integral part of BEM = B R 1B B AN AR B B FE 3Rk 2 — BB 4D o

these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FegEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z—F— =+ =-H=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KDTREARE
Available-for-
sale financial
Share-based assets Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed payment  revaluation Other  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests Total
lthE
SHEE

WREKS  ZEERE
R&  BHEE  E4RE  RER&  XRBE ffE  EbEE  REE Mt FERER it
HKS000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0  HKS000
7&n 7En i3 i3 bz-23 & 723 7&r 7&n 7 7En

(Note &) (Note b) (Note c) (Note )

Wda) (KD We) (B

At 1 January 2012 WZE-ZE-F-R 19,344 21,744 19,644 327,308 11,148 (44780) - 623,033 1,237,636 () 128763
Proft for the year KEERA - - - - - - - 206,259 206,59 () 2628
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEEM2ENE

Net gain arising on reveluaton of avalable- ~ EFffEEA LHECHEEREE

for-sal financiel assets EsE = - - - - 57,129 - - 57,129 - 57,129
Totel comprehensive income for theyear  AEE2ANGLE - - - - - 57,129 - 206,59 263,388 () 23387
Capital reorganisation g4 (77,360 - - 77,360 - - - - - - -
Placing of new shares BENRG 3% 12,09 - - - - - - 12,604 - 12,604
Share ssue expenses RERER - (356) - - - - - - (356) - (356)
Share-based payment expenses DUV S5 - - - - 1,892 - - - 1892 - 14892
Release on lapse of share options EREXNERR - - - - (1,300) - - 1300 - - -
Exercise of share options fEERE 19 8,362 - - (1,856) - - = 6,700 = 6,700
At31 December 2012 and 1 January 2018~ R=F-EFZf=+-RR-E-=E--R 2574 242,048 19,844 404,663 9,884 12,349 - 830592 1,521,954 Q1521982
Prot for the yer REREA = = = = = = - o o 0 o

Other comprehensive income for the year AR 2N
Netloss arising on revaluaton of avaleble-  ESffERA KL ESBEENEL Y

for-sale financial assets FERE - - - - - (5210) - - (5210) - (5,270)
Reclassification acjustments relaing o~ BERHETREESRER,

avallable-for-sale financil assets EffERe

disposed of - - - - - m - - -
Totel comprehensive income for theyear ~ AEE2ANGLE - - - - - (12,349) - 97,238 84,889 1) 84,888
Placing of new shares REHRH 40 2,845 = = = = = = 30315 = 30315
Open offer of new shares ARRERRS 1523 181,14 - - - - - - 182,669 - 182,669
Share Isue expenses VL5 - @176) - - - - - - 2176) - .178)
Share-based payment expenses WREFARHZER - - - - 7,081 - - - 7,081 = 7,081
Release on lapse of share options BRERNGER - - - - (3%) - - % - - -
Share o other reserve of an associate EEREATENER _ _ - - - - 1240 = 1,240 - 1,240
At 31 December 2013 H=%-=§t2A=t1-R 4,567 450,263 19,644 404,663 16,029 - 1,240 921,866 1,626,312 @ 182539
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FeEREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

Notes:

()

(b)

(c)

Capital reserve represents the difference of share capital
and share premium of the subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the 880 shares issued by Riche (BVI) Limited
(formerly known as Ocean Shores (BVI) Limited) prior to
the allotment of 120 shares to Classical Statue Limited and
the amount arising from issue of share by a subsidiary.

Contributed surplus represents the net amount transferred
from share capital and share premium account to retained
profits/accumulated losses account pursuant to the special
resolutions passed at the special general meetings held on
22 August 2003, 30 April 2008 and 12 December 2011.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for
each reporting period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the share options over the relevant vesting
periods (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the
share-based payment reserve account.

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
represents cumulative gains and losses on revaluation
of available-for-sale financial assets recognised in other
comprehensive income less those cumulative gains and
losses recycled and recognised in profit or loss upon
derecognition of available-for-sale financial assets.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HFeEBeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Profit before taxation BRI A 102,797 207,494
Adjustments for: FHE
Cumulative gains reclassified from R&I-FEEAHHE
equity to profit or loss upon TRIBEERHERS
derecognition of available-for- BN EERAR
sale financial assets 2 25t 9 (7,079) —
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% - BERREZ
equipment e 16 95 240
Dividend income R E WA 8 (36,479) —
Gain arising on change in fair value EWRATBRBREERSZ
of conversion options embedded HBRERECAFE
in convertible notes receivables SBHEE 2 WE 9 (29,836) (42)
Gain arising on change in fair value HIBEWARKREEE
upon conversion of convertible NP EEHEE
notes receivables pALE:S & (16,446) -
Gain on a bargain purchase REBE WS 9 - (32)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBE A 7 2 Was 9 (588) —
Interest income on bank deposits  $RITERZFE WA 8 (6,462) (1,375)
Imputed interest income on FEU AT IR =98 2
convertible notes receivables fHER S WA 9 (38,233) (50,086)
Impairment loss recognised in O R R U B
respect of amount due from an N EIFIE Z B EE R
associate 9 - 3,865
Impairment loss recognised in CEABFEEZRESE
respect of intangible assets 9 3,793 38,218
Loss arising on change in fair value #ZAFEABRZRZ
of financial assets at fair value TRMEEQATEEE
through profit or loss EEZEE 9 5,307 5,169
Loss arising on early redemption of EFREEEKRITRRKRERE
convertible notes receivables ELE2EE & - 1,930
Loss/(gain) arising on change in fair REVEAFEEBHELE
value of investment properties ZEE (k) 9 1,940 (168,592)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BMERRE
and equipment ZEE 9 - 302
Loss/(gain) on disposal of an HEREMEZEE
investment properties (frzs) 10, 8 13,000 (640)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ EEARBEE AR 2ERZ
impairment loss recognised in CREEERE) TRE
respect of interests =]
in associates 9 (6,137) 6,137
Share of results of associates L E NP EE 3,720 1,928
Share-based payment expenses URGOEAZF2HX 7,081 1,892

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeEBEeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

2013 2012
—E2—= =B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Operating cash flows before EEESRPHAZKE
movements in working capital HERE (3,527) 46,408
Decrease in trade receivables g 5 EWRIERD 4 4,803
Increase in loans receivables FE W & K38 hn (712,871) (27,148)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments &€ ~ AN RER Hitb
and other receivables i e 572 1,336
Increase in amount due from an FE U B & B SR IE 3T 0
associate - (5,390)
Decrease in financial assets at fair ZAFEFABZR2EH
value through profit or loss BRERD 207,205 10,710
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and FEGTE A Kk HAE(SFRIE
other payables CRA) /10 (58,124) 54,745
Decrease in rental deposits B WA EZE SR
received (1,440) (1,518)
Cash (used in)/generated from EEB(TA) BEEZRS
operations (568,181) 83,946
Tax paid 2FHiIE (1,140) (39)
Net cash (used in)/generated from E&FE(FFAH) ELXEz2BEE
operating activities HEE (569,321) 83,907
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Acquisition of available-for-sale WA EHESR
financial assets BE - (7,450)
Acquisition of convertible notes Wit B P L AT R AR
receivables 5 - (27,000)
Dividend income (=N N 8 36,479 —
Interest received 2WFE 4,637 1,375
Interest received from convertible B EWATRKREE 2
notes receivables 2 WFH 2 30,384 32,868
Net cash outflow of acquisition of W AT 2RSSR FEHE
an associate - (51,324)
Net cash outflow of acquisition of WEEKMB AR ZRERHH EEE
subsidiaries 36 - (33,064)
Net cash inflow of disposal of HEMBARZRERAFEHE
subsidiaries 37 24,532 686
Proceeds from disposal of HETHLESHEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets Fri8FIE 21 41,280 —
Proceeds from disposal of HEREVXE B
investment properties I8 17, 29 586,000 7,950
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - MERREZ
plant and equipment Fri8FIE - 29
Proceeds from early redemption of 2R HEEEWNATRKREZE 2
convertible notes receivables Fri8FE - 75,000
Purchase of investment properties BEREY%E - (21,438)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BER
equipment B 16 (13) (242)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REFEEL (FTA)2BEE
investing activities ) 723,299 (22,610)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HFeEBeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

2013 2012
—E2—= =B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Biat FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITY BEEE
Net proceeds from issue of new BITHRM 2 AERE
shares HER 210,208 19,038
Net cash generated from METHEECRSFHE
financing activity 210,208 19,038
Net increase in cash and cash RERBASEEYMEMFRE
equivalents 364,186 80,335
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNzHEERESEEY
beginning of year 297,967 217,632
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEERERS
end of year £EY 662,153 297,967
Analysis of the balances of cash BHERBESEEYER
and cash equivalents Ay
Included in cash and cash FFAGRE BB R R
equivalents per the consolidated ZRERAE
statement of financial position EEY 28 662,153 297,967
The accompanying notes form an integral part of BEMS 2 I E B A A AR B BT B d Rk 2 — &R 4D o

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —RER
The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as AARARRNBREZMALZEREE
an exempted company with limited liability and its RAF MEEBTROEFTBHEHESR
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange SHBEMRAR (B3R L o

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the ARA A 2 & 95 B i 3k & Clarendon
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. HM 11, Bermuda °

The Company’s principal activity is investment RARCEEEBRAREER > mMEM
holding and the principal activities of its BARAKRBMERARZEEZEK D AIER
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes REMBREMEIIR19

33 and 19 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are REMBBRRUATEBR(TFERT)Z%
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong BRATRRARBZHEEH -

Dollars (HK$’000), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied,
for the first time, a number of new standards,
amendments and interpretations (“Int”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs”), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning on 1 January 2013.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
(Revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
(Revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
(Revised in 2011) Ventures

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
(Amendments) Cycle

HKFRS 1 Government Loans
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
(Amendments) and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint

11 and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests

(Amendments) in Other Entities: Transition Guidance
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a
Surface Mine

The Group has early applied HKAS 36
(Amendments) Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets, which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives had been allocated when
there has been no impairment or reversal of
impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore,
the amendments introduce additional disclosure
requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used
when the recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU was determined based on its fair value
less costs of disposal. The early application
of amendments to HKAS 36 removes the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amounts
of individual asset mentioned above. Other than
the additional disclosures by application of HKAS
36, the application of HKAS 36 has not had any
material impact on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time the package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
Separate Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, together with the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to
the Group as it deals only with separate financial
statements.

The impact of the application of these standards
is set out below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
(Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation
— Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes
the definition of control such that an investor
has control over an investee when (a) it has
power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and (c) has the ability to use
its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have
control over an investee. Previously, control was
defined as the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Additional guidance
has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when
an investor has control over an investee. Some
guidance included in HKFRS 10 that deals with
whether or not an investor that owns less than
50% of the voting rights in an investee has
control over the investee is relevant to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures, and the guidance contained in a related
interpretation, HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by
Venturers, has been incorporated in HKAS
28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with
how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified
and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are
only two types of joint arrangements — joint
operations and joint ventures. The classification
of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is
determined based on the rights and obligations of
parties to the joint arrangements by considering
the structure, the legal form of the arrangements,
the contractual terms agreed by the parties to
the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts
and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators)
have rights to the assets, and obligations for
the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31
contemplated three types of joint arrangements
— jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The
classification of joint arrangements under HKAS
31 was primarily determined based on the legal
form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement
that was established through a separate entity
was accounted for as a jointly controlled entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11
(Continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint
ventures and joint operations is different.
Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments
in joint operations are accounted for such
that each joint operator recognises its assets
(including its share of any assets jointly held),
its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share
of revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation) and its expenses (including its
share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint
operator accounts for the assets and liabilities,
as well as revenues and expenses, relating to its
interest in the joint operation in accordance with
the applicable Standards.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and
is applicable to entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities.

Other than the additional disclosures by
application of HKFRS 12, the application of
HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 11 has not had any
material impact on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes
a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; the fair value measurement requirements
of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for
which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable
value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset
as the price that would be received to sell an
asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case
of determining the fair value of a liability) in
an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under
HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS
13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application from
1 January 2013. In addition, specific transitional
provisions were given to entities such that they
need not apply the disclosure requirements set
out in the Standard in comparative information
provided for periods before the initial application
of the Standard. In accordance with these
transitional provisions, the Group has not made
any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for
the 2012 comparative period. Other than the
additional disclosures, the application of HKFRS
138 has not had any material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments
to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income. The amendments
introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and the income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1,
the “statement of comprehensive income” is
renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” and the “income
statement” is renamed as the “statement of
profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS
1 require additional disclosures to be made in
the other comprehensive income section such
that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been
modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.

ERAHMIREETERUBRESE
RI(TERMBREER D) (4)

BB ERAEIRAMEE KERE
Z 2 ZEETE

AEBCREATBEFENFE1RAM
PEHKBZEAZZZ2EITAR BB
EBIASIAZERERREKERZH
MeE e RIBEBSERNE 1R BT
Ao[rEBER IENvERBEERE
fozmElER] MMkER B EH®

RIEER | - BEBEHENFEIRZE
AARZNEEREMMEE KSR E R
B JUE-HRIADHUAMBEE
BoBmR2Y - b BBEFEREA
SR 2B R AN R E H At 2 H W 2= #0 A E
BIMEBEUSHMEEKRBEE D AW
B (ERTEEN I EERERZE
B ROHEBENEHBERGTIREE
HMOBEBERZIEE - Htt2EH W E
HEZFEHRANEREESE — B
BT EREHME2EKEIEEB UBRB
BIRRE 2D 2 BIEE - ZEBITE
KEeEWER  REtEME2EWEIRR
ZE2VNFAECERURREBREZE - B&
L2 FXN 22BN BABEBES
FRAF1R 2B AHER  Ht 2|
Wi RAE2EW ST EBREALE -

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/{E 15 EHPR AT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-
2011 Cycle include a number of amendments to
various HKFRSs. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013. Amendments to HKFRSs include:

o amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant
and Equipment; and

o amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

Amendments to HKAS 16

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that
spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing
equipment should be classified as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definition
of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16
and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the amendments
to HKAS 16 will have a significant effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle issued in June 2012 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that
income tax on distributions to holders of an
equity instrument and transaction costs of an
equity transaction should be accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the
amendments to HKAS 32 will have no effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
the Group has already adopted this treatment.

Save as described above, the application of the
above new and revised HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position
for the current or prior accounting periods have
been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment has been required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following

new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective:
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BRMBHREER
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CHES) ERUBREEN EEY
%3
ERBHREER “E--FRCE-ZFEH
(B K) ERMBREENZFER
£2

ERVBHEENER ERIA
ERPBRERAEL  HNETHERBBURREE

HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
(Amendments) Contributions?

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
(Amendments) Liabilities'

HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
(Amendments) Hedge Accounting’

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
(Amendments) Cycle?®

HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
(Amendments) Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 Hedge Accounting and Amendments to
and HKAS 39 HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
(Amendments) HKAS 39°

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities’

ERMBREENE TS
REBSIHERF 9N

AEO% - BBMBHER
AETEREBEHENE

and HKAS 27
(Revised in 2011)
(Amendments)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts*
HK (IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014.
S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014, with limited exceptions.
o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016.
< No mandatory effective date yet determined but is

available for adoption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

3. NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was
amended in 2010 to include requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described
below:

J All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
reporting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

3.

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ*i%Z%J&u H|
78 B M 2 R (4)

BEBYBHEEERFEIREHMTA(E

e  With regard to the measurement of financial e HEERATFEFABZZRZEH
liabilities designated as at fair value through BEZFEMS  BEVKEREE

profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of
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HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant FHRAREHAEE 2 SREERSR
impact on the amounts reported in respect of the EBEZEHRESEBREATE LK
Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. BremEEmMSs  BEEFHARS TN
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not Al REZFE B4 L RYET
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate 1T °

of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

Save as described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of new
and revised HKFRSs will have no material effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

m ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED ki85 B8 & AR AT

BrEX Pt E S RABESRHEER
M REEITEBUBRELANTSYH
FEBZREMBRREREALE -

Annual Report 2013 —Z —=FFf




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which is a collective term that includes all
applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Int
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair

value of the consideration given in exchange
for assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement
date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than
quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs
for the asset or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies.

The Group’s books and record are
maintained in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”)
as the directors of the Company control
and monitor the performance and financial
position of the Group in HKS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any gains
or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the
case of a bargain purchase, the difference is

recognised directly in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Interests in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s interests in
associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Interests in associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell)
and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an
associate” in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest
in associates are recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill
of subsidiaries, associates and joint

arises on the acquisition

ventures and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the
Group’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquire and the fair value of
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity
at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held
for sale when their carrying amount is to
be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The non-current assets are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. Deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment properties,
even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

A discontinued operation is a component
of the Group’s business, the operations
and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of
business or geographic area of operations,
or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale.

When an operation is classified as
discontinued, a single amount is presented
in the profit or loss, which comprises the
post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. The
Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below.
The Group bases its estimates of return on
historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from distribution of films is
recognised when video products or master
materials of films are delivered to customers
and the title has passed.

Revenue from sub-licensing of film rights is
recognised upon delivery of master materials
of films to customers.

Revenue from sale of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised
when sale and purchase contracts become
unconditional.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance, from properties under operating
lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the respective leases.

Service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue arising from money lending is
recognised on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and
the effective interest rate applicable.

Revenue from properties held for sale is
recognised on the execution of a binding
sales agreement. Payments received from
the purchasers prior to this stage are
recorded as deposits received on sales of
properties and are grouped under current
liabilities.

Dividend
recognised when the shareholders’

income from investments is
right to

receive payment has been established.

Interest income from financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the excepted life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGU, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGU for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or
a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of
the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on
taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continueqd)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred
tax liabilities or deferred tax assets for
investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than
through sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

1)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss, except when they relate
to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 33.3%
Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 15%

Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment
is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued used of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for
such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised
upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives
that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives.

and accumulated

The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and recognised separately from
goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: financial
assets “at fair value through profit or loss”
(“FVTPL”), “available-for-sale” (“AFS”)
financial assets and “loans and receivables”.
The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FESHBERME(#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) ERMTAHE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Effective interest method BRAZEZ

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL
when the financial asset is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

(i) on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset

held for trading may be designated as at

FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

(iii)

such designated eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BiZ —_E—=#+_A=+—HIFE
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FERTHBEBRE(E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) E@MIE(#E)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line
item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale or
are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group
that are classified as AFS financial assets
and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends
on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the available-
for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
trade receivables, loans receivables, other
receivables, amount due from an associate,
convertible notes receivables and cash and
cash equivalents) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) EMTHEE)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Convertible notes receivables held by the
Group are separately presented as debt and
embedded conversion option components.
On initial recognition, the debt component
represents the residual between the fair
value of the convertible notes and the
fair value of the embedded conversion

EHEE (&)

ERERSE ()

AEEMFER 2BE AR ERET
BEBRASZRBEERERDD
2% - RIRFERE - B0
EUBMREEAFEREAS ZHIR
BEEIRD QN FEZHRE - G
B RBERKEWKIE LR
HEBERAEBRA A RBE R AT

option component. The debt component is B

classified as loans and receivables and is

subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets EHEEZBE

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL,
are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired when
there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) EMTHE)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days,
as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

TESHTHRERE#E)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(m) ERTHEE

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEEZHE(E)

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss
will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4. FEETHEMEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(m) ERTAHEE

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4, FEETHERME &)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) BRI AE(#E)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including accruals
and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

EHEEREZ TR

SEERRTZERREZTAR
BRZHERE  UREREERE
mTAZEERMIBAEREER
R o

EFETH

BaTASEREREE 2R eRE
S(RNBREMBEE) ZEME
WeAEEMBT2EZTRARIW
FEMBREERITRARAR

BEARAAG2ERETADNEHE
RESEIRNEG - BE - HE-
BROTRNEHEARAAGZEBETR
HAENBERBEIWRSHEE -

HteMEE(BEEEAERARA
b BN FIR) AR RAERFRZA
BB RANGTE -

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sk1E ZEIE#% & F R A A

117




118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis other than financial
liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value at the date when derivative contracts
are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 4.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

TESHTHRERE#E)

(m) EMTHEE)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)
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Derivative financial instruments (Continued) TERMTAE
Embedded derivatives AETTELELBIT A

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when they meet the definition of a derivative,
their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and
the host contracts are not measured at
FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on
the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they
expire. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivable are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as

non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at
the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Employee benefits

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for bonuses
when there is a contractual obligation and
the amount can be estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are
held in separate trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% to 10%
of the employees’ relevant income, with the
employees’ contributions subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000.
The Group’s contributions to the MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred. 5% of
relevant income vests immediately upon
the completion of service in the relevant
service period, while the remaining portion
vests in accordance with the MPF Scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave the
MPF Scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
share options and restricted share awards is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined with reference
to the fair value of the share options and
restricted share awards granted. At the
end of each reporting period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of
share options that are expected to become
exercisable and the number of restricted
share awards that become vested. It
recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity
in the consolidated statement of financial
position will be made over the remaining
vesting periods.

The proceeds received, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs, are credited
to share capital and share premium accounts
when the share options are exercised and
when the restricted share awards are vested.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods
or services are measured at the fair values
of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted.
The fair value received is recognised as
expenses immediately, unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustment has been made
to equity (share-based payment reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it
is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A
contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so
that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that
arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. A contingent asset is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Related party transactions

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over
the Group; or

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3 is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Related party transactions (Continued)

(ii)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k& %

An entity is related to the Group if any

of the following conditions applies:

(1)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party; or

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the group or
an entity related to the Group; or

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or

a person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where
the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of intangible assets

Despite the fact that the services
agreements can be terminated by giving not
less than 12-month’s prior written notice to
the Group, the directors of the Company
determine the services agreements have
indefinite lives as they have no expiry date.

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of intangible
assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 4(h) to the consolidated
financial statements. The recoverable
amounts of intangible assets are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the business, pre-
tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
Information about the assumptions
and the risk factors on impairment of
intangible assets is stated in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Estimate of fair value of investment
property

Investment property is stated at fair value
based on the market values, being the
estimated amount for which properties
could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction or the
valuation performed by an independent
valuer. In determining the fair value, the
valuer has based on method of valuation
which involves certain estimates and
assumptions. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised
their judgements and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the
current market conditions. Should there
be any changes in assumptions due to
change of market conditions, the fair value
of the investment property will be adjusted
accordingly.

Useful
equipment

lives of property, plant and

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The useful lives are estimated at
the time the assets are acquired based on
historical experience, the expected usage,
wear and tear of the assets, as well as
technical obsolescence arising from changes
in the market demands or service output of
the assets. The Group also performs annual
reviews on whether the assumptions made
on useful lives continue to be valid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Trade and loans receivables

The aged debt profiles of trade and loans
receivables are reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that the trade and loans
receivables balances are collectible and
follow up actions are promptly carried out if
the agreed credit periods or terms of loans
have been exceeded. However, from time
to time, the Group may experience delays
in collection. Where recoverability of trade
and loans receivables balances is called into
doubts, specific provisions for impairments
are made based on credit status of the
customers, the aged analysis of the trade
and loans receivables balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially
identified as collectible, yet subsequently
become uncollectible and result in a
subsequent write-off of the related
receivables to profit or loss. Changes in the
collectability of trade and loans receivables
for which provisions are not made could
affect our results of operations.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

BASRE Rt fh 5T & M ()

(d)

B S RURR KR B ER

FEEERRIEZBUERRKE
BWERZRE  AERATKREZE
SRWRARERER ZEREE
TARBEFEEHRRERFHE
HIR BB ERENBR 1T B - AT - &
EEWRAESHRER - HES
Ui B R e P U B R B R 2 T W
wErR IXAKEEEREEFZ
SEMRR  EZRURRARERE
FRERFE 2 BRI D AT R AR AC 8% - {F
HASBURERE - & TRWFIAR
NI/ RE - HEERITREE
SE W E T AP 18 2 R R MEE AR B
WRE - AR BRABERS HRE
b2 8 5 FE W IR 7R I B W & SR 4 i
Bl MRS HEEXEBAY
g

Annual Report 2013 —Z —=FFf
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fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes
in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Valuation of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation techniques
that include inputs that are not based
on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial
Notes 27, 39 and 43 to
the consolidated financial statements

instruments.

provide detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination of
the fair value of financial instruments, as
well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for
these assumptions.

The directors of the Company believe
that the chosen valuation techniques
and assumptions used are appropriate
in determining the fair value of financial
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS 6. EEDI
The Group’s reportable segments have been AEEZUEHRS>BERBERDESTSE
determined based on the information reported to FENETELEERRTA)REZERE
the Chairman of the Board, being chief operating T BEERT BEETREEMGRE
decision maker, that are used for performance HRBEMERE - AEBZREXK IR
assessment and to make strategic decisions. The BEHEXEERAREZERRREE
Group’s operating businesses are structured and BREBUIEE - AEEZU2HD I
managed separately according to the nature of BIREERRRE 2 EREEERE
their operations and the products and services U EffEH AR REREAEME 2
they provide. Each of the Group’s reportable WAOEARE - AEBHREELET 2K
segments represents a strategic business unit oER -
that offers products and services which are
subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other reportable segments. The
Group currently has five reportable segments:
(a) Distribution Distribution of films and (a) BT BRTEYNERESY
sub-licensing of film B ATHE
rights
(b) Property Leasing of rental properties (b) MERSE ESFHRAYE
investment
(c) Sale of financial Sale of financial assets at (c) HELH HERATFETAB
assets fair value through profit BE HEVEBMEE
or loss
(d) Provision of Provision of management (d) EHEE GRS EE B
management services to the concierge PR 7% RN ARE IR
services department of a gaming IR RS
promoter appointed by a
Macau casino
() Money lending Money lending (e) £H =
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fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIE)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, B _E—=EN_ZE—Z_—_%+=A1
assets, liabilities and other selected financial =+—BHLFE XEBERTVTERD S
information for the years ended 31 December Bozlhs - ¥E -EE - BERHM
2013 and 2012 by reportable segment are as BEMBEERSMUOT :
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE_Z—=F+-HA=+—HLFE
Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution  investment assets services lending  Consolidated
#E Rt
2 NERE SHEE EBMRE &8 &4
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
77 77 77 77 77 77
Revenue 1§
Segment revenue s - 3,402 (1,710) 512 24,101 26,305
Results 4
Segment ([oss)/proft AB(E8) /%A (35) (21,217) 35,850 (3,319) 23,09 34,312
Interest income on bank deposits (note 8§ FTEFZMEMA 6/ 6,462
Unallocated corporate income APEAZENA 14
Unallocated corporate expenses AIREERT (25,511)
Gain arising on change in fair value of ERTEREEAZ HREEE

conversion options embedded in LAVERBEL WG

convertible notes receivables (note 9) (Hit9) 29,836
Gain arising on change in fair value FRERTARTEAATERE

upon conversion of convertible notes EfZWasHi29)

receivables (note 9) 16,446
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note §)  HEKBAR W H:29) 568
Imputed interest income on convertible BUTARZE 2 BEHSRA

notes receivables (note 9) (Hit9) 38,233
Reversal of impairment loss recognisedin ~ CRHNBEAT 2 RS HES

respect of interests in associates BREH9)

(note 9) 6,137
Finance costs HEER -
Share of results of associates ElBeNn%E (3,720)
Profit before taxation BB 102,797
Income tax expense (note 13) FeRmxFE13) (6,960)
Proft for the year REERA 97,237
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 BiZ —E—=F+_H=+—HIFFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDI(E)
At 31 December 2013 R-EBE—=%+=-H=+—H

Sale of  Provision of

Property financial  management Money
Distribution  investment assets services lending  Consolidated
#E Rt

EO NERE EHEE EBRH B8 78
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T 241 241 %] Fir T

Assets and liabilities EEREE
Assets (]
Segment assets for reportable segment BV
— Hong Kong — BB 255 m 89,142 - 788,051 878,419
— Macau i - - - 2,003 - 2,008
255 m 89,142 2,008 788,051 880,422
Unallocated corporate assets RARLREE 71,247
Consolidated total assets GREESE 1,851,669
Liabilities af
Segment liabilties for reportable segment ~ T2H3Fz2HEE
- Hong Kong — 5% - (29) ] - (181) (212)
— Macau i - - - (231) - (231)
- (29) ] (231) (181) (#43)
Unallocated corporate liabiliies RARLEEE (25,887)
Consolidated total liabilties ReBEAE (26,330)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEI )

For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-Z—=+-A=+—HLEE

Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution  investment assets services lending  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
#E Rt
3] VS SREE EERE f& AR fa
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
721 7% 7L 7L 7T 7T FET
Other segment information ~ EfA 544
Amount included in the measure HEAL(5E) Rk
of segment (loss)/profitand ~ AHEEMTAZEE
segment assets
Additions to property, plant RENE BERGE
and equipment - 13 - - - - 13
Cumulative gains reclassified ~ RALBRTLHE
from equity to proft or SHERRMER
loss upon derecognition of BN BEERRY
available-for-sale financial ZithsHiz9)
assets (note 9) - - 7,079 - - - 7,079
Depreciation of property, plant 1% - BERR(EZ
and equipment (note 10) wElZ ) - 4 53 - - - 95
Dividend income (note 8) REBA 28 - - 36,479 - - - 36,479
Impairment loss recognised in -~ EREN AR ZHE
respect of intangible assets B9
(note 9) - - - (3,793) - - (3,793)
Loss arising on change in BROTETABERL
fair value of financial SHEELTERD
assets at fair value through BB
profit or loss (note 9) - - (5,307) - - - (5,307)
Loss arising on change in RENENTESD
fair value of investment ELZERF9)
properties (note 9) - (1,940) - - - - (1,940)
Loss on disposal of investment ~ (EERENEER
properties (note 10) (1) - (13,000) - - - - (13,000)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 E#Z=-F—=

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

FroA=+—ALEE

6. EENERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-—F——F+-A=1t—-HLEE
Sale of  Provision of
Property financial  management Money
Distribution ~ investment assets services lending ~ Consolidated
HE Rt
4 NERE SREE ERRK &8 &a
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
71 71 7T 71 71 -
Revenue 1§
Segment revenue Gl e - 5,930 649 59,078 9,785 67,442
Results 4
Segment (loss)/profit AB(BR)/ A (59) 170,205 (6,041) 12,747 9,637 186,515
Interest income on bank deposits (note 8§ FTEFZAEMA 6/ 1,375
Unallocated corporate income APEAENA 586
Unallocated corporate expenses RARCER (16,980)
Gain arising on change in fair value of ERTERZEAZ 2 REE
conversion options embedded in EoATEEBEL W&
convertible notes receivables (note 9) (Wi9) LY
Gain on a bargain purchase (note 9) EERE WY 32
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  CEEERBEATREHE
amount due from an associate (note 9) EEli9) (3,865)
Impairment loss recognised in respectof ~ ERDRELATZERZBE
interests in associates (note 9) B9 6,137)
Imputed interest income on convertiole BUTRRZEZBEASHA
notes receivables (note 9) (Hi9) 50,086
Loss arising on early redemption of RERERUTARRERE L
convertible notes receivables (note 9) EElit9) (1,930)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LENF - BERRELEE
equipment (note 9) (Ht9) (302)
Finance costs HEER -
Share of results of associates 0 7 (1,928)
Profit before taxation BBt AR 207,494
Income tax expense (note 13) FeRmx 13 (1,236)
Profit for the year KEERA 206,258
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 =—F— =+ _-HA=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDI(E)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——H+=-F=+—H

Saleof  Provision of

Property financial  management Money
Distribution ~ investment assets services lending ~ Consolidated
#E 2t

B WRRE tREE  BERR fE& o)
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO000  HK$00
TEL TEL TEL TE% 77 T&n

Assets and liabilties BERAE
Assets gE
Segment assets for reportable segment  T2HHPz2TEE
— Hong Kong —5E 339 717,539 155,268 - 64,577 937,728
— Macau — B = = - 6,093 - 6,093
339 717,539 155,268 6,093 64,577 943,816
Unallocated corporate assets APEAEEE 659,796
Consolidated total assets BRERER 1,603,612
Liabilities &F
Segment liabites for reportable segment ~ T2HAH2AHERE
— Hong Kong —&i - (61,997) () - - (62,002)
- Macau — A - - - (687) - (687)
N X 6 (667 N T
Unallocated corporate liabilties KARLEER (18971)
Consoldated total liabiltes FRARAR (81,660)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ_=-F—=

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

Fr—A=+—HILEFE

6. ZEEDEGE)

BE-Z-—"F+ZA=T-HLFE

Sale of  Provision of

Property financial  management Money
Distribution ~ investment assets services lending  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HE &t
3] ESE tHEE BRI 1 xAR e
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
71 7A% FA% FAT 7T 71 71
Other segment information ~ EfA 544
Amount included in the measure T2 (&) EHR2H
of segment (loss)/profitand ~ EEfMitAZEE
segment assets
Additions to property, plant and ~ FEY% - BERRSE
equipment - 242 - - - - 242
Additions to investment RERENE
properties - 21,438 - - - - 21,438
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1%  BEkRfE217E
and equipment (note 10) (1) - 17 218 - - 5 240
Gain arising on change in RENELTEADEE
fair value of investment Lh&E )
properties (note 9) - 168,592 - - - - 168,592
Gain on disposal of investment ~ HiERENE W
properties (note §) (H28) - 640 - - - - 640
Impairment loss recognised in ~ CEDENEE ZBE
respect of intangible assets Bali9)
f1ote 9 - - VAL - AL
Loss arising on change in BROTHETABRRZE
fair value of financial assets HERLTERDEE
at fair value through profitor ~ ZEE (429
loss (note 9) - - (5,169) - - - (5,169)

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified

to conform to the change of resources allocation

in the current year. Accordingly, certain

administrative expenses, depreciation of property,

plant and equipment and other gains and losses,

which were previously presented as unallocated,
have been reclassified to relevant reportable

segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents
revenue generated from external customers.
There were no inter-segment sales in the current
year (2012: Nil).

Segment results represent (loss incurred)/profit
earned by each segment without allocation
of central administrative expenses including
directors’ emoluments, share of results of
associates, investment and other income, other
gains and losses and income tax expense.
This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than interests in associates,
convertible notes receivables, conversion
options embedded in convertible notes
receivables and amount due from an
associate that are not attributable to
individual segments. Assets used jointly by
individual segments are allocated on the
basis of the revenues earned by individual
segments; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than current tax liabilities
and other financial liabilities that are
not attributable to individual segments.
Liabilities for which segments are jointly
liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff
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Notes to the Consolidated I?iﬁanci'al Statements

fn & MW R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z=—FE— =+ -HA=+—HIFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEDIE)
Geographical information i & & K
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and AEEFZEREBRBEMALE - X5H
Macau. The Group’s revenue from external RiWEESREENIEFZRERER
customers and information about its non-current HERHEE2ERFEIMT :
assets by geographical location are detailed
below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REHMIEF 2 W& FREEE
2013 2012 2013 2012

—EBE-=F —E-—-F —BE-=f —E-—_E
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Hong Kong BB 25,793 16,364 676,927 518,331
Macau BPS 512 51,078 1,929 5,722

26,305 67,442 678,856 524,053
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIE)
Information about major customers FREEREFZEH
Customers contributed 10% or more to the MAEENRZEM10%HULE2ERFM
Group’s revenue are as follows: T :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—BLHFEE

2013 2012
—E—= —_E—_—F
Major customers Nature HK$°000 HK$’000
FEEF ME FHET FET
Customer 1 Interest income on loans
BEF1 ERFE WA 5,840 —
Customer 2 Interest income on loans
BF2 ERFSWA 5,309 —
Customer 3 Interest income on loans
EF3 ERFSWA 3,038 —
Customer 4 Interest income on loans
P4 ERRFEWA 3,014 —
Customer 5 Services fee income
EF5 PR 75 & U A - 49,913
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ

7. TURNOVER

e s 5 = — e

7. EBEEH

For the year ended 31
December

BE+=-A=+—BHLHFE

2013 2012
—Eg—-= —E—_—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Sale of financial assets at fair value $HERAFETTABZRZSH
through profit or loss, net &E FH (1,710) 649
Interest income on loans ERFE WA 24,101 9,785
Rental income HEWA 3,402 5,930
Services fee income BRAEE U A 512 51,078
26,305 67,442

An analysis of the turnover from sale of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is

recorded on a net basis. The details are as T :

follows:

HERAFEFABERZEMEEZ
EEBOMNDRFREEMSEL - FBWN

For the year ended
31 December

BEt-A=+—HLFE

2013 2012
—EgE—= —E—_—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of financial HERAFETTABRRZESR
assets at fair value through EEZBRIE
profit or loss 243,820 11,400
Carrying amount of financial assets RAFEFABZRZSRMERE
at fair value through profit or loss ZIEHESMXZEA
plus transaction costs (245,530) (10,751)
(1,710) 649
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5 & R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ
8. INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 8. BRERHMWA
For the year ended
31 December
BEt+t-—A=1+T—HLEE
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Dividend income (Note) BB WA (HEE) 36,479 -
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME KR
properties - 640
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFEWA 6,462 1,375
Sundry income HIFUA 14 586
42,955 2,601

Note: Dividend income is derived from shares
in and bonus convertible notes issued by
China Star Entertainment Limited (“China
Star”), which were classified as available-
for-sale financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

9.

2013 2012
—g-=% —B-—f
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cumulative gains reclassified from RELEIAATHLESHEER
equity to profit or loss upon HESENIBEERERZE
derecognition of available-for-sale sTik e
financial assets 7,079 —
Gain arising on change in fair value EWTBRERZERE 2 HBRRIE
of conversion options embedded EZATEEEBES WS
in convertible notes receivables 29,836 42
Gain arising on change in fair value  ZiREW AR ZEE A TFESE
upon conversion of convertible BELE 2z
notes receivables 16,446 —
Gain on a bargain purchase HEBE W& - 32
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWE 588 -
Impairment loss recognised in SRR EWEE A RRIBZRE
respect of amount due &
from an associate - (3,865)
Impairment loss recognised in ERIRBFEEZREEBE
respect of intangible assets (3,793) (38,218)
Imputed interest income on FE U AT 2 R B B 2 (B SR A
convertible notes receivables 38,233 50,086
Loss arising on change in fair value AR EiTABRRZESHEE
of financial assets at fair value AT ERBEEZESE
through profit or loss (5,307) (5,169)
(Loss)/gain arising on change in fair REVEAFEEBHEEZ
value of investment properties (') W= (1,940) 168,592
Loss arising on early redemption of 2R EEIEWATRRKREEELE
convertible notes receivables E518 - (1,930)
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~HEY% - BERREZEE
and equipment — (302)
Reversal of impairment loss/ EREAREE AR 2ER Z/E
(impairment loss) recognised in EERE OREEE)
respect of interests in associates 6,137 (6,137)
87,279 163,131
ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sk{E %R EIEEBR AT Annual Report 2013 — & —=F4Ff
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 & R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ
10. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 10. K&ERF|
Profit from operations has been arrived at after REERNTINBR GTAN) THRERS
charging/(crediting): g ¢
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=1t—HLFE
2013 2012
—B-=% —B-——f
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Auditors’ remuneration Z 2T EN & 680 680
Depreciation of property, plant and #1¥ - BMERREBZITE
equipment 95 240
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMXEZER
properties 13,000 =
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEYEZKLHE
rental premises 1,803 2,295
Share-based payment expenses in  FEERIRIEUBR B =2
respect of consultancy services B> 4,195 1,284
Staff costs including directors’ ETIRK(BREESEHE)
emoluments
— salaries and other allowances — HE R HMERL 15,390 9,953
— contributions to retirement — RIREFIEHEIHX
benefits scheme 108 95
— share-based payment expenses — URHOERAZMTZ2HX 2,886 608
18,384 10,656
Gross rental income from RERENMEZEHESTWA
investment properties (3,402) (5,930)
Less: direct operating expenses B EREEHRESRAZ
incurred for investment REMEEEZEHE
properties that generated EEMX
rental income during the
year 19 908
Less: direct operating expenses B FREEEEHEERAZ
incurred for investment REMEREZ
properties that did not HEEERX
generate rental income
during the year 1,206 2,151
(2,177) 2,871)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M58 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid
or payable to the directors and the chief
executive of the Company during the year was
HK$14,756,000 (2012: HK$8,805,000). The
emoluments of each director and the chief
executive for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012 is as below:

Salaries and
Fees other allowances
Name of director E3E Be HeRHMEN

2013 2012 2013 2012
8-z 22-C°f C8-zf 2B of
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

Fén  TEr  FEn TEn

1. EERFETHAEME

FRAENBRENFARARNEERFET
BABZME4%E A 14,756,000 8 T (=
T — "4 :8,805,0008x) c HE=-Z
—ZFR-FE--F+ZA=t+—HL
FE BREERFETHAEZHMH
nE :

Contributions

to retirement Share-based

benefit scheme payment expenses Total
BUCRRGEES  UROFARAZER st

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Z8-=f 22-°f T8 Z2-C°f CR--f TR CF

HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
Fén  TEr  FEn  TEr  TEr FEn

Mr. Lei Hong Wai, the chief SHELE(TRER)

executive officer - - 6200 3,650 15 14 - - 625 3664
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai, Elton ~ REIfE%4 - - 6200 3650 15 14 - - 625 3,664
Mr. Chan Kin Wah, Billy Rzt - - 950 830 15 14 881 153 1,846 997
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan FEZLE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wan Shing Chi FHELE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Ng Heung Yan RELEE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EERLE 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Total emoluments HenE 480 480 13,350 8,130 45 4 881 153 14756 8805

During the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2012, no emoluments have been paid by
the Group to any of the directors and the chief
executive as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors and the chief
executive waived any emoluments in the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED ki85 B8 & AR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEMS
Of the five individuals with the highest BE-_ZE-—=F+Z"HB=+—HLHF
emoluments in the Group for the year ended E REAEELREESHFMALTES
31 December 2013, three (2012: three) were ZA(ZE-—ZF ZN)EXRDPBZE
directors of the Company whose emoluments £ BECHEREE KRR 11
are included in the disclosures in note 11 to WE-BRTWA(ZE—"ZF WA)Z
the consolidated financial statements. The MEmT :

emoluments of the remaining two (2012: two)
individuals were as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—BLHFE

2013 2012
—_E—= —_E—_—F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries and other allowances ek HER, 926 800
Contributions to retirement benefits BTG RIET 2%
scheme 30 28
Share-based payment expenses RS R 2B 1,297 455
2,253 1,283
Their emoluments were within the following BEZHMENFUTEE :
bands:
Number of employees
BEEAE
For the year ended
31 December
BEt+t-—A=1+T—HLEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000 T - 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T E 1,500,000 /& T 2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FIfSHimx
Income tax expense recognised in the RGEEERERAZEHMAX .

consolidated statement of profit or loss:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+—BLEFE

2013 2012

—_E—= —E—_F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Current tax expense REABLIER (7,633) (5,811)

Under provision in prior year BEFERETE (17) -

Deferred taxation IEFER 18 2,090 4,575

(5,560) (1,236)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of MEFE2EBFNEH R BRI R

the estimated assessable profits for both years. 2 16.5% 5T &

No provision for Macao Complementary Profits AR AEEBEATERBEFN » 8B
Tax has been made for the year ended 31 EZE-—=F+ZA=+—HLEFEW
December 2013 (2012: Nil) as the Group has no EREAEENERELRE(ZE—=

estimated assessable profits. F M)
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e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FifSHi (&)
The income tax expense for the years can be AEERSHEAXTEHGFEERRAZ
reconciled to the profit before taxation per BRBBDRAE RO T ¢
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follows:
For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=t—-HLEE
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —E-CF
HK$’000 %  HK$'000 %
FET Bt FET ATt
Profit before taxation BRE AR 102,797 207,494

Taxation at income tax rate of 16.5% B %Z16.5%

(2012: 16.5%) (ZF—Z=%F 116.5%)
FTEZFEH (16,962) (16.5)  (34,237) (16.5)

Effect of different tax rates of REMAEEREEHE

subsidiaries operating in other AETEBEZZE

jurisdictions (171) (0.2) (1,720) (0.8)
Tax effect of share of results of FELEE NRIEEZ

associates BEFE (614) (0.6) (318) (0.1)
Tax effect of income not taxable BB S T ARBBA

for tax purpose ZhkEE 24,068 23.5 40,097 19.3
Tax effect of expenses not ABRBEME AN H

deductible for tax purpose kY57 (13,676) (13.3) (8,432) (4.1)
Utilisation of tax losses previously — Ef Al AR H 12

not recognised 585 0.6 120 0.1
Tax losses not yet recognised AEATEEE (863) (0.8) (1,321) (0.6)
Under provision in prior year PAFERETR (17 (0.1) = =
Deferred tax credit EERIEK & 2,090 2.0 4,575 2.2
Income tax expense for the year AEEFREHRAY (5,560) (5.4) (1,236) (0.5)
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Notes to the Consolidated. Financial Statements
e BEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SREF
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per RARFEEAEEERERARBERR
share attributable to owners of the Company is DIRBTHIEEFE

based on the following data:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—HLEE

2013 2012
—E-=5 —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Earnings BF|
Profit for the year attributable to ARREE AELEAREE T
owners of the Company 97,238 206,259

For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=+—BHLFE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
’000 000
TR TR
Number of ordinary shares ZEREE
Weighted average number of ordinary RErEESREREFIIFFTH 2
shares for the purpose BRMEEEE
of basic earnings per share 405,204 223,278
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary M EEEZERSFE :
shares:
Share options issued by the AT BITZ BB AE
Company — 83
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt ESRBERFSFHE 2
shares for the purpose ERMEFEEE
of diluted earnings per share 405,204 223,361
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2013 has been adjusted for the open
offer of the Company’s new ordinary shares as
completed in April 20183.

The weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 has been adjusted for the capital
reorganisation as effective in May 2012.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 was the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company’s outstanding
share options were anti-dilutive and had no
dilutive effect.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend
the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z=—FE— =+ -HA=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y12 - BERKRE

The Group &
Furniture
Leasehold Office Motor and
improvements equipment vehicles fixtures Total
RENEEE WAZRE hE FRREE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEn FEr FEn FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2012 RZE-ZE-f-H 2,381 168 2,150 1,093 5,792
Additions during the year ERFE 169 73 - - 242
Disposals i3 - (25) (1,100) - (1,125)
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 W=F-ZE+ZA=+-HEK
“5-=E-f-f 2,550 216 1,050 1,093 4,909
Additions during the year ERifE - 18 - - 13
Derecognised on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAFRK LD (169) - - - (169)
At 31 December 2013 R=E-=£+ZA=1-H 2,381 229 1,050 1,003 4,753
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2012 R=3--£-f-H 2,381 138 1,550 1,093 5,162
Charged for the year AEEER 14 17 209 - 240
Written back on disposals HECRE - (14) (780) - (794)
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 R=F-=£+=F=+-AR
ZE-=f-f-H 2,395 141 979 1,093 4,608
Charged for the year AEEER 25 2 48 - 95
Fliminated on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEHEA TR (39) - - - (39)
At 31 December 2013 RZZE-ZE+ZA=1-H 2,381 163 1,021 1,093 4,664
Carrying amounts BEE
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=£+ZA=1-H - 66 2 - 89
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZE+ZA=1-H 155 75 1 - 301
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REWEE
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—®-=f C—B-=f
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fair value ATE
At 1 January R—HB—H 21,940 442,920
Additions (Note c) wnE (Kratc) - 21,438
Disposals (Note b) HE(KaEb) - (7,310)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Notes d, f  HEKE LT
and note 37) (Kt d - FREZF37) (24,000) (700)
Gain arising on change in fair value QAR ESEFES 2
(Notes c, d, e and f) (BizFc-d> e Kf) 2,060 168,592
Reclassified as assets classified as EFDEA D ESISEHES
held for sale (Note e and note 29) BE(fFe RH7729) - (603,000)
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+-—H - 21,940
Unrealised gain on change in fair REYEZ AL EEE 2
value of investment properties REIE WS - 168,502
Notes: Hfat -
(@ The Group’s investment properties as at 31 (@) MZZT—Z=-F+=-A=+—H XHEEZ

December 2012 are located in Hong Kong and held
under medium term lease.

(b) On 27 April 2012, Dynamic Eagle Investments (b)
Limited (“Dynamic Eagle”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, disposed of
an investment property with a fair value of
HK$7,310,000 to an independent third party at a
cash consideration of HK$7,950,000.

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=F F3f ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k{8 5:H
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Limited ([Dynamic Eagle |) AR &K (B
7,950,000 TR — BB I E = HE—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

On 22 August 2012, the Group acquired two
investment properties located in Ma Yau Tong,
Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong Kong from two
independent third parties, who are brothers, at a
cash consideration of HK$10,719,000 for each of the
two investment properties. The consideration paid by
the Group was considered to be the fair value of the
investment properties at the time of acquisition. At
31 December 2012, the fair value of the investment
properties was HK$21,940,000 and a gain arising on
change in fair value of HK$502,000 was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2012.

On 16 October 2012, the Group disposed of the
remaining investment property held by Dynamic
Eagle by selling the entire issued share capital
of Dynamic Eagle to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$686,000, which
was determined based on the net assets value of
Dynamic Eagle at 30 September 2012 adjusted for
the fair value of the investment property on that
date. The principal asset of Dynamic Eagle is the
investment property with a fair value of HK$700,000
at 30 September 2012. Accordingly, a gain arising on
change in fair value of HK$90,000 was recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2012.

On 20 November 2012, Rexdale Investment Limited
(“Rexdale”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a preliminary sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
relating to the disposal of the investment properties
located in Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong at
a cash consideration of HK$586,000,000. At 31
December 2012, the disposal was not completed
and the investment properties held by Rexdale were
reclassified as assets classified as held for sale in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
The fair value of the investment properties at 31
December 2012 was HK$603,000,000 and a gain
arising on change in fair value of HK$168,000,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2012. The disposal of the investment
properties was completed on 4 July 2013 as set out
in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

17. BEWE (&)

Bt - ()

(c)

(e)

RZE—Z—FN\A=+=H EEUR
SNREAMEREYHEEZ 10,719,000
TEMEBLE=F(HEETE)KE
MEMNREEBEHARAAEBEHREZREY
¥ o AEEEIF2REBEWFRBZSREY
ENRNBRZAFE RZE—=—F+=
B=+—H > ZERENEZLAFES
21,940,0008 T FAAFEEZEEE
2 W 502,000 B T IREBE=-E—=&
+TZA=1T—HBLLEEZEFRER -

R-Z——F+A+-0 KAEBEEBU
B2 N E686,000 B T(RER=-—ZF—=
% 1 B =+ HDynamic Eagle 2 & E F
BEE YRZBREVEZAFET
LAFA%E) [@ — & 18 3 55 = 7 1 & Dynamic
Eaglez £ HE TR & U HE
Dynamic Eaglef5B 28R TIREWZE - K
—Z——FhHA=+H " Dynamic Eagle
ZEBEEERAFERT700,0008 T 2R
EYFE-Al FRAFESHEEZW
#90,000 B T N RBE=Z—Z_F+=
A=+—HLFEZEBRRER -

RZE—Z—-F+—A=+H X2d
2Z 2 & Mt B 2 T Rexdale Investment
Limited ([Rexdale )EE—& BV E=

VREEERE  AREREUESRE
586,000,000 B T HENRE B NEHE
2REYE - RZE——-F+=-A=1+—
H > HESEERHKRTK M Rexdaleixh
CEERENERGEUBRRARAES
FoBAIBABEHREZEE W=
——H+ZRA=+—RH ZEREYEZ
A {8 % 603,000,00038 7T - FRDQFE
S E)E 4 2 W2 168,000,000 T T3 A&
EZE-——F+-A=+—HLEEEZE
mRTER o MRS M IERERM E29 AT
H O HEREYHXEN=-Z—=5tAMN
HZEmRK °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 D

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(f) On 6 June 2013, the Group disposed of two
investment properties by selling the entire issued
share capital of East Legend Properties Limited
(“East Legend”) and Goway Properties Limited
(“Goway”), both of them were wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, to an independent
third party at an aggregate cash consideration of
approximately HK$24,995,000. The consideration
was determined with reference to the fair value of
the two investment properties of HK$24,000,000 at
31 May 2013 and adjusted for the net assets value
of East Legend and Goway. Accordingly, a gain
arising on change in fair value of HK$2,060,000 and
a gain on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$588,000
were recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2013 as set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties

The Group’s investment properties, including
the investment properties transferred to assets
classified as held for sale, during the year ended
31 December 2013 and as at 31 December
2012 are stated at fair value which has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried
out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak
Vision”) and Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited
(“Grant Sherman”). Each of Peak Vision and
Grant Sherman is a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers with no connection with
the Group. Peak Vision and Grant Sherman are
members of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
(“HKIS”) and have appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuations, which conform to the HKIS Valuation
Standards 2012 Edition, were arrived at by
reference to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant market and the current
rents passing and the reversionary income
potential of tenancies.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff
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ecember 2013 BtZ—F—=F+ _—_H=+—HIFZF

17. REWE (&)
Wzt : ()

 RZZTB—Z=FxARH > XEHEBEBUR
£ # AR 1E 424,995,000 7T HEARRQ T
2 2E& /B AT East Legend Properties
Limited ([East Legend]) X Goway
Properties Limited ([ Goway]) 2 ZE8E
BITRA > fMEOBLE=FHEMER
EME - REDNSEMERENER_-ZF
—=FRBA=+—H2Z2AF{E24,000,000
B TEE » Y HEast Legend & Goway
ZEEFEFEAR - Bt BUEGREHH
WMERMFI7THHE 2 FEEHBELEZW
%@ 2,060,000 & T & H E M B A 7 =2 W&
588,000 B TIRBE-—ZT—=F+=A
=S+—HIEFEZBHZRER -

FEBZRENEZLATHEFNE

BEZ-_Z—=Ff+-A=+—HLEFE
ER=-ZZ2—-—F+=-A=+—H K&K
BeRENE(BEHRENEERZD
BEABEHECZEE) DRAFEIRE
AFEDREEFTHERQIA(RE]D
RpFTFEERATA(THEDET2ME
BEESH - BRERPEZEABILSE
EREELR HALEEHMERE R
BEHEAEBIEMEGS(FEAAE
MEg )RE  WAHEBNE ZEUY
¥MEIFOREEEEERRITHER -
HETEEBIENES T YEMLEE
B(ZZ2—ZFR) UL&SEHBETS
Bz ELREEEE  UREAHE
eRBEHESTESKAMSEE -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating
the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the investment properties
is their current use.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group’s investment properties were categorised
under fair value hierarchy of Level 3 immediately
before their disposals.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 in the current
and prior years.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

Notes to the Consolidated- Financial Statements
e BEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z=—FE— =+ -HA=+—HIFE

17. BEWE (&)

R [ BB 1 4F T 2 £ 1AL A 3 A
B - EHRANKZATES G
BENEZBERBERRDALEHN
A -

BE-_ZF-=F+-A=1T—-HL#F
B AREZREMEREHENRE
DRPESREIRDIE -

REERBEFE  F1RE2H2HY
EER TEEBANEREEIR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

fn 8 M35 3 R

18. BN EE

The Group rEH
Services
agreements
PR 75 thh =
HK$’000
FHET
Cost R
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012, R-B——H—H—H -
1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 —E-——-H+4+=-A=+-—H~-
—ZE-=5—-A—-HAK
—_E—=%+—-H=+-—H 456,857
Accumulated impairment ZFHRE
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——-F—HA—H 412,917
Impairment loss recognised ERRRERSE 38,218
At 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2013 R=-E——-—H+=-A=+—-HK
—5-=f¥—-A—8 451,135
Impairment loss recognised SRRRERSE 3,793
At 31 December 2013 R-TB—=F+=-HA=+—H 454,928
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2013 R-TB—=F+=-HA=+—H 1,929
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—Z-H+ZA=+—H 5,722

The intangible assets represent the carrying amounts of
services agreements held by Rich Daily Group Limited
(“Rich Daily”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and a management services provider to the concierge
departments of gaming promoters in Macau. The services
agreements have indefinite useful lives and no amortisation
has been made.

At 31 December 2013, the directors of the Company
performed impairment test for the carrying amount of
the services agreement held by Rich Daily with reference
to the valuation, based on the value-in-use calculation,
performed by Grant Sherman and an impairment loss of
HK$3,793,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$38,218,000) and the
carrying amount of the intangible assets has been reduced
to its recoverable amount of HK$1,929,000.

B EEREARAZEZEMB AR RBMAEY
RN AZRERZEEREHEERRich Daily
Group Limited ([Rich Daily |) Fri&5 BB #5173
ZREE - REMZEERZAERAEY » R E
fEH #8s -

MR-ZB—=F+=-A=+—H AATAEEZ
EZREREFEABEFEAXNTETZMEE
B Rich Daily#F BRI ZE 2 REEETRE
BlEt - RIEERE 3,793,000 8 tEREE=Z
— =+ A=+ HLEEEzEHERER(Z
T — 4 :38,218,0008 ) REFEEZRE
AEEAKZEHATUREE%E 1,929,000 B T ©

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sk1E ZEIE#% & F R A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The carrying amount of the services agreement was tested
for impairment by reference to value-in-use calculation.
A discount rate of 20.30% per annum (2012: 19.66%
per annum) was applied in the value-in-use model which
uses cash flow projection based on financial forecast
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
five-year period. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved for the preparation of the cash flow
projection for the period covered by the forecast. Key
assumptions include growth rate of 1% (2012: 1%) which
are determined by the management of the Group based on
its expectation for market development. The discount rate
used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
industry.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18.

19.

BILEEM#@)

RS ERAELDSREABRATERNET
BEAR EFRAECAEEENZTEXRAS
F20.30% (ZZE——F : §419.66%) %A
RIBEADNTESHERE T EHIR > B 778 84E
HeHEESREFREA - FRBRMREHEZ2ES
FREFEAS R ZSEBERMAT - TEBRZBEL
BRI (ZE—ZF 1 1%) » ZEHFZ AL
SEEEERBEEENMSCBREMEE - A
WREDBKRBA  BERRETEEBEZISER
@ °

REE AR 2 R
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—Eg—-= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Unlisted FEH

Cost of investment in an associate REEFE N T 2 BRE 2R

Share of post-acquisition profits and FE{EWEBE RN R HME2E

other comprehensive income, net Wz o HBRE WA BE

of dividends received

Listed in Hong Kong RERBLS
Cost of investment in an associate  REE N R 2 RE Z KA 51,324 51,324
Share of post-acquisition profits, B ERRR > Hih2m|
other comprehensive income and W &k At - 1BRE
other reserve, net of dividends W E %
received (4,408) (1,928)
46,916 49,396
Less: impairment loss recognised B ERRREE A TERZ
in respect of interests in B
associates - (6,137)
46,916 43,259
Market value of listed shares tmRBzmE 46,925 43,259

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

sted investment

Reconciliation of impairment loss recognised in

19.

REE DR 2R (a)

thmREZHE

CHEANBELCAZESE ZREFEZ

respect of interests in associates: HERWT :
2013 2012
—2-= —E--F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FBT
At 1 January H—HB—H 6,137 -
Impairment loss recognised 2R REREE - 6,137

Reversal of impairment loss ERRREEERE

recognised (6,137) -
At 31 December Rt=A=+—H - 6,137

At 31 December 2013, the Group had interests in
the following associates:

Name of associate

LR

Unlisted

L

Spark Goncept Group Limited
(“Spark Concept”) (Note a)

Spark Goncept Group Limited
(['Spark Concept ) (#i#a)

Listed in Hong Kong
REAL

China Media and Films Holdings Limited

(“China Media”) (Note b)

TEBRTRERERAR(HEBR)

(Hizb)

Gountry/place of
incorporation
L

8%/ 4%

British Virgin
Islands

ABRLHE

(Cayman Islands
and continued
in Bermuda

REHE

IRERESR

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =% F#f

RZZBE—=F+ZA=+—H ' &x&H

RUTEEQATTHEAES

Proportion of voting
Principal place of  Class of power held
operation shares held FERZEZIA  Principal activities
IEEEMR FERHER Directy Indirecty TEEH
B [}
Hong Kong Ordinary 49% - Catering
Hong Kong Ordinary 29% - Adist management and
film production and
distribution
B LER 8 AERNUREFHER
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Market value of listed investment (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group holds 49% of the issued share capital
of Spark Concept. The other shareholder controls
the composition of the board of directors of Spark
Concept and has control over Spark Concept. The
directors of the Company consider that the Group
has significant influence over Spark Concept and it
is therefore classified as an associate of the Group.

The Group holds 29% of the issued share capital
of China Media. The other shareholder controls the
composition of the board of directors of China Media
and has control over China Media. The directors of
the Company consider that the Group has significant
influence over China Media and it is therefore
classified as an associate of the Group.

Summarised financial information of material

associates

Summarised financial information in respect of

each of the Group’s material associates is set out

below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts shown in the associates’

financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using

the equity method in these consolidated financial

statements.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

19. REHE R T 2 (A)

tiRE2HEGE)

ANEE A Spark Concept B TRAZ
49% o H i B 3R £ %l Spark Concept Z
EEFAMK 3% E Spark ConceptZ
EHIRE o KRR ESBRHAREEE Spark
ConceptEEAFE N HABALXER
ZEE AT o

REBEFEPEERES HTRAZ29% °
HtpRRZEHFEER cESSAM » X
BETEGERE 2 ZEGE AR AESRA
FEBHTHEREEATED  BOH
BAEEZBENT -

FTERENFAZHBEERHSE

AEESETEBRELACHBENRE
HIMTX > THRHHEENREZRRIE
ERYBRELERRR 2B E DRI
WERPAIEE -

FrELEBRERNTAIRABAERENEE

ma

BB RALR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

19.

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued)

(@) Spark Concept

On 15 December 2011, the Group acquired 49%
of the issued share capital of Spark Concept at
a consideration of HK$49. Spark Concept is an
investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are catering. The
principal places of operation of Spark Concept and
its subsidiaries are in Hong Kong.

REE DR 2R (a)

FTERENRAZHBEEHLE(E)

(@) Spark Concept
RZZE——F+=-A+EA  RXEEURE
S KB 497 T Y i Spark Concept B &
TR 72 49% ° Spark Concept & — &%
EERAR HWBARZEEERKRE
8% o Spark ConceptREKMIBARZEE
EEMBUNES ©

2013 2012

—E-=F —E-——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current assets RENEE 5,024 8,356
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,315 2,049
Current liabilities REBARG (13,409) (15,655)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE - —
For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEEE

2013 2012

—E-—=F —E——F

HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FETT

Revenue A 13,406 12,444
Loss from continuing operations REFELSE XK 2EE (1,820) (3,229)

Post-tax loss from discontinued operations RE B & IS XK 2 BRHBEE - —
Loss for the year REEEE (1,820) (3,229)

Other comprehensive income for the year ZAFEEHAREINE - —
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEE2HEEBEBERE (1,820) (3,229)

Dividends received from the associate
during the year

FRERBE QAT ZRE

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =% F#f
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 Bl Z —F—=F+_HA=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REtE NRl 2R (&)
Summarised financial information of material FEBENGHBEERE(E)

associates (Continued)

(@) Spark Concept (Continued) (@) Spark Concept (#&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ERBEESGE M EREAER
information to the carrying amount of the interest ZREE AR ZEZREEZHRNOT :

in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2013 2012
—g—= —E—-F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Net liabilities of the associate BE AR ZAEFE (7,070) (5,250)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership £ [E A Spark Concept
interest in Spark Concept ZEERERERS 2 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of the REBEGHE AR 2EETE
associate - -
Goodwill SR - —
Effect of fair value adjustments at WIBR A L ERAZE2EE
acquisition — _
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in  ZN&E @ Spark Concept Z
Spark Concept ZREE - =
Unrecognised share of losses of Spark Concept K HESR FE 1L Spark Concept 2 18
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
The unrecognised share of loss of an RERRNFERLEE QT
associate for the year 218 (892) (1,582)
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of Zit KERELKLE AT ZEE
an associate (3,464) (2,572)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material
associates (Continued)

(b)  China Media

On 3 August 2012, the Group acquired 146,640,000
ordinary shares in China Media, representing
approximately 29% of the issued share capital of
China Media, at a consideration of HK$51,324,000.
China Media is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are artist
management and film production and distribution.
The principal places of operation of China Media and
its subsidiaries are in Hong Kong.

Included in the interests in associates, the goodwill
on acquisition of China Media is measured at
HK$25,397,000.

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the investment in
China Media was tested for impairment by comparing
its recoverable amount with its carrying amount.

The calculation of recoverable amount was based on
its fair value less cost of disposal and categorised
under fair value hierarchy of level one with the
quoted prices of China Media shares in active market
without taking into account of its costs of disposal.
The quoted market value of the 146,640,000 ordinary
shares in China Media was HK$46,925,000 as at 31
December 2013 (2012: HK$43,259,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, an
impairment loss of HK$6,137,000 was recognised in
profit or loss and hence reduced the carrying amount
of goodwill allocated to China Media by the same
amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, an
impairment loss of HK$6,137,000 was reversed
in profit or loss and hence increased the carrying
amount of goodwill allocated to China Media by the
same amount.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

19. REEE QT 2 (A)

FTERENRAZHBEEHLE(E)

(b)

B SR

R=ZZ2-—Z-FNA=ZH0 ' "EEURKE
51,324,000 & jT Y & 146,640,000 A # El
BEREZBERUETFEERZEBRTRAY
29%) - FEIERS -—BREZRLAR
HMBARZEEXBRBEAEEREY
BERET - MEEERENBLAR 2
BEXMWBMRNES o

REEQATz2EZTERRETRER >
& 3185 25,397,00058 T ©

R-E—=FR-T-——F+=-A=+—
H RPBEEEZREZEBLLREATRE
SRR RAEETRERR -

AU E £ 3 TR EE AP EREERE
SE WRBAFESERE1RDE 5
RABEERONERT S ZME
TR REHERE R-ZZFE-—=51+=A
=+—H  HE#E%E146,640,000 %
B2 hi5IRER 46,925,000 T (==
— =4 143,259,000 7T) °

BE-Z-——_F+-A=1t—-HLFE"
B & 56,137,000 8 tE RE & RHE
w0 B BT B EEE R 2 AR E R
LPEIEEHE -

BE-_ZE—=H+"B=+—HIFE
REETE6,137,0008 TREIREBER X -
H bt 5 B F h B R P 2 AR {E 1 0 E)
LS8
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 Bl Z —F—=F+_HA=+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material

associates (Continued)

(b)

China Media (Continued)

(b) FHEEERE)

19. REHE R T 2 (A)

FTERENRAZHBEERGE (A

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Current assets REEE 51,952 63,561
Non-current assets FRBEE 30,950 32,071
Current liabilities ViEI=RE (8,700) (12,876)
Non-current liabilities FREBEE - =
For the
year ended From 3 August
31 December 2012 to 31
2013 December 2012
Bz H=—Z——fF
—E-=F NB=HZ
+=H=+-H —E-—F
tFEE +=ZA=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Revenue A 15,698 10,112
Loss from continuing operations REFELEEL 2 EE (12,829) (6,647)
Post-tax loss from discontinued RECRIEREEB 2R EEER
operations - -
Loss for the year/period NEE HEEE (12,829) (6,647)
Other comprehensive income for the year/ ZN&[E /8 H ith 2 H Uk
period - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year/ REE/HEZEGEEE
period (12,829) (6,647)

Dividends received from the associate
during the year/period

F/HRERBE AR ZRE

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REtE NRl 2R (&)
Summarised financial information of material FEHENGZHBEERBE(E

associates (Continued)

(b)  China Media (Continued) (b) HEMEEE)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB E R B ERAR S B IR R AR
information to the carrying amount of the interest ZREE AR ZEREEZHRNOT :

in the associate recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2013 2012
—EF—-= —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Net assets of the associate BE N2 EEFE 74,202 82,756
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBRFEEE
interest in China Media ZEERERES 2 29% 29%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEBEEGHE AR 2EETE
associate 21,519 23,999
Goodwill [EE= 25,397 19,260
Effect of fair value adjustments at WA FERAE 2 &
acquisition - -
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in RNEBRHEERE 2 ERE >
China Media IREE 46,916 43,259
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES 20. B8R E

The convertible notes receivables contain FBRAEBRZEEERTH  GEHEER
BIREZREIM - BHEBBIIAREBEE
REWEIE  mHBRREREIM AR

two components: debt and conversion option
components. The debt component is accounted

for as loans and receivables while the conversion

option component is accounted for as derivative

financial instrument.

Movements

in the debt components of

convertible notes receivables during the year are

as follows:

ATEERIA -

BRAHRRZEZ2EERORFRNZE

BT -

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FET
At 1 January m—HA—H 323,160 354,729
Subscription of convertible notes RIBARRERE
(Note c) (Hfatc) - 21,451
Imputed interest income on B gRREE2HE
convertible notes receivables MEWA (HEEI)
(note 9) 38,233 50,086
Interest received on convertible FEUW AT AR = 2
notes receivables 2R (25,507) (32,794)
Early redemption of convertible REBEOATRRERE
notes (Note b) (H1aEb) - (70,312)
Conversion of convertible notes HIRT R EE
(Note a) (Kizta) (110,444) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 225,442 323,160
Analysed for reporting purposes MERAEINA -
as:
Current assets (Note a) nEEE(MTa) 200,840 =
Non-current assets (Notes a and c) 3ERBEE (ffiFakc) 24,602 323,160
225,442 323,160

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

China Star

On 7 July 2011, China Star issued the convertible
notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$350,000,000 to the Group. The convertible notes
are unsecured, interest bearing at 8% per annum
and maturing on 6 July 2016.

Provided that any conversion of the convertible notes
(i) does not trigger a mandatory offer obligation
under Rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers on the noteholder(s) which exercised
the conversion rights and its/their party(ies) acting
in concert; and (ii) will not cause the public float of
China Star unable to meet requirement under Rule
8.08 of the Listing Rules, the noteholder(s) shall
have the right at any time during the period from
7 July 2011 to 5 July 2016 to convert the whole
or part of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible notes into ordinary shares in China
Star at an adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11
per share (subject to further adjustment). Unless
previously redeemed or converted, any amount of
the convertible notes which remains outstanding
on the maturity date shall be redeemed at its then
outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of convertible notes is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt component is 13.17% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes
receivables in consolidated statement of financial
position.

On 2 October 2013, the Group converted the
convertible notes receivable from China Star in
the principal amount of HK$125,000,000 into
1,136,363,636 new shares in China Star at an
adjusted conversion price of HK$0.11 per share.
Accordingly, a gain arising on change in fair value
upon conversion of convertible notes receivables of
HK$16,446,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

The convertible notes receivable from China
Star were classified as non-current assets at
31 December 2012. At 31 December 2013, the
remaining balance of the convertible notes receivable
from China Star were expected to be converted
within 12 months from the end of the reporting
period and were reclassified as current assets.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

20. B AR EE (&)

FEE

NR-ZE——FtBtH FHEERAEE
2% {7 7~ & #2 %8 350,000,0008 T 2 A &
BEE - TRREEAEIRT  REFE
8% T E RGN -F—ANFELANBEH -

fisf IR AT AR B (1) T2 E BT IR R AE
PEBREEARE-—BITBHALBREE
ARWBERE O TRRE26E T 2 3§l
MEHEE R(I)BTSEFFEEZR
RIEREARETS EHIRAIZES.081 248
E HZBEBREABEER=-Z——F+
BtEZE=Z— Tt AR AHBBERHR
BROMBTZLEARRRE (T FHAE)
BHEREEETRBOREEZARLEE
RBAETHECZER - BRIELNEED
RGN EAMREE R RER 2 T8
REEBEZEERHABD 2 ASLEERD -

TRREBEZEH MO RBHERE
SR MEBROZIERINRSEF
13.17% ° RIRZZRBHN G S BB
MERUERTRRREANS 2 A REERE
25

RZZBE-=F+AZH ~EEERER
BHOM BT 2EARBEREB AL
125,000,000 7 JT 2 FE IR B £ 2 A & 3%
ZE N #A1,136,363,636 R I E £ >
B e Bt > RBEWRATRREER 2D
FESEES Z U 16,446,0008 T E
REBE=-Z—=F+=-A=+—HLEE
ZIBBERER -

R-ZZE——F+=-A=+—0  EBKRHEH
EvHEREBDISBEAIRBEE - B
—E-—=F+-_A=+—08 - BEHEKH
EEZaBRRERE BT EBREN 2R
RE12EERERLR  WESEARSHE
Eo

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sk1E ZEIE#% & F R A A

167




168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continueqd)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Culture Landmark Investment Limited (“Culture
Landmark”)

On 29 December 2011, Culture Landmark issued the
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 to the Group. The convertible
notes are unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per
annum and maturing on 28 December 2012.

Provided that any conversion of the convertible notes
(i) does not trigger a mandatory offer obligation
under Rule 26 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers on the noteholder(s) which exercised
the conversion rights and its/their party(ies) acting
in concert; and (ii) will not cause the public float of
Culture Landmark unable to meet requirement under
Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules, the noteholder(s) shall
have right at any time during the period from 29
December 2011 to 27 December 2012 to convert the
whole or part of the outstanding principal amount
of the convertible notes into ordinary shares in
Culture Landmark at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.08 per share (subject to adjustment). Unless
previously redeemed or converted, any amount of
the convertible notes which remains outstanding
on the maturing date shall be redeemed at its then
outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of the convertible notes is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt components is 29.65% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion options embedded in convertible notes
receivables in consolidated statement of financial
position.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the entire
convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 were early redeemed by Culture
Landmark at par. Accordingly, a loss arising on
early redemption of convertible notes receivables of
HK$1,930,000 was recognised in profit or loss.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

20. BT EE (&)

BiaE : (4&)

(b)

XACHRIRE B R QB ([ L3R 1)

REZE——5+ZA=thB Xt
6] 2% 5% [ 3% 17 A £ 4 58 75,000,000 8 7T
ZHBRRE - ARREESEKE - &
FRNE12%FERER=-ZF-—Z—-F+=8
b A= I

fisd IR AR R RIS () TEE BT RIRKRE
ZEBRAARE-—FTHALBESEE
DNAWBREHTRRE26ET 2584
MENEE RBFEEHHE
ZARBRERGENS L HHRAES.081F
ZERE  ARBRHEASAER=-F——
F+ZA=t+NEBE=Z-—Z=5+=A8
—tt R EERRER0.08B T 2L
BRE(AFAR) ST RRREZMRED
DREBZASHEARA LHBEZEE
IR o BRIELEREBEE R LI - FARE
HAEAHE T RRRBEERARALR
BARER 2 AEHED -

TRREBEZEH MO REBHERE
SR MEBHROZIERINRSEF
29.65% ° IR ZRE N RS B HR
MRUEBRATRREEANE 2 RIREERE
25 -

BE_ZE-——H#+-A=+—HLEE
W X4 #%875,000,000 % JT 2 & 2B AT
BEREBECHEHERZEEEREE
B e EHit RPEEEEWRATIRREEEE
ZE7181,930,00078 T B R BE RIER °
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fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

20. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Koffman Corporate Service Limited (“Koffman”)

On 22 March 2012, Koffman issued the convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$27,000,000 to
the Group. The convertible note is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and maturing on 21 March 2015.

Provided that the convertible note has not been
redeemed, the whole convertible note shall
automatically be converted into shares in Koffman
upon the success of initial public offering of
Koffman’s shares at the price of initial public
offering. Any amount of the convertible note which
remains outstanding on the maturity date shall
be redeemed by Koffman at its then outstanding
principal amount plus a premium calculated at 20%
of the then outstanding principal amount.

The debt component of the convertible note is
measured at amortised cost and the effective interest
rate of the debt component is 7.97% per annum.
The conversion option component is presented as
conversion option embedded in convertible notes
receivables in consolidated statement of financial
position.

At 31 December 2013, the convertible note
receivable from Koffman was classified as non-
current assets.
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(c)

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k1E ZEH

20. B AR EE (&)

BiaE : (4&)

BERGCEEARBAERARASERD

—E-—_F=A=-+=H sERAEXK
[ 2% 17 7~ £ %6 27,000,000 8 jT =2 A #
BEE - TRREEAEER  2ERE
R-ZE—AF=A=-+—HIH -

w3t

i AR R FEAREED - A2 ABRRKRE
BEARSERROZERAMBEIEFE
TREEARLAHREERDLRASER
RAD - EMREHAMAREE 2 TBRERRE
BEHARSEREAERABER 2AS
HED 0 BNRERFARBEEARESIE20% 5t
H2wnEEL -

ARREBZEH MO RBERAE
AR MEBNOZERANXAESF
7.97% ° HBBREBEIO NG S BB
RUEWATRBREBERAES 2 LR REEE
5l o

R=B—=%+-A=+-0 BUEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

21, THHESHEE

ASSETS
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—8-=f —E-—=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Listed equity securities in Hong BERZLETRAES
Kong, at fair value ®BAYE
At 1 January R—HBA—H 129,499 58,960
Additions (Note b) B (M b) - 13,410
Conversion of bonus convertible HBMAF TR RE (Hde)
notes (Note e) (82,949) —
Disposals (Note d) HE (Kt d) (41,280) -
Net (loss)/gain arising on revaluation EHEEAHHEESHEEE
of available-for-sale financial £z (ER), W FE
assets (5,270) 57,129
- 129,499
Unlisted debt security FEmEKES
Club debenture (Note f) SES (A1) 172 172
At 31 December R+=BA=+—H 172 129,671

Notes:

(a)

All of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are held
for long-term investment purpose and stated at fair
values. Fair values of the listed equity securities are
determined by reference to the quoted market bid
prices available on the Stock Exchange.

On 27 November 2012, the Group exercised the
subscription rights attached to the bonus warrants
issued by China Star in the principal amount of
HK$7,450,000 to subscribe for 35,990,338 new
shares in China Star at an adjusted subscription
price of HK$0.207 per share. The 35,990,338 new
shares in China Star were allotted and issued to the
Group on 4 December 2012.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

(b)

FMEEBLETRAZBSHFEREREMR
7 WARFEIEER  EWRAEFESF 2D
FEDESERBRAAHB2ZHEEANE
BE -

RZE——F+—-—A=+tH XEET
FREE2T A& H 7,450,000 7T
A RERAEZ TS 2 RERE - REH
EREESR0.207 78 T2 88 35,990,338
BABEEFRD R=ZF——-—F+=A@
H » 35,990,338 I B 2 IR 10 EEFE 3 K
BIITALEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

On 20 November 2012, the board of directors of
China Star proposed the bonus issue of shares and
issue of bonus convertible notes for the purpose
of fulfilling the minimum public float requirement.
At the request of China Star, the Group elected to
receive the bonus convertible notes in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$6,079,806.76 in lieu of its
entitlement to the 607,980,676 bonus shares under
the bonus issue. The bonus convertible notes carry
rights entitling the holders thereof to convert their
principal amount into new shares in China Star at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.01 per share
(subject to adjustment) at any time after their issue.
Please refer to the prospectus of China Star dated
12 December 2012 for more details. The bonus
convertible notes were accounted for as available-
for-sale financial assets for financial reporting
purposes.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
disposed of 303,990,338 shares in China Star at an
average market price of HK$0.1358.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
converted the entire bonus convertible notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$6,079,806.76
into 607,980,676 new shares in China Star at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.01 per share and
the 607,980,676 new shares in China Star were
recognised as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The club debenture has indefinite useful life and no
amortisation has been made and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The fair
value of the club debenture at 31 December 2013
has been arrived at with reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
identified no impairment loss related to the club
debenture (2012: Nil).
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(®

21, HHESRERE (&)

BaE - (#&)

R=ZFE-—-—F+—-A=+RH HHEE
EEERRTAANRORBITARNT R
BEE LULFEREARERERE -
EhHRE-ER NEERERRAS
#2%66,079,806.7678 T ZALA AT IR E
B UABHERAANBTETAZEZ
607,980,676 IR AL IR o ALK 7] #2 AR Z= 45 B
FTHEBARERN  REBTREMERER
BFR0.01BL 2T RBRE(TFAR) K
HASHELRBATREFRND - £E—FF
BEZETEER =T —F+=A+=
BRI ZER - AFTRREEUAHE
ESRMEEANR  UMEMB2HR2A -

BE-Z-=Ff+-A=+—-HL#HE
B AEEZRFIIHE0.1358 8 T HE
303,990,338 RHE 2R 17 °

BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HILFE
AEBEZRSROIBIZANSTRRES
7N & 44 %66,079,806.76 8 7T 2 & & AL A
AHRBREBEABRAPEEZHRG K
607,980,676 (R HE E 2 R ER B IZ
AFEFABERZEMEE -

EESEERCAFH  RUEMRE
SEEHEE BRAANKBRBERSREm
B)eR=ZE—=F+=ZA=+—-H &
FERZEsAFECEZZHETS LT
BRrUELBHEERREHE -BE=-Z
— =5+ ZA=+-HLEEFEE X£H
TEZNESFES ZREBE(ZE—=
&) e
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Notes to the Consolidated- Financial Statements
e BEERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z=—FE— =+ -HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22, E5 WA
The Group
rEEH

2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E—_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
0-30 days ZZE30H 37 41
31-60 days 31&60H - =
61-90 days 61Z90H - —
Over 90 days 90H MU E 396 396
433 437
Less: impairment loss recognised B BERBEEE (396) (396)
37 41

The following is an aged analysis of the trade
receivables (net of impairment loss, if any) at the
end of the reporting period:

REHBHR - B 5 BRI BRI EE
BNA))R2REDMUOT -

2013 2012

—E—=F —B——F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

0-30 days ZZE30H 37 41

The Group allows an average credit period of 90
days to its customers.

REBRTEEFFHO0RZEER -

R-ZZE—=F+ZA=+—HB  &XAF
WREBHERBEZE S ERER(Z
T—_F8) AEENEFRZELEER
BEEMEAR -

At 31 December 2013, the Company had no trade
receivables past due but not impaired (2012:
Nil). The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22,

Aging of impaired trade receivables is as follows:

B2 BWIRR (@)

"“Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B2 =—F— =+ _-HA=+—HIFE

SREEZBURR ZIRENT !

2013 2012
—E-=£ —E-—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Over 90 days 90H M E 396 396
23. LOANS RECEIVABLES 23. EWER
The Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E2—= =B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loans to customers OEFRHZER 763,186 52,141
Accrued interest receivables FEUR FEET RIS 10,438 8,612
773,624 60,753
Less: impairment loss recognised B ERERIBEEE - —
773,624 60,753
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M58 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

23. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

All loans are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.
The loans receivables carry at effective interest
ranging from 2.5% to 48.0% (2012: 8.0% to
48.0%) per annum. A maturity profile of the loans
receivables (net of impairment loss, if any) at 31
December 2013 and 2012, based on the maturity
date is as follows:

23. BRWER#E)

FEERHIUBTAEN BERERZ
ERFERNEN F25%F48.0% (==
——HF :8.0%F48.0%) c R=—T—=
FR-ZZE-Z-ZF+ZA=1+—H8 " R
B cERERCGIRERESBM
B))ZEHBHAEAEHOT :

2013 2012
—E-=£f —E-—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
Current assets BB E

Within one year —FR 168,476 60,753

Non-current assets FREBEE
Over one year but within two years —F L E{EWMER 605,148 —
773,624 60,753

At 31 December 2013, certain loans amounted
to approximately HK$315,148,000 (2012:
HK$4,103,000) are secured by personal
guarantees, undated share charges and the
pledge of the customers’ properties at fair
value of approximately HK$258,600,000 (2012:
HK$21,920,000).

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

R-ZE—=F+-A=+—H #TE&
X #9315,148,0008 T(=Z B — = F :
4,103,000 7T ) JI LA B AR ~ TR H
HABR 10 8 52 ] LA 2 ¥ {B #9 258,600,000
BT(ZZ—=%F :21,920,000/87T) 2
BEFYEERIEIR o
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fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

24. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 24,
RECEIVABLES

BE - ANRERAEMERRIER

The Group The Company
N | NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g-=F % C—EBE-=ZE —E-—_-&
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FE
Deposits Be 469 838 - -
Prepayments FANRE 118 107 59 -
Other receivables (Note) H i WRIB (4722) 10,604 13,870 - =
11,191 14,815 59 —
Note: s

At 31 December 2013, other receivables mainly represent
the interest income receivable on the convertible notes
receivables and bank deposits amounted to approximately
HK$8,778,000 and HK$1,825,000 respectively (2012:
HK$13,655,000 and HK$215,000 respectively).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 25. FEWEEE N\ TFIE
Amount due from an associate disclosed RIE D MGG 161B £ 2 FE W B & A 7]
pursuant to Section 161B of the Companies FIBWT :

Ordinance is as follows:

Maximum
amount
outstanding

during the The Group
year rEE
FAKREEZ 2013 2012
BEeeiE —E-=F —E-—-F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Advance Top Limited EHAERADE 7,393 - 7,393
Spark Concept Spark Concept 7,393 7,393 —
7,393 7,393
Less: impairment loss i - ERERBEEE
recognised (3,865) (3,865)
3,528 3,528
Advance Top Limited is a wholly owned £ AR AR A Spark Conceptz 2 &
subsidiary of Spark Concept. MEAE e
The carrying amount of amount due from EREE AR RIBEZREAEBELDRD EA
an associate is reduced to the recoverable WESRE JWESBENLESZEHE
amount which is determined by reference to the HEE AR EE 2T RARBEERER
estimation of future cash flows expected to be BE -
generated from the associate.
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, EWHRELSEIRFT « T ERBEEEX
non-interest bearing and recoverable on demand. EiE -
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fn 8 M35 3 R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

. BRAFEFABERZEHEE

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E-—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Investments held-for-trading: BEEEZRE !
Listed equity securities in Hong BBz EmBRAES
Kong, at fair value ®AFE 49,046 25,199

On 27 November 2012, the Group exercised the
subscription rights attached to the 35,990,338
bonus warrants of China Star in the principal
amount of HK$7,450,000 to subscribe for
35,990,338 new shares in China Star at an
adjusted subscription price of HK$0.207 per
share.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a
loss arising on change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$5,307,000 was recognised in profit or loss
(2012: HK$5,169,000).
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R-ZE——-F+—B=-+tH xKH
17 £35,990,33813 4~ & %H7,450,000
BLIZHPEEANRREZSMT 2RE
B REARIBESRKRO.207EB TR
#% 35,990,338 R HEl £ F IR 17 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& M58 R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z=—FE— =+ -HA=+—HIFE

27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES

Conversion options embedded in convertible
notes receivables represent the conversion option
components of convertible notes receivable from i
China Star and Koffman, which are measured at
fair value using a binomial option pricing model,

HHIIHI

at initial recognition and at the end of each

reporting period.

Movements in the conversion option components

27. BRAMBRREAS 2R REERE

FEWABBRREANS 2R REERETE
TEERSERZERTRREE 2R
EEENG  UARNSEIARZHRH
AEA-EAHEEEENRD FEET

FEWAMBRREAS 2R RBEEETD

of convertible notes receivables during the year RERZEFHNT :
are as follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=5F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 74,256 75,282
Subscription of convertible notes REBABRRERE
— conversion option components — RIREEREDN - 5,549
Gain arising on change in fair value  [ERiRRIEZEIH 2 AP E
of conversion option components HEEL 2N 29,836 42
Conversion of convertible notes R ERE (26,520) =
Early redemption of convertible REERIBREERE
notes - (6,617)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 77,572 74,256
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27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) China Star
Binomial option pricing model is used for valuation
for the conversion option component. The inputs into

the model at 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012 are as follows:

Stock price
RADE

Conversion price
RE

Volatility
R iE

Dividend yield
IR E W zm =

Option life
HREF

Risk-free rate

mE A=

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =% F#f

27. R REERNS 2R RRER

(I’ﬁ'ég
Hfat
(a) HEEZ

—HRAHEEEER T AU A REE
BB R-F-—=5+-"A=+—-80RK
“ERE-CH+ A=t -RAZEXBAH

BT :
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
R=-TB—=% R=Z—=F
t=A=+-8 t=A=+-8
HK$0.119 HK$0.142
0.1193%8 7T 0.1427%8 T
HK$0.11 per share HK$0.12 per share
#/R0.11ET FR0.128 T
71.96% 65.11%
Zero Zero
2.52 years 3.52 years
2.52F 3.52F
0.524% 0.192%

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB REEH% BB R AF]
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27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(o)  Culture Landmark

Binomial option pricing model is used for valuation
for the conversion option component. The inputs into
the model at 28 May 2012 and 3 August 2012, being
the dates of early redemption, are as follows:

27. BRTHBRBREBRS 2 A RBRER

(Ig

BiaE - (4&)

(b)  3bitbiz

—EXEEEER TR UG L REE
P e RZE—=-FHA=ZTNBAR=
E-——_FN\A=B(REELQAH) =&
NEABIENT

Stock price
RADEH

Conversion price

SaE

Volatility

BIE

Dividend yield
IRE W=

Option life
HARESEHR

Risk-free rate

32 [ B A R

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

At 3 August 2012
(date of early
redemption)
R=Z—Z=F
NAB=H
(REEEHH)

HK$0.06
0.06 & T

HK$0.08 per share
SR 0.0878 T

80.26%

Zero
=

=

0.41 year
0.41 4%

0.14%

At 28 May 2012
(date of early
redemption)
R=Z—=F
HEA=+N\H
(REBEHH)

HK$0.069
0.069 & T

HKO0.08 per share
S 0.088 T

86.17%

Zero
=

=

0.59 year
0.59 F

0.14%
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27. CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN

Notes to the Edhsolidated Financial Statements
e MR ERMEE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Annual Report 2013 —Z — =% F#f

Koffman

Binomial option pricing model is used for valuation
for the conversion option component. The inputs into
the model at 31 December 2013, 31 December 2012
and 22 March 2012, being the date of subscription,

are as follows:

Stock price
BREH

Conversion price
RIAE

Volatility

RIE
Dividend yield
RE Wz =

Option life
HARESHR

Risk-free rate
®EBFIE

At 31 December
2013

R-ZB—=%F
+=—H=+-—H

HK$6.5
6.578 7T

HK$60 per share
SR 60E T

40.30%

Zero
=

=

1.23 years
1.23F

0.235%

Bt - ()

()

Hil

B

art

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

27. BRTHBRBREBRS 2 A RBEER

(&

“EAPEEEERNT AU E R RRE
ESH o  N=FB—=F+=HA=+—8 -
—E-—_F+-HA=+-HAR=FT—=F
=A=Z+=B(ARBEAH) & A H

BT

At 31 December
2012

R-®—=%
+=B=+-8

HK$20.6
20.6 78T

HK$60 per share
FR60E T

43.90%

19.76%

2.23 years

2.23%

0.117%

At 22 March 2012

(date of
subscription)
R-g-=#&
=H=+=H

(FEEH)

HK$58.6
58.6 & T

HK$60 per share
HR60B T

45.89%

Zero
=

=

3 years

3%

0.404%

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED kB REEH% BB R AF]
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28.

29.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. RERBETEEY
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the RERERERMTAERIRZRS
reporting periods as shown in the consolidated RESEEYIEGEHBERREXZE
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the BEATEHEERAT
related items in the consolidated statement of
financial position as follows:
The Group The Company
r&EE EAFH
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Eg-=f —E—_—_&£ =—E-= —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEx FET FEx
Hong Kong Dollars BT 662,153 297,967 565 7,339
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 29. PERBEHEZEE

SALE

On 20 November 2012, Rexdale entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party relating to the disposal of
the investment properties located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of
HK$586,000,000. The fair value of the investment
properties at 30 June 2013 was HK$599,000,000
and a loss arising on change in fair value of
HK$4,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the six months ended 30 June 2013. The fair
value of the investment properties at 30 June
2013 has been arrived at based on a valuation
carried out by Peak Vision, with reference to
comparable sales evidence as available in the
relevant market and the current rents passing and
the reversionary income potential of tenancies.
The disposal of the investment properties
was completed on 4 July 2013. Accordingly,
a loss on disposal of investment properties of
HK$13,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

R-ZZFE—-—=—%F+—HA=+1H  Rexdale
E-ZBYE=FTVURKREERHZ
ANAE B UK £ K E586,000,000% 5T
HEVRBEBNEBEZREVE R
—E-ZFEXA=TH ZEREME
2 N8 £599,000,0008 T BE=
E-—=—FXRNA=1THLE~NERRLFE
BB E 4 2 B 184,000,000 T I RE
RRER ZEREVER-_Z—=F
RA=ZTHZAFEDNREERSEM
BAmS IS AL REERE  UR
BRifle R BEHEKTRSKRAMSE
Hoe HEZSREVECR-ZE—=F
+tAMBERER - Bt HEREYEZ
/518 13,000,000/ 8 T2 BIEERBE=
E-=F+-A=+—-HILEEEzZEH
KM o
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29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 29. DHAEREHECZEE(H)
SALE (Continued)

The major class of assets classified as held for FTENERSFHEHEZEENT
sale is as follows:

The Group
rEH

2013 2012

—E—-=F —EB——F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

At 1 January H—A—H 603,000 -

Loss arising on change in fair value AP EZBELZERE (4,000) -
Transfer from investment properties EEEHIREYE

(note 17) (Bt 17) - 603,000

Disposal HE (599,000) =

At 31 December R+=ZHB=+—H - 603,000

Unrealised gain on change in fair REWEZ A FLEEE 2
value of investment properties R =R - —

Annual Report 2013 —Z— =4} ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED xiggesizaamRAm EREE
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. ®A&

Movements in the share capital of the Company RABBRARFRZEBUT
during the year are as follows:

Number of shares Share capital

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

RA#E %
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f CZ—E--—§ CZE-=F CZ—ZET-"F
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEK Fhe FET FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRE{E0.0138 T
(2012: HK$0.01 each) (ZB—=—&:
SREE0.018T)2
EER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January and 31 December HR—B—HK
+ZA=+—8H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EBRTRHE -
At 1 January n—B—H 257,449 7,934,353 2,574 79,344
Placing of new shares [i= 51 40)
(Notes b and e) (BigbKe) 47,000 39,670 470 396
Open offer of new shares ARBEHRG
(Note f) (Bitr) 152,224 — 1,523 —
Capital reorganisation (Note a) BAE#A (f:ta)
— Share consolidation — RBEH —  (7,735,994) - -
— Share reduction — R EDE - - - (77,360)
Exercise of share options TIEEE IR AE
(Notes ¢ and d) (MfiFcRd) - 19,420 - 194
At 31 December W+=B=+—H 456,673 257,449 4,567 2,574
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 9 May 2012, the capital of the Company was
reorganised involving (i) every 40 existing ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued share capital
of the Company be consolidated into one ordinary
share of HK$0.40 (the “Consolidated Share”) (the
“Share Consolidation”); (ii) the total number of the
Consolidated Shares be rounded down to a whole
number by cancelling the fractional Consolidated
Share arising from the Share Consolidation; (iii)
the paid-up capital of each Consolidated Share be
reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.01 by cancelling
HK$0.39 (together with (ii) above are hereinafter
referred to as the “Capital Reduction”) so as to
form a new ordinary share of HK$0.01; and (iv) the
amount of credit arising from the Capital Reduction
be credited to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

On 18 May 2012, 39,670,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a price of
HK$0.32 per ordinary share by way of placing of new
shares under specific mandate. The net proceeds
of HK$12,338,000 were intended to be used for
financing possible property investment project
of the Group and/or enhancing the Group’s fixed
income portfolio by subscribing additional high-yield
convertible notes.

On 20 December 2012, the Company allotted and
issued 7,120,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at a price of HK$0.345 per ordinary share
pursuant to the exercise of share options under the
Company’s share option scheme.

On 28 December 2012, the Company allotted and
issued 12,300,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each at a price of HK$0.345 per ordinary share
pursuant to the exercise of share options under the
Company’s share option scheme.

On 24 January 2013, 47,000,000 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at
a price of HK$0.645 per ordinary share by way of
placing of new shares under general mandate. The
net proceeds of HK$29,931,000 were intended to be
used for property investment in Hong Kong in order
to enrich the Group’s investment properties portfolio.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

30. A (&)

HiaE -

(c)

(d)

(e)

RZZB-—Z-FFANE  XAFZRAE
Bl SROBIORAQASEHTRA
REREECBIZREEBREHA
—REE0.40B T2 EBR (&6 RHD )
TRGBEGD  (VEBTHRG S
EEZEHBROBR - HEHROBEA
REREEY; (i) BEBFEIFH0.39B T - #¥E
RE GHR 13 2 B R AN fELER 0.40 8 TTH)
M ZE 0.0138 JT E[E L 3 (ii) 78 Al R A H
W) LAEREE.0T BT ZHEER + &
(iv) S RAEREE 2 ERSBEIT AR
A2 EBHERIK -

R==——5HHF+/\HB ' 39,670,000 %
SREE.1 BT ZHLEREBRIES
BIREURETFRO 2R BEREE
B0.328 T 2 ERE 3R EIT - FTIBRIE
FXE12,338,000 8 tE AIEAAREE 2
AEEYEREEERMEEESR HEBR
BRENSERAUREEEERAEEZE
EWAEE -

REZZE-—Z-H+ZA=1+H X A2ARE
HEERESETERBRE -  #EREER
0.345 78 JT 2 {B #% Bt 3% & ¥ 177,120,000
REREEO0.01 BT ZHEBR -

R-ZZE-—-—F+=ZA=-+N\H > x2H
REEBRESTETEBRE S
BREBERRO.3458 T 2 ERELEE K 31T
12,300,000 R R EEO0.01 B T 2 &
R o

RZZE—=%—HF=+WH 47,000,000
REREE BT zHLEAREE —R
RELBEFRO2Z2AR  RERZTER
0.64578 T 2 BHR BB K 21T - T8 7B
7F%5A29,931,0008 T AEREBRE
W DUNEARER o YEREHLS o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 30. A (&)
Notes: (Continued) Kiat o (#&)
(f) On 26 April 2013, 152,224,414 new ordinary shares (f) R — = F A=+ XK B:

of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at a
subscription price of HK$1.20 per ordinary share
by way of open offer to the qualifying shareholders
of the Company on the basis of one new ordinary
share for every two existing ordinary shares held
on 5 April 2013, raising HK$180,277,000 (net of
expenses), of which HK$40,000,000 was intended
to be used for financing the proposed subscription
of the convertible notes to be issued by EDS
Wellness Holdings Limited (“EDS Wellness”,
formerly known as China AU Group Holdings
Limited), HK$40,000,000 was intended to be used
for financing the proposed granting of an unsecured
loan to EDS Wellness and the remaining balance
of HK$100,277,000 was intended to be used for
financing the development and expansion of the
Group’s money lending business.

152,224,414 1% 5 IR H E0.0158 7t 2 5
EEREBR-Z—=-"FNARAREEE
MREELERER RIS ER2EE
BARABEEERRUAFARERD 2
R BRERZERI20BT2ABER
B 1T FTE 18 2180,277,0007% T
(MBRBAZ &) & & » 40,000,0003% T
R{ERZEZRBEDS Wellness Holdings
Limited ((EDS Wellness | BT EHE
LEEERERAA) B FETZARR
ZHEIEME S - 40,000,0008 T AES
EEMEDS WellnessiBH —SE#IKHE
RIRHESRBTAE2100,277,000% 7T
BAEARBREREANEE ZEBEX£ER

31. ACCRUALS, DEPOSIT RECEIVED AND 31. BitER ERESRAEMENR

OTHER PAYABLES 15
The Group The Company
rEE b N/NE|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=% —E2-—-Ff ZE-=§ 2%
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET
Accruals FEstER 4,894 4,455 3,011 2,604
Deposit received (Note) BBRE (M) - 58,600 - -
Other payables HitEARRIB 5,162 5,145 - —
10,056 68,200 3,011 2,604
Note: Btet -
At 31 December 2012, deposit received represents the R-E——F+-A=+—H BlRERSES
deposit received in relation to the disposal of investment EHRexdale TIFEZREME 2D NREN
properties held by Rexdale amounted to approximately 58,600,000 & JT ©

HK$58,600,000.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32, EEBIR

The followings are the major deferred tax UTATECRIAELEHEEEREE

liabilities and assets recognised and movements FEREED
thereon:
The Group REE
Accelerated Estimated
tax tax
depreciation losses Intangible
& fhst assets Total
BERE RBER EREE @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2012 R=Z-—5-fA—-H 2,450 (816) 5,273 6,907
Released on impairment loss BEFEERIRESRE
recognised in respect of AU
intangible assets — - (4,586) (4,586)
Charged to profit or loss FABRR 71 (60) — 11
At 31 December 2012 and RZB-ZF
1 January 2013 +=ZA=+-BK
—Z-=£-f-H 2,521 (876) 687 2,332
Released on impairment loss REVEERINESE
recognised in respect of g AS
intangible assets — — (456) (456)
Dispoal of investment properties  HEREYE (2,450) 816 - (1,634)
Dispoal of subsidiaries HEHBAH (71) 60 - (11)
At 31 December 2013 R-Z-=F
+ZA=t+-H - - 231 231

RZE-—=f+=ZA=+—-H: ' K&
@ 5101,678,0008 T(=Z & — = F :
99,983,000 7t ) 2 KRB A 5t B &
BAMIKERERERP AR - MEIEL
MEEE(ZZT— =% :876,000/87T)
CEBR BHAREESFBREZER
o IR EREE 101,678,000 T (=
£ — Z £ :99,107,00078 7t ) R IE i
HIEEE o

At 31 December 2013, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of HK$101,678,000 (2012:
HK$99,983,000) available for offsetting against
future taxable profits. No deferred tax asset
(2012: HK$876,000) has been recognised.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining balance of
HK$101,678,000 (2012: HK$99,107,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33. RIB AR 2=

The Company

KA F]
2013 2012
—E—-= —E-—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRE  EEAR 83,553 83,553
Less: impairment losses recognised & - R REEIE (83,553) (83,553)

Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK Bt 1B~ B FRIE 2,009,930 1,795,609
Less: impairment losses recognised & - BB EEE (975,553) (975,553)
1,034,377 820,056

The carrying amounts of interests in subsidiaries
are reduced to their recoverable amounts which
are determined by reference to the estimation of
future cash flows expected to be generated from
respective subsidiaries.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and represent
equity funding by the Company to a subsidiary
as the Company does not expect repayment in
the foreseeable future.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

RMBRAR 2R 2 RHEEAREH
TREEE FETKREEEIZZHE
HEREEMBLAREELE ZMTARARRSE

A=} =)
umiﬁéﬂi °

WM BARREREKF - Rt 2
REAQTGKBATDRSERS D
HRAARQABEHRRT RERTEWE K
15 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31

December 2013 are set out as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Country/place of
incorporation

2t ff B 32
BX/1t%

33. RIfB LRz (&)

ARBZMBRAEANR=-ZE—=F+=A
=t—BRZHEBHIOT :

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTRAZHE

Principal activities

TEEK

Adelio Holdings Limited

Angel Wish Group Limited

Best Season Holdings Corp.
(“Best Season”)

Bluelagoon Investment Holdings
Limited

Dragon Leader Limited

Eternity Finance Group Limited

XERBEERRDLF

Gainful Fortune Limited

Golden Stone Management Limited

Hong Kong Builders Finance Limited

RERBRERDF

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

British Virgin Islands
RBELHE

British Virgin Islands
RBRELHS

British Virgin Islands
RBELHS

British Virgin Islands
RBRLHS

British Virgin Islands
RBREZEE

British Virgin Islands
RBELHE

British Virgin Islands
RBRELHS

British Virgin Island
RBELHS

Hong Kong
BB

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TREREE1XTZ
EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1XTEER

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

100RBRAEEIETZ
EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1TRBREE1ZT2EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1EZTZEER

100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each

100,000,000 R EREE
1B EBR

160,000,100 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each
160,000,100 R EREE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Dormant
iﬁﬁ PO %

Investment holding, sale
of financial assets,
distribution of films and
sub-licensing of film
rights

REER HETREE -

?TEE%&E?E%
BITHE

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Holding of film rights

RREPRITR

1BTZEBR
1 ordinary share of US$1 Dormant
1REREB1ZT2ERR TEEX
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 ~ Money lending
each REXH
2RBREEIRTZ
EER
ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED KERHBZ 1% BB R 189
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. RMtB ARz (&)

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Country/place of
incorporation

at fi B 32
FEYS:E

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTRAZHE

Principal activities

TEXRH

Legend Rich Limited

Max Winner Investments Limited

AERERARAT

New Cove Limited

One Synergy Limited

Rexdale

Riche Advertising Limited

Riche (BVI) Limited

Riche Distribution Limited
EXRTERAT

Riche Multi-Media Limited
EXSRBERAF

Riche Pictures L|m|ted
EXYEERD

Riche Video Limited
EXBFERAT

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED k& %

British Virgin Islands
RBREZEE

Hong Kong
B8

British Virgin Islands
RBRELHS

Hong Kong
B8

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RBRELHS

British Virgin Islands
RBELHS

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B8

British Virgin Islands
RBELHE

Hong Kong
Bi#

B EFR AR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1EZTZEER

1 ordinary share of HK$1
1REREGE1BT2EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREEI ZET2EER

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1ZTZEER

10,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,000,000 R B R EE
1ETZEBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1XTZEER

1,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

1,000 R REE
1EZETZERR

1,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1,000,000 REREE
1BTZEBR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1
each

2RBREEIELLZ
EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1
1REREE1 EZET2EBR

10 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each

20,000 non-voting deferred
shares of HK$100 each*

10REREE100ETZE
AR

20,000 R B IR EE 10078 T
ZERERELRG
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Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Property holding
NERR

Sale of financial assets

HESREE

Investment holding

RERR

Sub-licensing of film rights
and sale of financial
assets

ERSYRTERHEDR
BE

Distribution of films and
other video features

ROSYRABPARE

Investment holding

RERR

Distribution of video
products in Hong Kong
REBRITZHRER
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. AMB AT 2 (&)
Country/place of
incorporation Particulars of issued
Name of subsidiary & M AR 32 share capital Principal activities
WELRAEE FEYg:E ERTRE R FTEXR
Rich Daily British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of Provision of management
KBEUFES US$1 each services
100 REBRAEAEI XL RIEEERH
EER
Simple View Investment Limited British Virgin Island 1 ordinary share of US$1 Investment holding
KBRLEE 1REREE1 XTI EER REER
Stable Income Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares  Travel business
BRAERAF EiE of HK$1 each g
1,000,000 R B R EE
1BTZEBR
Victory Peace Holdings Limited British Virgin Island 1 ordinary share of US$1 Investment holding
KBRLES 1TREREE1ZI2EER REER
* The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held * PEBRZEELEROVERLEREN S =
by the Group, carry practically no rights to dividends BE - BEREMEXREHXERATABRRK
nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at EBE HEZSEAEREELREZ
any general meeting of Riche Video Limited nor to R EERETAAZEEMDIK o

participate in any distribution on winding up.

The Company directly holds the interest in Riche AT EEFERiche (BVI) Limited 2
(BVI) Limited. All other subsidiaries are indirectly o FIBEHRHMKNEBAREHARAM
held by the Company. BEEE -

All of the subsidiaries are wholly owned by the FMEMBARMEHALATZEREES &
Company, except for Best Season. which is 75% Best Season HAKE#HEE 75% °

owned by the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities ENBLARARERP RN ZHRBREM
outstanding at the end of the reporting period, or B R A R ER 2 BHKES °

at any time during the reporting period.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that BEFERESZIZENBARAZFH
has non-controlling interest 15

In addition, the directors of the Company made o RATRESREBAXERAEBYE
an assessment at the date of initial application of WMEZAFE12FEBRRERAREL
HKFRS 12 and at the end of the reporting period. Ffh e ARAEERAE  WMEEBES
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, FERERBHAEEBEAZHEL
there is no subsidiary that has non-controlling B MUBEEZFZEMBARZE
interest individually that is material to the Group £ o

and therefore no information is disclosed for the
non-wholly owned subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HZ_=-F—=

34. RESERVES

The Company

34. @B

FroA=+—ALEE

NN

Share-based

payment
Share  Contributed reserve  Accumulated
premium surplus NRAFR losses Total
RiaE EdEs X ZitER a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEn FEn TEn FEn FEn
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hita) (Hiitb)

At 1 January 2012 R=B-Z%-5-A 221,744 410,656 11,148 (2,925) 640,623
Capital reorganisation RAEA = 77,360 - = 77,360
Placing of new shares RESRA 12,298 - - - 12,208
Share issue expenses RpBTES (356) - - = (356)
Share-based payment expenses NRBFA X 2E% - - 1,892 - 1,892
Release on lapse of share options ~ BBREX MR - - (1,300) 1,300 -
Exercise of share options TERmRE 8,362 - (1,856) - 6,506
Loss for the year EREE - - - (6,630) (6,630)

At 31 December 2012 and RIE-ZE+ZfA=1-H
1 January 2013 k=E-=%-F-H 242,048 488,016 9,884 (8,255) 731,693
Placing of new shares RESRA 29,845 - - - 29,845
Open offer of new shares NHEBEHRA 181,146 = = - 181,146
Share issue expenses RABARY (2,776) = = - (2,776)
Share-based payment expenses DRAFAX A 2BX = = 7,081 = 7,081
Release on lapse of share options BB AR & B AR = = (36) 36 -
Loss for the year EREE - - - (10,215) (10,215)
At 31 December 2013 WoB-ZE+ZBZ+-B 450263 488,016 16,029 (18434) 936,774
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

34. RESERVES (Continued)

The Company (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the
shareholders on 12 December 2011, the entire
amount of HK$482,493,000 standing to the credit
of the share premium account was cancelled and
such credit amount was applied to the contributed
surplus account where it was utilised by the board
of directors in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company and all applicable laws to eliminate
the audited accumulated losses of the Company of
HK$491,790,000 at 31 December 2010 entirely.

The contributed surplus account of the Company
represents the difference between the underlying net
assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
as at the date of the group reorganisation and the
nominal amount of the Company’s share capital
issued as consideration for the acquisition as well
as the net amount transferred from share premium
account and to accumulated losses account pursuant
to a special resolution passed at the special general
meeting held on 22 August 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company shall not declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or

(i)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities.

35. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,

non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2013 ==&

—=FFTR

34, &)

x

DR (E)

Mz -

(@)

(b)

RER-ZF——F+-AT-HRRES
ZHEBIRER  ROEEREBRRTLCZE
£ HA 482,493,000 B TE B - MA
FERSHEREARAZEHERE
YHESSREALNTAZDARAAK—
BRZEESA  UEBEHER -2 -—FF
+=H=+—H491,790,0008 T 2 &1
AIEERRREE -

RER-_ZEZE=FNA-F+-HETZR
RENAS BB 2EIRER  AAH
ZEHBBRRERNDAMBIEZHE QA
REBEHAAHHEEEFEELRAT
EABBREZFMBITRACEERER
BEERERZEGTEER2FECE
g o

BEBRE-AN—FAREERT)

AR B ESEEHRME :

() A2EAHER—BFEHD
HEZEBRINEE &

PIRENE S
iy ARFNEEZAUZRESHALER
HeE

AIARRABEAEDIRFAARE » LR
ABBFEHDIK °

35. BB QARE

RATF
BANMELARRBRERT  FHER
FEEREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. WEEHE LA

For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE_Z——H+-HA=+—HLFE
On 3 January 2012, the Group entered into a NR—_E—_—_F—H=H  A&EBEHSE
conditional sale and purchase agreement with REMEBERARARTHELE(HR
Koffman Financial Group Limited and Mr. Yu Shu BAUE=R)LEHRHEERZE UK
Kuen, both of them are independent third parties, £ R{E# 33,069,000 % T WL iE B 2 B 7%
for acquiring the entire issued shares in and the ERQABIZEMEBITRORAER 2
sale loan due by Hong Kong Builders Finance HEER WBEE=EEER-Z——-F—
Limited at a cash consideration of approximately BEBZEMK °

HK$33,069,000. The acquisition was completed
on 5 January 2012.

HK$’000
FET
Loans receivables W E R 33,605
Other receivables Hity W FRIR 912
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 5
Accruals and other payables EstERARH M ENTRIE (1,212)
Amount due to the shareholder FES B R FRIE (32,295)
Tax payable FEASBiTE (209)
806
Sale loan HEEN 32,295
Gain on a bargain purchase HEBE W& (32)
Total consideration, satisfied by cash HWRE UREXS 33,069
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEBEEL 2B SR HFE
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 33,069
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired & - EWE 2B ERELEEY (5)
33,064
The gain on a bargain purchase represented REBECURERKEBERHREESE
the excess of the fair value net assets as at ATFEBHREAFEZEE -

the acquisition date over the fair value of the
consideration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
(Continueqd)

Hong Kong Builders Finance Limited contributed
approximately HK$9,785,000 to the Group’s
turnover and a profit of approximately
HK$2,218,000 to the Group during the period
from 5 January 2012, being the date of
acquisition, to 31 December 2012.

Had the acquisition been completed at the
beginning of the year 2012, the Group’s
total revenue for the year would have been
HK$67,536,000 and the profit for the year would
have been HK$206,352,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purpose only and is
not necessarily an indicative revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 5 January 2012, nor is it intended
to be a projection of future results.
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36. WIBKIE LR (4)

BE-Z-—_F+-A=1+T—-HLHFE
(&)

H-Z-——E—AAHAKEBEH) =
—E-ZFE+ZRA=+—HHY . BE
HEERAGDAAEEZELZRETRY
9,785,000/ 7t & W AAREEFHIEF L
2,218,00038 7T °

MK BEER-_Z-——_FPLER
B AEEBRAEEZRZRLELA
67,536,0008 7T * MAFE 2 &@HEH
206,352,000/8 T - BEZEREREHR
HRZ BEABRUBEEER -
——FE-BEHERAEEKTERR
BrRakCEEEEZE THRAE
FERIRRELE -
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MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. HEMELQF

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-FE-=F+-A=1+—-HLFE

On 6 June 2013, the Group entered into an R-ZZFBE—=FExXAA K&EBE:L
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share W lbE— &\ E=FEH EEast
capital of East Legend to an independent third Legendz 2 HEBHTHREA RENRE
party at a cash consideration of HK$12,505,000. #12,505,0008 T c HESEHER -2
The disposal was completed on 6 June 2013. —=F/XANBREH ° East Legend Z
Details of the assets and liabilities of East EEREBEHEBIHIWOT :

Legend are set out as follows:

HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) M BEREE(MF 16) 62
Investment properties (note 17) REWME (T 17) 12,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY 240
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR H i ESFRIE (5)
Rental deposits received g Re (79)
Amount due to an immediate holding company  FE{t B2k A 8 2 708 (11,126)
Deferred taxation (note 32) ELEBLIR (frat 32) (6)
1,086
Assignment of amount due to an immediate EERNEEERARZ
holding company I8 11,126
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 12,212
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB ARz :
Cash consideration received g2WRERE 12,505
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (12,212)
293
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HESHELEZRERAFER
Cash consideration received EWRESRE 12,505
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERREEEY (240)
12,265
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 #HZ

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(Continued)

On 6 June 2013, the Group also entered into an
agreement to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of Goway to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$12,490,000. The
disposal was completed on 6 June 2013. Details

fn 8 M35 3 R

—FSer A=t —AULFEE

g

37. HEMBLQR (&)

BE-Z-=Ff1+t-A=1+—-HLHFE

( e
i

R=—=T—=
FIYMBEUND BB ILE=FHE
GowayZ = HEBTRA BERKE
#12,490,0008 7t - HEEZHER =
—=FRNAANHBREMN - Goway 2 EER

EXRNARNB AEETF

of the assets and liabilities of Goway are set out EEFBHEHIWT -
as follows:
HK$’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) M - MERRZE ML 16) 68
Investment properties (note 17) REME (M 17) 12,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEEY 223
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR HEMmEARIE (15)
Rental deposits received gliEeze (76)
Amount due to an immediate holding company  FE{} E 42k A 5 2 508 (11,126)
Deferred taxation (note 32) EEBLIR (f7aE 32) (5)
1,069
Assignment of amount due to an immediate EERNEEERATZ
holding company MIE 11,126
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 12,195
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEME AR Z W :
Cash consideration received EUWRENRE 12,490
Net assets disposed of BEHEEETFE (12,195)
295
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HESEELEZHESARATE
Cash consideration received EWEERE 12,490
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EHERERREEEY (223)
12,267
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

On 16 October 2012, the Group disposed of
the investment property held by Dynamic Eagle
by selling the entire issued share capital of
Dynamic Eagle to an independent third party at a
consideration of HK$686,000. The disposal was
completed on 16 October 2012. Details of the

37. HEMBLQR (&)

BE-F--F+-A=1+-HLFE

R-ZZE——F+A+xB AEEEB
LA {8 686,000 TR —BBIE=FH
i £ Dynamic Eagle Z = & & % 17 I%
7K > LA i & Dynamic Eagle$® & 2 &
EY¥- HESTBEBER=-ZT—=-%1+A8
+ /N B 5K > Dynamic Eagle 2EE R

assets and liabilities of the Dynamic Eagle are EEZFHBIHINAOT :
set out as follows:

HK$’000

FHET

Investment properties (note 17) REME(MF17) 700
Deposits and prepayments RERFEMNRIE 7
Accruals and other payable FEstE AR H i ESFRIE (21)
Net assets disposed of BE: 686
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB AR Z Wz :
Cash consideration received 2WRERE 686
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (686)
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HESHELEZRERAFER
Cash consideration received SWRERE 686
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38. COMMITMENTS 38. &iE
(a) Lease commitments (a) FHEHRIE
The Group as lessee AEFEREBA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RERBR > RKEBERERT 5 E
had commitments for future minimum lease REB-HAEMETATRHELEH
payments under non-cancellable operating Nz BEEESAELT :

leases in respect of rented premises which
fall due as follows:

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E-—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FAET FET
Within one year —FR 1,489 1,489
In the second to fifth year F_EFHF
inclusive (BEERWE) 496 1,985
1,985 3,474
Operating lease payments represented REHSEASEREBRAETYE
rentals payable by the Group for its office EBRzHEE HOFTERFEH=F
premises. Leases are mainly negotiated for HEER > MESFEH=FEER
an average term of three years and rentals & o

are fixed for an average of three years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z=—FE— =+ -HA=+—HIFE

38. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during
the year was HK$3,402,000 (2012:
HK$5,930,000).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group

had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments:

(a)

38. KiE(#E)

HERIEE)

KEBERH A
FRBOzZ2YWERSBAS
3,402,0008 (= & — = & :

5,930,000&7T) °

REEHR  AKBEHEBAFITLE
Wz ARREEESHENT :

The Group

rEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EB——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FR - 2,375

In the second to fifth year F_EZERF

inclusive (BEERWF) - 729
- 3,104
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

38. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments

At 31 December 2013, the Group had
other commitments of approximately
HK$408,852,000 relating to:

(i) the subscription of the second tranche
of convertible notes to be issued by
China Star in the principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 pursuant to the
conditional subscription agreement
dated 21 January 2011 (as amended
by the supplemental agreements dated
29 June 2012 and 31 December 2013).
The subscription of the second tranche
of convertible notes is conditional
upon the fulfillment of the conditions
precedent set out in the conditional
subscription agreement, including
the availability of sufficient fund by
the Company. On 29 June 2012, the
completion date of subscription was
extended from 30 June 2012 to 31
December 2013. On 31 December 20183,
the completion date of subscription was
further extended from 31 December
2013 to 31 December 2015;

(i) the subscription of the convertible
notes to be issued by EDS Wellness in
the principal amount of HK$40,000,000
pursuant to the conditional subscription
agreement dated 21 March 2013
(as amended by the supplemental
agreement dated 30 October 2013). The
subscription of the convertible notes
is conditional upon the fulfillment of
the conditions precedent set out in the
conditional subscription agreement. On
30 October 2013, the completion date
of subscription was extended from 31
October 2013 to 30 June 2014;
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38. HiE(#)

(b) Hth&iE

R-2-=6+-A=+—-0 %
EEEBETHEEZHEROA
408,852,000 & 7T :

() RBEGTEERBEEHPA=-ZF
——F—-—A=-+—-HzEK
HRBHBREABA-E
—Z—FEXAZ+HABARZZE
— =+ -A=+-—-Hz#
R EIT)ETRITEAEEHE
#300,000, 000,%752** —#t
AR ERE - REE _#t g
REEAER ﬁh#w%m%ﬁ
Bt (BEALATA
ErRRER)ER®E  HOE
BE-RZE—Z-HFXA=ZTHN
H REBEEZZERASHH=

——EXA=tHIEEZZ

—=f+=ZA=+-—-RH-

—E-=ZF+ZHA=+-—

 RIBEECERABBEC

—=5+ZA=+—RH#E—

FHEBEZE_E-—HE+ = A

=t—H8;

S 4 m S A

(i) *RBBEDS WellnessiR 5 B &
AR-ZE—Z=%=ZHA=+—H
ZERGRABHE(EAHA
2=+ HA=1+THZ®HE
ZHEET)ETFRITASE
% 40,000,000 Tt 2 o] # %
ZE - RBURREBEAES
R4 R R T & 2 SRR
ERE FAEE - R=-F
—=%+HA=+H8 RBEFHE
ZERBHBA-ZE—=F1A
=+—HEEZEZ-Z—WFN
B=+H:;
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

38. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments (Continued)

(iii)

the granting of an unsecured loan in
the principal amount of HK$40,000,000
to EDS Wellness pursuant to the
conditional loan agreement dated
21 March 2013 (as amended by the
supplemental agreement dated 30
October 2013). The granting of the
unsecured loan is conditional upon the
fulfillment of the conditions precedent
set out in the conditional loan
agreement. On 30 October 2013, the
completion date of granting of loan was
extended from 31 October 2013 to 30
June 2014; and

loans commitment in the aggregate
principal amount of approximately
HK$28,852,000 pursuant to the building
mortgages and the loan agreements
entered into between the Group and its
customers.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

38. HiE(#)

(b) EAbAHRIE(EF)

(iii)

BREABA-_Z—=F=A4
“t+-HZEBRBEERTGZE
(RABMA-—ZFT—=F1A
STHAZERBRMEET)M
EDS Wellness#® i 4~ & %8
40,000,000 T 2 BIK A E
Mo REBMIKAEREFEMR
HERBGERR ZEREK
% AUEE - R=-T—=

TA=1tH  REERZTHK
Bl =-ZE—=F+A=1+—
HERZEZZE—HWNFEAA=1
H, &

BEBEAEBEEEZFTY 218
FREBENERBEASHEBIEY
728,852,000 T 2 & FK
I’ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders on 12 December 2011, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “Option Scheme”) to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 21 January 2002. The
Option Scheme will expire on 11 December 2021.
The purpose of the Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant share options to selected
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the
Group.

Under the Option Scheme, eligible participants
are full time or part time employees of the Group
(including any directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not,
of the Company or any subsidiary); any holder
of any securities issued by the Group; and any
business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers,
suppliers, producers or licensors, customers,
licensees (including any sub-licensee) or
distributors, landlords or tenants (including any
sub-tenants) of the Group or any person who, in
the sole discretion of the board of directors of
the Company, has contributed or may contribute
to the Group.

The overall limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Subject to the above
overall limit, the total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all share options
to be granted under the Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”).
The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate
Limit subject to approval of the shareholders
in general meeting, provided that the Scheme
Mandate Limit as refreshed must not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshed limit.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the shares options granted to each
eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of grant must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Where
any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an independent
non-executive director or their respective
associates and if such grant would result in the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and
to be granted (including share options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant to
such person (i) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue and (ii) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares at the date of each grant, in excess
of HK$5,000,000, then the proposed grant must
be approved by the shareholders at a general
meeting, with voting to be taken by way of a poll.

A non-refundable nominal consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee upon
acceptance of the grant of share options. Share
options may be exercised at any time during the
period to be determined and identified by the
board of directors, but in any event no later than
ten years from the date of grant but subject to
the early termination of the Option Scheme.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, provided that it shall
be not less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares.
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39. URBFEAXN 2R Z (&)

BRIFERRME  TREERHER (8
BEZB)LEF12ERHER 8€4
ERSEEMIEERT 2BRERE
ETERERITEZBRE) RS #T
R#TFRIT2RNDBE  TEEBCEH
TRBZ1% - MERADTAEBRR
FBEIFATESHARETAZIHEA
TREEMBRE MROGEBERE
BEFRBEOZATREBREER
(BEZB)EEF12E@ABMER - 1T
FERERETREZBREBEST
E-BEEHEERERTEZBRE)RS
BOIRBTROZROBLB(HSHER
ERITROBLE201% @ R{)RRH
EEREAHzRHESE  BREEB
5,000,0008 T - RIZZERHBEERRR
BRERARE ERZER XA -

ARANBRBEMTE 2 8B RN
1.00B T2 A AIREBRNAE - BRE
TRESSEEREE BB KN
BETE  EERNMAFERRE A
g+ HEXBRESFIRELAL
FRIZIR °

THEEHALNAESTEE  BFAEE
RUT=FZ2REE () A 2ARGR
RHEHBHZ2WHE () RONBERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Company has not
adopted any share option scheme other than the

Option Scheme.

Details of specific categories of share options are

39. URBFEAXN 2R Z (&)

R-E—=5+"B=+—H0 BRER
RESTBISh » 7N D F) 3 4R 4 4 47T 8 AR A

atEl e

BREFSEER FHBAOT :

as follows:
Share
option type Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
BRESELN RUAH TEH TEE
2002 8 March 2002 8 March 2002 to 7 March 2012 HK$218.07
—EE_F=ANH —EE_F=ANHZE 218.07 BT
—E-—F=A+tH
2004 13 December 2004 13 December 2004 to 12 December 2014 HK$6,392.849 #*
“EENF+ZA+=H ZEENF+ZA+=HE 6,392.849 /& T #*
—F-WmFE+=-A+=H
2007A 22 March 2007 22 March 2007 to 21 March 2017 HK$1,549.705 #*
“EELF=A=+=H ZEELF=A=+=HE 1,549.705 % 7T **
—E-tF=A=1+—H
2007B 31 May 2007 31 May 2007 to 30 May 2017 HK$2,306.876 **
“EELFRA=+T—H ZEELFRA=+—HE 2,306.876 & T **
—E—tHFHA=1H
2011 20 October 2011 20 October 2011 to 19 October 2012 HK$1.808*
“Z——%+A=tH =—E——H+A=tHZ 1.808 BT *
—E-—H+A+NH
2012 4 June 2012 4 June 2012 to 3 June 2013 HK$0.339*
—E——FXAMAH —E-—FXAMNHEZE 0.339T*
—E—=F5xA=H
2013 24 May 2013 24 May 2013 to 23 May 2014 HK$1.274
“E-ZFHEA-TWNA ZE-=FHEA=-TWMAEE 1.274% 7T
—E-NFERA=+=H
g The exercise prices are adjusted for the capital e TEEER -—FE——FTHANAENZK
reorganisation of the Company as effective on 8 May D AR AR EA A FHE o
2012.

The exercise prices are adjusted for the open offer of
the Company as completed on 26 April 2013.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The fair values of the share options granted on
24 May 2013 and 4 June 2012 were measured,
using a binomial option pricing model, by Grant
Sherman. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

39. URBFEAXN 2R Z (&)

R-E-—=FRA-tNMAR=-ZT—=
EANANBRECEREZAFETH
PERAZEANECEESTET
RITEMAFTABR 2EH

Share option type

Share option life

BRESES

Grant date share price

RHRHBRE

Exercise price

1THEE

Expected volatility (%)
TEHDR W& (%)

Expected lives of share options

BREZAHFH

Dividend yield (%)
% 22K (%)

Risk-free interest rate

mEBFIE

BREER
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E—_F
1 year 1 year
14 16
HK$1.20 HK$0.345
1.20 & T 0.3458 7T
HK$1.274 HK$0.345
1.2748 T 0.34538 7T
76.71% 104.86%
0.5 year 0.5 year
0.5 0.5%F
0% 0%
0.14% 0.16%

BE-ZE—=Ft+-"A=+t—HLEFER

The fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2013
was approximately HK$7,081,000 (2012:
HK$1,892,000) which had been expensed as
share-based payment expenses during the year.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

RHBRE AFELNAE7,081,0008
JT(ZEFE— =% :1,892,000&T) ' 2R
FERFMELURAFERNZF 2K -

Annual Report 2013 —Z —=FFf




NOteS ioithe:Con SOWMated Financial Statements
FEMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 39. UBRBEAXIN 2R S (#)

(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the TREERFRAERATES - EERHE
Company’s share options held by directors of the B2 A AR ERE2EE :
Company, employees and consultants during the
year:
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Adjusted for  Outstanding at
at 1 January during during during open offer 31 December
Share option type 2013 the year the year the year (Note) 2013
R-B-=£
R=B-=% =:
-A-H RORRE =1-H
BREER AT REARM RERTE RERXH (L W AT
(fit)
2004 8,219 - - - 147 8,366
2007A 4,507 - - - 81 4,568
20078 23,580 - - - 424 24,013
2012 380,000 - - (386,840) 6,840 -
2013 - 23,800,000 - - - 23,800,000
416,315 23,800,000 - (386,840) 1,492 23,836,967
Exercisable at the end of the year
RELTAFHR 23,836,967
Weighted average exercise price HK$278.939 HK$1.274 - HK$0.339 - HK$6.138
METITREE 278.93938 10 121437 - 0.339 % - 61387
Note: Hfat -
The numbers of share options are adjusted for the open BREHERN - =FNA=-t+AHTAZ
offer of the Company as completed on 26 April 2013. BRATAEBEELTAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 Bl Z —F—=F+_HA=+—HIFE

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the
Company’s share options held by directors of
the Company, employees and consultants during

39. URBFEAXN 2R Z (&)

TREEBEFEARAAES  ES
KEBAE AR RBREZEE

prior year.
Number of share options
BREXR
Adjusted
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed for capital Outstanding
at 1 January during during during  reorganisation  at 31 December
Share option type 2012 the year the year the year (Note) 2012
R=%F-=F
W=%-=F T=A
—-A-H BRAEA =t-H
BRERR WAITE REREH RERTHE RERKH fEHA% WA
(W)
2002 226,566 - - (226,566) - -
2004 328,760 - - - (320,541) 8,219
2007A 180,298 - - - (175,791) 4,507
2007B 943,578 - - - (919,989) 23,589
2011 110,200,000 - - (2,755,000)  (107,445,000) -
2012 - 19,800,000 (19,420,000) - - 380,000
111,879,202 19,800,000 (19,420,000) (2,981,566)  (108,861,321) 416,315
Exercisable at the end of the year
RERT T 416,315
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.523 HK$0.345 HK$0.345 HK$18.242 - HK$278.939
IETITEE 15037 0.3458 7 0.345;87 18.242387 - 278939%T%
Note: g3

The numbers of share options are adjusted for the capital
reorganisation of the Company as effective on 8 May
2012.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 D

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

No share options granted under the Option
Scheme were exercised during the year.

The following share options granted under the
Option Scheme were exercised in the year ended

31 December 2012:

Share option

fn 8 M35 3 R

ecember 2013 BtZ—F—=F+ _—_H=+—HIFZF

39. URBEALZFT2RS (&)
RAEE  MEREBEREFIRHZ
ERAEEITE -
LTHREBRESZSRECERERE
EE-——_FE+A=+—HIEFEE
171E -

Share price at

type Number exercised Exercise date exercise date
i Ie RE 2 BfTEHE TEBH RITERZRE
2012 7,120,000 18 December 2012 HK$0.55
—E-—F+=ZA+NH 0.558 7T
2012 12,300,000 21 December 2012 HK$0.50
—E——H+=-H=+—H 0.507/& T

At 31 December 2013, the Company had
23,836,967 share options outstanding (2012:
416,315), representing 5.22% (2012: 0.16%) of
the issued share capital of the Company at that
date.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
set up a defined contribution retirement scheme,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all the eligible employees of the
Group. The Group did not provide retirement
benefits for its employees prior to set up of the
MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are
required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,250 per
employee and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of each
employee’s monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,250 (the “Mandatory Contribution”). The
employees are entitled to 100% of the Mandatory
Contribution upon their retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff

RZEB-—=F+ZA=+—-H &2
7] 23,836,967 1 i RITE B RE(=
T — ZF :416,31513)  th A QX AR
ERAERITRALS2%(ZE——4F:
0.16%) °
40. RIRBERFTE
—EZETF+_A—BE XEEA
FIEAERESRI —BEHEMEREIK
T8 — BEHELAESHE(ARESH
Bl MR umBESEA > AEBIL
EEHESRBEMEKRER o

RIEEESE EEHEAREAH
5% (BRZUBEE1,2508B T AR)E
B WAEBERENMR EE
BRAZHARTIREEERFH 5% (RS
1,250 8 T BR)FTE(TEEIEMRTR) o
EETRSmMBIN #HithHTERET
fERE NI 2 BB RFIMMHN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 41.

TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012:

(@) Loan to a related party is as follows:

EXBEALRS

BRAGEHBRERLMBE BB
S BE-B-—=FR-B-=F+=
A=E+-BLEFER  RAEBETTS
EABEALRS :

(@) BEALZERWT :

2013 2012
—E—=F —B——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Amount due from an associate JE W Bt & N B FRIE
(note 25) (Btat25) 3,528 3,528

(b) Compensation for key management
personnel

Emoluments for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the directors of
the Company and certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in notes 11 and 12
to the consolidated financial statements, is

(b) ETEEEAESHM

TEEBAEWNE(BEFREYHK
BRRMFIIRI2AFEERS T A
AAESRETESHEEZS
B)MNT :

as follows:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=1+T—HLEE
2013 2012
—EB—-=F —E—_F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Director fees EEHE 480 480
Salaries and other allowances Fre R HAiERE 14,276 8,930
Contributions to retirement benefits ERERIFT 2R
scheme 75 70
Share-based payment expenses URGOERAZS2ix 2,178 608
17,009 10,088

210 ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital risk management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and maintain
healthy ratios in order to support its business
and enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or raise and
repay debts. The Group’s capital management
objectives, policies or processes were unchanged
during the years of 2013 and 2012.

The Company monitors capital using gearing
ratio, which is the Group’s total borrowings over
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2013 and
2012 were as follows:

42, EXRER

BEARREREE

AEEBEEEACTEERRRELE
BiEELE RN SEBRIERIUX
BFHEBRRREARRERE -

AEFBEEHERNGRBIRBEBER
SHELRAE - RERXIARBEBELRS
B AKETHARARRIKE ZKRE
BRREBEEER RITHROIEBER
BEEE R-B-ZFR=-ZF-=F
W AEEZERERER  BRHRE
FHEFTE -

ARBRRAEBEEELR(MAEEEE
BBERUARBTEBARBGER)ERE
K- R-B-—=FR-_F-—-F+=A
=t-—RBZEEEELRNT :

2013 2012
—E-=£F —E-—_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Total borrowings BERE - —
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BRERREEEY (662,153) (297,967)
(662,153) (297,967)

Equity attributable to owners of the RATHEE AESG
Company B 1,825,372 1,521,954
Gearing ratio BEEELR N/A T iE A N/A i A
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 43. €T R
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAZER
2013 2012
—E—-= —E-_F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Financial assets cTMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash & & EUFIE (23F
and cash equivalents) RERBHEEEY) 1,675,388 699,319
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEESHEE 172 129,671
Financial assets at fair value through RO FEFFABZRZ
profit or loss TREE
— Listed equity securities — EHRAEE 49,046 25,199
— Conversion options embedded — ERTBEREBERNEZ
in convertible notes HEBRIERE
receivables 77,572 74,256
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost HIHR A 10,056 9,600
Financial risk management objectives and HRAREEEERBER

policies

The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
These risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and
price risk.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

AEBREBRBEEA AT INGHK
mEZHARAME  BREEBMEHARE
BB RBEZBETANTE - ZZER
BEFERE RBETEBRRERR
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and the
financial guarantees issued by the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
executive directors of the Company are
responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable,
loan receivable and debt investment at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Annual Report 2013 ==& — =% Ff
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MERABREEEERBEKE)

(a)

=EmEE

AEEMEAZHREF LI ARBET
EBRAKEFL 2ERIERMS
BRAEEHRMBERIAZESE
ERRARERS BRI R
HERRATHMEEZREE -

REERKEERR  ~AFZH
TESAEEEFERE FE#
ERHMEERF - UEAD K
RETEWEBBEIR - LI £
SEREZRBRBIZMEARNES
BUWERENR BRERKREEREZ
A EEEE - RS A TR E
THRFHAIREBE - FILW
S ARAESRAXREEZFE
[ b E RORAR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests
with the board of directors of the Company,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate level of cash and cash equivalents,
by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s
and the Company’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.

43. €W T A (#

MERBREEEERBEKE)

(b) FEEZEE

REBESRB2REAETHALT
BEEERE MESTERLEGE
ZRBESRABEERE  UFS
REEEH  PHERABRERR
BESEECRE -AEEEBME
REARESRASEEYKTE - F
BEZHAARERRERE UK
BHEMEEREG S
NEBRBESRAR

TRAINAEERARAFRHEIFET
LERMBECHRTENEHE - Z%
RERBEFAEERFDAHER
XfizBREEHzERmEERTR
ReEnEmKER - ZREBEANER
RKEEHERE °

3 months
Less than 1t03  to1year 1t05 Over
1 month months =f@R years 5 years Total
SR-ER -Z=fiA 2-f -ZRf  BEHNL @t
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$’000
FiE7x &7 FiE7x FiE7x FiE7x &7
The Group rE
2013 ~B-=%
Accruals and other EHEBRRAM
payables EfFHE 10,056 - - - - 10,056
2012 —E-CF
Accruals and other EstEAREM
payables R 9,600 - - - - 9,600

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED ki85 B8 & AR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. €M T A&

Financial risk management objectives and BEEREEEERBEK(E)
policies (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEELEE(E)
3 months
Less than 1t03 to1year 1t05 Over
1 month months =f@R years 5 years Total

YR-BA -2=fEA E-f -Enf  RENE At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

The Company VNN
2013 ~B-=f
Accruals and other B BRAREM
payables R 3,011 - - - - 3,011
Amounts due to subsidiaries EF KB A FFIE 90,649 - - - - 90,649
93,660 - - - - 93,660
2012 —E-CF
Accruals and other EstEAREM
payables EE 2,604 - - - - 2,604
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEfI B A FIFIE 90,524 - - - - 90,524
93,128 - - - - 93,128
(c) Price risk (c) EXEE
The Group is exposed to equity price risk AEEFEZERH ITRAZBSZRE
mainly through its investment in listed MAZRAELRR  EEEUFR
equity securities. The management manages ERREREREEZ2REHAESER
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of LRk o
investments with different risk and return
profiles.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Price risk on listed securities under
listed equity securities and available-
for-sale investments

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. For sensitivity
analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate
remains as 15% in the current year as
a result of the volatile financial market.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/
lower (2012: 15%):

— Post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2013 would increase/
decrease by HK$7,357,000 (2012:
HK$3,780,000). This is mainly due
to the changes in fair value of
listed equity securities; and

— other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HKS$Nil
(2012: HK$19,425,000) as a result
of the revaluation of available-for-
sale investments.

Price risk on conversion option embedded
in convertible notes receivables

The Group is required to estimate the
fair value of the conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables at the end of each reporting
period with changes in fair value to be
recognised in profit or loss as long as
the convertible notes receivables are
outstanding. The fair value adjustment
will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the
change in share prices and their
volatility of the convertible notes
issuers.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]

43.

TRIAE

BERABREEEERBEKE)

(c) EXmEEGE)

(i)

(ii)

LTREAZZFRAIRLERE
BT L i s 2 E15 R

UTBREDTTIRENR 23R
HiR 2 IR A B B B A & T /28
E o RBBRESNMS » &NF
EBRE A € 8T 5 K B 4
HMR15% °

fis IR A BAZIE A0, R 2 15%
(ZEBE—ZF 1 15%) :

- BE-ZE-=%+=A
=t+—BLEEEZXEF
EBRBE NG LM
B 4 7,357,00058 T(=
£ — = £ :3,780,000
BL) FEHRLETR
AEHZLAFEEH A
B R

— Htb2mURESAEE N,
LPERBT(ZE—ZF:
19,425,00058 7t ) * J3 H
REFHEETHBEERE
Fk -

FEW AT R IR F IR = 2 S
EREZESRRE

REBARE 2B ARMAEEE
WARRREAS 2 G REE
B2 AFE - fbis B RITEE
WARKRERE - AIZERERE
BANFEEE - A FEAR
HE(EHBE)RELSEBRA
BREERITAZRERIELE
HRNEERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c) Price risk (Continued)

(i)  Price risk on conversion option embedded
in convertible notes receivables (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the
exposure to the change in share prices
and their volatility of the convertible
notes issuers at the reporting date.

If the share prices of those convertible
notes issuers had been 15% (2012:
15%) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would increase/decrease by
HK$17,592,000/HK$16,465,000 (2012:
increase/decrease by HK$13,505,000/
HK$13,360,000), as a result of changes
in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables.

If the volatility of share prices of those
convertible notes issuers had been
15% (2012: 15%) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year would increase/decrease by
HK$4,575,000/HK$4,964,000 (2012:
increase/decrease by HK$1,522,000/
HK$1,629,000), as a result of changes
in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes
receivables.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analyses are unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation
of the conversion options embedded in
the convertible notes receivables and
involves multiple variables and certain
variables are interdependent.
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43. €M T A&

MBREREREERRBEK(E)

(c) 1EmEEE)

(i) FEWATHEREZRE 5D

EEZERERE(E)

AAFERBERFEHH 2R
BEPRABRREERITAZ
REKIEEEUT HRED
e

MEZENRREBERHTAZ
BELA T EHIER(ZZ
—Z—HF 1 15%) M A H it
BEEETE BEWA
BREREBERAE2RBRERE
ZAFEE2EH AEER
KEEZBRBEBER G E
tn R 417,592,000 T
16,465,000 T (=& —=
F #4058 213,505,000
#T,13,360,0008 7T) °

MEZETBEREBERTAZ
BRERE LA TEK15%
ZF — ZF:15%) M T
EHEMEHERF TS FE
WaBEREBERAES 2 HBE
EREZAFESZSH AEH
RAEAFEE BRI ZERK
# hn R 44,575,000 Tt
/4,964,000 T(=Z & — =
F o #inm A 1,522,000 58
7T,/ 1,629,000387T) °

EEERS  AREBYWAEER
RERNSZHRRER AT
BEfESARAz2EERAS
kzBEASEEMETAIZE
ZE0METE  BBRBEIN
TRURERAS TSRS
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial instruments
are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
these financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (levels 1 to
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active market for identical assets or
liabilities;

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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s HBIRAFVEFENRHEREENR
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

43. €M T A&

TMITRAZAFEE)

BEEMBEREUNFETSTEBZAETE
BEEZ L FE(E

Relationship of
Fair value at Fair value at Valuation Significant unobservable
31 December  31December  Fairvalue  techniques unobservable inputs
2013 2012 higrarchy and key inputs input to fair value
W-%-ZF  HI5-I%
tZAZt-A  f2R=t-H {EERITR ERFTEE TIRERARE
PASE JAYE  ATERN IERANE gAgE BATEZBE
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESHER
— Listed equity securities - FkAEE - 129499 Levelt  Quotedbidprices  NA NIA
$18 in active markets 7 TR
WERT AR
I\
Financial assets at far value RATEI\BRRL
through profitor loss SHER
— Listed equity securities - Inlads 49,046 25199 Levell  Quotedbidprices  NA NA
£14 in active markets 7R TR
WERm AR
N
— Conversion options - BUTEREERE 1512 74256 Llevel3  Bnominaloption  Theunderlyingshare  The fair value
embedded in convertible HEEEE £34 pricing modl prices of the measurement is
notes receivables EABERERS convertble notes positively correlated
issuers and their to the share prices of
volatilty based on the convertible notes
valuation model. issuers and their
(Notes a, b, candd) ~ volatilty.
TRREERTAZ  ATEFERTAREEL
ERRERARERE  TACRERERER
fEEE 2R o ERLERERE
Wida b cka)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

If the share prices of those convertible notes issuers
had been 15% (2012: 15%) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease
by HK$17,592,000/HK$16,465,000 (2012: increase/
decrease by HK$13,505,000/HK$13,360,000), as a
result of changes in fair value of conversion options
embedded in the convertible notes receivables.

If the volatility of share prices of those convertible
notes issuers had been 15% (2012: 15%) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$4,575,000/HK$4,964,000 (2012:
increase/decrease by HK$1,522,000/HK$1,629,000),
as a result of changes in fair value of conversion
options embedded in the convertible notes
receivables.

Based on the observable period of the Company
from October 2012 to December 2013, the share
price of China Star ranges from HK$0.076 to
HK$0.445 with average at HK$0.192, whereas the
conversion price remains HK$0.11 per share. The
conversion price is comparatively small to the recent
historical high price yet no share is converted at that
time. Pursuant to the historical exercise behavior of
the holders, the basis of adjustment of capped stock
price is justified.

The unobservable inputs of the conversion options
embedded in convertible notes issued by Koffman
can be determined through the valuation of equity
interest in the business enterprise of Koffman,
derived through the application of the market
approach based on six comparable companies listed
on the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2013
and 2012 after marketability discount that reflects a
scenario preparing for initial public offerings.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2,

or transfers into or out of Level 3 in the current

and prior years.
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BEEMBEREUNFETBZAETE
AEEZ R FEGE)

(c)

(d)

WEZSETEREERTAZRELA T
BR15% (ZF——%F : 15%) M A H ftt
BHERTE DERKTEREERS
PRBARERCATESBHAK £&
ERAEEZBRBREZNEE M HD
17,592,000 7T 16,465,000 T(=
ZT— & ¥, #4 13,505,000 T
13,360,000 7T) ©

fZERREE BT AZRERE -
S TEHRA5% (ZE——F : 15%) M HE
HESHERFTE  REKRTEREER
ERLBBEERECAFEEEAH K
EERARFEE 2 BRBE R A6
44,575,000 T 4,964,000 T (=
T ——F  #n,m 41,522,000 % 7T
1,629,000 7T) °

REARABA-ZF-——F+AZ=F—=
F+-AZUEEHE PEEZREN
F0.076 BT £0.4458 T FHRER
0.19278 7 - MBREAEFRERKRH
0.118 T - MBREERHEL SEEHER
& M ERE R LIREMRED - RES
BABEZTRER REROERZH
BEEBESE -

SERBTZULKREERNE 2 LIRRE
2T EEGARETEREE RELR
TEIRECAEEE  DNEBERATS
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. T R(#&
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) SRMITAEZAFREE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments BEEMEENL FHEGEZAEFE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring HEEZLFEGE

basis (Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table, BRTRFLEN  RRABESRARE
the directors of the Company consider that EUBBRRABEIA2EREERERE
the carrying amounts of financial assets and BZREERE QN FERS -

liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value

AREE nN¥E IREE »NFE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FiET FiET

Financial assets cTHMEE
Available-for-sale financial FAIftHELREE
assets
— Unlisted debt security — FLHEEES 172 250 172 220
Details of the Group’s financial instruments about EREAEEEMIAR-ZE—=F+=
the fair value hierarchy at 31 December 2013 are B=1T—HB2ZATESERZFFENT :
as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1H HE2k FEIRK Mt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET FET FET
Financial assets THMEE
Available-for-sale financial FAI{tHESRERE
assets
— Listed equity securities ~ — EHRAES - - - -
Financial assets at fair value %2 F &zt ABHK
through profit or loss ZERERE
— Listed equity securities — EHRAES 49,046 - - 49,046
— Convertible options — BEWABRBREE
embedded in AEZ B
convertible notes mIER
receivables - - 77,572 77,572

49,046 - 77,572 126,618
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. €W T A (#

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

The Company has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the conversion
options embedded in convertible notes
receivables, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. The Group
engages Grant Sherman to perform the
valuation of the conversion options embedded
in convertible notes receivables at the end of
each reporting period. The designated team
works closely with Grant Sherman to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
to the valuation model. Where there is material
change in the fair value of the conversion options
embedded in convertible notes receivables, the
cause of the fluctuations will be reported to the
management of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of
assets are disclosed above.
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BEREE NEEHBIR AEEEE
TERERATRREEAS 2 AIREE
BeEBEETHE BEENERDEER
e REERXELBEEMERN
REABE - HERKATBREEANS 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. e@T R (&
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued) EMIBZ2AFEE)
Fair value measurements and valuation RFEFERGEESF(E)

processes (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements DECRMEEZEIRNATFETEYR
of financial assets: wmr
2013 2012
—B-=f —B-——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Conversion options embedded W TaREEREZ
in convertible notes receivables: HREERE
(note 27) (KiaE27)
At 1 January m—A—H 74,256 75,282
Subscription of convertible notes — RBABRREE —
conversion option components SIRERERIG - 5,549
Gain arising on change in fair value RBEREID 2
of conversion option components AT EEHEEZWE 29,836 42
Conversion of convertible notes ARTBREE (26,520) —
Early redemption of convertible notes 2R EE AR ZiE - (6,617)
At 31 December R+=-—HA=+—H 77,572 74,256
Total gain and loss for the year R+ZA=+—BRE
included in profit or loss for SRMEEFTABERZ
financial assets held at 31 TEEWRREBEARE
December 29,836 42
Note: Kiat -
The gain arising from the remeasurement of the conversion BN ERRTRARZEAS 2 RBRIEEEL
options embedded in convertible notes receivables is Z2WanBEsRzZ EtlEsREE 125 -

presented in “other gains and losses” in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

44.

45.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A claim brought by China Finance & Assets
Management Limited (“China Finance”) in the
High Court Action No. 526 of 2010 against
Rexdale for failing to pay a service fee in the sum
of HK$25,000,000 to China Finance. No provision
for the claim brought by China Finance was made
in the consolidated financial statements as Lafe
Corporation Limited has undertaken to indemnify
and keep indemnified the Group against any
all losses, claims, damages, penalties, actions,
demands, proceedings, judgement and costs
arising from or in connection with the claim.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@) On 4 March 2014, the Company allotted and
issued 91,000,000 new ordinary shares at
a price of HK$0.78 per ordinary share by
way of placing of new shares under general
mandate raising HK$70,140,000 (net of
expenses) for financing the Group’s money
lending business.

(b) On 20 March 2014, the Board announced
that it came to the attention of the Company
that a writ (the “Writ”) of summons in High
Court Action No. 9 of 2014 was issued by
The Grande Holdings Limited (in liquidation),
Roderick John Sutton (as joint and several
provisional liquidator of The Grande

Holdings Limited), Fok Hei Yu (as joint and

several provisional liquidator of The Grande

Holdings Limited) and 65 other companies

listed as plaintiffs against 25 defendants

inclusive of One Synergy Limited (“One

Synergy”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company. One Synergy has, as at the date

of this annual report, not been served with

the Writ.

ETERNITY INVESTMENT LIMITED sK/E K BE 1% & B R AR]
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FREE

China Finance & Assets Management
Limited ([ China Finance )£ 5z 5734
20104 %526 3% @ Rexdale i H R & >
& ¥ Rexdale &k & @ China Finance XX
f+& $£ 25,000,000 B T 2 RIEE - K&
B I #8 A 4R S BT IS Rk Bk China Finance
REZHBZRFTRESE T HRLafe
Corporation Limited B &z BEI —H
FEASEERZMEERELEGHE 2
AR —{ELX - BR - BEEEE - 5
M RAA BR - EERER > HARARK
K o

ERMEER

(@) R=Z—MNE=ZAMAE  AQFE
BRE-BEELEFRNG &S
REEAR0.78 8 T 2 E1& Ho 2% | 8
1791,000,000 BT E BB (D AEE
70,140,000 & 7t (1 BRBA X2 ) ME (S
AEBZEEEK -

ZE-NE=A=1+H E=Z
5 ARFEREHEES
AAICERF) MCHUERE
BEEBERAGZHREE R
KREBA) - EEREREEE
BERQARZHRERE RS
BARGSEEMATIERSE A
EERFA014FHIFE @255
WEA ERPEEAQAZEE
Mt B 2 & One Synergy Limited
(fOne Synergyl) 2 B < Ak
TZSHR]) - RAFH®RAE > One
Synergy [E REXEZEZSAR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The action alleges, inter alia, that One
Synergy is liable to the plaintiffs as a
constructive trustee and/or by way of
equitable compensation and/or an accounts
of profits and/or restitution and/or damages
as a knowing recipient and/or by reason
of the knowing or dishonest assistance in
the breaches of trust and/or breaches of
fiduciary duties by various of the defendants
and/or by reason of dealings between One
Synergy and the plaintiffs otherwise being
voidable (and avoided), void, unlawful or
illegal, in respect of its receipt of the shares
in The Grande Properties Ltd (now known as
Rexdale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
MG HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_FE—=#+1+_F=+—HIFEZ

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Riche (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired
the entire issued share capital of Adelio
Holdings Limited, which is the holding
company of One Synergy, from Vartan
Holdings Limited, an independent third
party, pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 25 May 2011. One Synergy
acquired the entire issued share capital
of Rexdale from Lafe Corporation Limited,
being one of the defendants, pursuant to
a sale and purchase agreement dated 31
December 2010 (the “Agreement”). The
entire issued share capital of Rexdale was
sold by The Grande (Nominees) Ltd., being
one of the plaintiffs, and The Grand Limited
to Lafe Corporation Limited on or about 29
June 2007. The principal assets of Rexdale
were the whole of the 1st floor and the
flat roof, the whole of 6th to 12th floors,
roof, external walls, two lavatories, three
lorry parking spaces and eight private car
parking spaces on the ground floor of an
industrial building located in Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong with a total gross
floor of approximately 139,412 square feet
exclusive of lavatories, lorry and car parking
spaces, flat roof and roof (collectively, the
“Kwun Tong Properties”). The Kwun Tong
Properties was sold by Rexdale to Grand
Reward Limited, an independent third party,
in July 2013.
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(b)

(&)

A DT 22 E W B2 = Riche(BVI)
LimtediRIER =T ——F 51 A
“Tt+EARTYZEEHZEQOB Y
%5 = 77 Vartan Holdings Limited
Y B Adelio Holdings Limited
(One Synergyz#ZER DA 22
B 2 & 1T I& 7 - One Synergy iR
BR-Z—ZFF+=-A=+—H8F
Y 2 BEHE(Z&E ) [Lafe
Corporation Limited (1 —&#
& AN) W BB Rexdale 2 2 2 B 1T
f& 7 - Rexdale Z 2B EITRA
J3The Grande (Nominees) Ltd.
(Hfh—F R &EA)KThe Grand
Limited R=ZZtFX<A=THh
H =i 5% H & F Lafe Corporation
Limited c Rexdale2 X ZE& E &
VREBNEBEZIEXEREZ—
ERXE(FE)ZE - "E+=#
2E- XA HME - MEXEFAE -
WEH=EEEEVRNELRE
By RREERNSB139,412F
FRITEFEAFEH EERAX
BHEU RA(FE)RXA)H
WEEDE] BEYER=-Z
— =%+ B Rexdale HEFHE L
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z_—_F—=#+_F=+—HIFZ

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

One Synergy has sought counsel opinion on
the Writ and has been advised to defend the
plaintiffs’ claim in the said action. Counsel
has advised that, based upon available
evidence, there is nothing unusual in the
Agreement and One Synergy would not
have any express or constructive notice of
the plaintiffs’ alleged irregularities and/or
fraudulent acts of the former directors and/
or management officers of the plaintiffs and
One Synergy should not be held liable to
any part of the plaintiffs’ claim and has good
and valid defence thereto.

46. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were

45. ERPEEHE (&)

46.

(&)

One Synergy ERZSMERER
BERER YEESMEREAKL
LA ZBRREL NG - EERE
BMERT  RERERHRE  ZHRE
WEREAMASEZER  RREAE
BerEZER SEREAMES
k/SEBAEZHFETA  One
Synergy TE2ESEMARIEE
BEREH - B One Synergy &
WREHREAREZEMIBHE
t®ESE YEEZIREXRZ
Rt o

i E R RS R R

FEREMBBRRENR-_F-—NFE=A

“thAKEETSHERRETIE -

approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 25 March 2014.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFHMBEE
For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t-HILEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
~E-=§ Z—E2--f ZE--F ZT-TF ZIZINF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Results £
Turnover e 26,305 67,442 79,174 78,200 74,711
Profit/(loss) from REBELEER
continuing operations w5/ (BE) 102,797 207,494 (187,854) (353,053) 415,731
Finance costs MEEBH - - - (3,041) (8,086)
Profit/(loss) before taxation B AIAR],/ (F5i8) 102,797 207,494  (187,854)  (356,004) 407,645
Income tax (expense)/credit 5% () K% (5,560) (1,236) 32,598 (363) 14,493
Profit/(loss) for the REBELEER Y
year from continuing REEHA,/
operations (F12) 97,237 206,258  (155256)  (356,457) 422,138
Profit/(loss) for the year RECKEREEK
from discontinued ZAREEER
operation (E5#8) - - - = (5,576)
Profit/(loss) for the year  AEEHF,/(&8) 97,237 206,258  (155256)  (356,457) 416,562
Dividends IRE - — 198,359 33,063 —
At 31 December
BW+=—A=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Z2-Zf ZEB-Zf ZE--f ZE-TF IZETINF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FAET FET
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets EEARE 1,851,699 1,603,612 1,263,432 1,397,404 1,480,772
Total liabilities BERE (26,330) (81,660) (25,797) (52,741) (109,728)
Net assets BEFE 1,825,369 1,521,952 1,237,635 1,344,663 1,371,044
Capital and reserves KATERA
attributable to the owners ~ FEEIRAK
of the Company #E 1,825,372 1,521,954 1,237,636 1,344,663 1,371,044
Non-controlling interests ~ FFiRpRMEZS (3) 2) 1) - -
1,825,369 1,521,952 1,237,635 1,344,663 1,371,044
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